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WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 2, 2020, 9:00 A.M. 

* * * * * 

  MR. INGRAM:  Good morning, everyone.  This is 

Director Kevin Ingram.  And I want to welcome everyone 

in the call this morning.  It is 9:00 o'clock.  We have 

a huge agenda, so we're going to go ahead and get 

started.  

  A couple of housekeeping items I'd like to 

cover real quickly with you.  I'd just like to remind 

everyone to keep your phones on mute until called upon.  

And once you have had your hearing, you can go ahead and 

hang up for the day.  

 I would like to remind everyone to speak loudly 

and clearly.  We have a court reporter that is also on 

the line with us, and so we need to make sure that we 

can capture everything that's being said.   

 When you are going to speak, please announce 

your full name.  And then, when you are answering 

follow-up questions from the Board, if you could just 

state your name before each response, we would 

appreciate that.  

 Only one person should be speaking at a time to 

ensure that we have that accurate record.  If the Chair 

or any members of the Board ask you to stop talking, 

please do so at that time, so we can adequately respond.  
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 The public will be given opportunities to 

comment before the Board meeting and after the Board 

meeting today.  We will not be taking public comment for 

each agenda item.  

 That's what I have so far for the introduction.  

 And, Chairman, would you like to take over from 

here?  Chairman Flynn?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Can you hear me now?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Good morning.  

This is Ray Flynn, for the record.  Shannon, are you 

ready?  

  THE REPORTER:  Yes, I am.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I guess, for this 

morning, I know we have one item that the person's asked 

to move up due to them flying out of town.  And we can 

do that, Kevin.  We can do that first.  And then we can 

do the people that were left over from yesterday.  And 

then what I would like to do is to do 186.   

  We did 120 items yesterday, and a lot of them 

were consent.  And today we have 68 items, none of which 

are consent.  And if we even did 10 minutes per item, I 

doubt we're going to get through.  But we're going to 

try the best we can.  

 So if you're okay with my suggested agenda, 
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Kevin, we'll get started.  

  MR. INGRAM:  That sounds great, yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Could you do a 

call of members, please.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Absolutely.  Chairman Flynn?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm here.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Board Member Brown?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Here.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Board Member Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Good morning.  Here.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Board Member Nixon? 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Here.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  And then we have Shannon 

Taylor, our court reporter.  We have myself, Kevin 

Ingram, Lori Irizarry, Chief of Operations, and 

Supervising Investigator Vincent Saladino, our Financial 

Specialist in the north, Mary Klemme, Investigator in 

the north Jordan Jones, Investigator Swarthout, 

Investigator Maxwell.  And everybody is currently 

present, sir.  We do have a quorum, so we can proceed.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And maybe I had 

background.  Is our legal counsel with us?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Legal counsel, I'm sorry, 

Mr. Michael Detmer, is on the line with us as well.  

Thank you. 
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Good morning.  

And, Mike, I know I tease you a lot, but I really 

appreciate the advice and counsel that you give us.  

I've had several from your office.  And I'll be blunt.  

You're my favorite.  You've been the best so far for me 

at least, being Chair.  

  MR. DETMER:  It's my pleasure, sir.  And I need 

to be kept in my place.  So I thank you for it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  I'm 

still going to tease you today.  

 All right.  Let me address public comment.  

Members of the general public may comment on matters 

appearing on the agenda and may bring matters not 

appearing on the agenda to the attention of the Board.  

The Board may discuss the matters not appearing on the 

agenda but may not act on matters at this meeting.  If 

the Board desires, the matters may be placed on a future 

agenda for action.  Public comments may be limited to 

five minutes per person at the discretion of the 

Chairman but will not be restricted according to 

viewpoint.  And for today, due to our aggressive agenda, 

I will be limiting them to five minutes.  

 So at this time, before we get started, I will 

ask, is there any public comment?  

 Hearing none, Kevin, I'll let you proceed, 
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please.  Hello?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  Thank you.  So starting off 

today, we have agenda items 109 through 130 that have 

currently called in, are on the line.  As you had 

stated, item number 166 had then asked, due to a flight, 

to go ahead and be heard this morning.  And then we also 

have, you know, the item 186 that you had mentioned we 

want to get taken care of at the beginning.  

 So at your pleasure, please go ahead and 

proceed with the agenda item that you would like to take 

first.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Let's do number 

166, Nicholas Galindo.   

  Mr. Galindo, are you with us?  

  MR. INGRAM:  He's calling in right now.  I'm  

hoping he's not having trouble getting through.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll wait a 

second.  

  MR. GALINDO:  Hello?  Chairman Flynn? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes.  

  MR. GALINDO:  Hi.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes. 

  MR. GALINDO:  Hi.  Nice to meet you. 
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Hold on one second. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  We need to swear in this 

group.  Can we do the swearing in of this group?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, that is a great 

comment.  Thank you.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Let's see if Mr. Galindo on is on 

the call yet. 

  Mr. Galindo, are you there? 

  MR. GALINDO:  Yes, I'm right here.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  Excellent.  So the swearing 

in can take place, then, for 109 through 130 plus item  

number 166, Mr. Galindo. 

  Mr. Detmer, will you please swear everyone in.  

  MR. DETMER:  It would be my pleasure.   

  For those who are about to testify, do you 

hereby swear to tell the truth, the whole truth, and 

nothing but the truth?  

  (Applicants and witnesses present were 

sworn/affirmed.) 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Item 166, 

Nicholas Galindo.  You said you're here.  I'll turn it 

over to the investigator.  

  MR. GALINDO:  Thank you. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  

  MR. GALINDO:  Hello, nice to meet you. 
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  MR. MAXWELL:  Hello.  In 2010, the applicant 

was arrested in California for burglary second degree at 

felony level.  Disposition shows 180 days jail, three 

years formal probation.  The San Bernardino Superior 

Court website was accessed for the court documents.  The 

applicant finished probation on 4-21 of '14.   

  At the time of the application, the applicant  

was employed as event staff by ESI Security Services, 

license number 700.  Once he was made provisional on 

11-26 of '19, he was moved up to security officer.  He 

was denied on 1-6 of 2020 and terminated from the ESI  

security position the same day.  The applicant stated in 

his appeal letter that he was demoted back to event  

staff until the outcome of this appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Mr. Galindo, do you want to tell us what was 

going on and why you didn't disclose?  

  MR. GALINDO:  Why I didn't disclose, yes.  I 

just want to make something very clear of what I did.  

What I did is strictly on my shoulders.  And I take full 

responsibility for what I did.  I was with the wrong 

people.  I was not -- my parents were not the best 

people.  So I was lead down the wrong path.  So I just 

want to let that be on the record.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  
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  MR. GALINDO:  So.  Go ahead.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Are you done?  

  MR. GALINDO:  Yes, I'm done.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any questions 

from the Board?  

  MR. GALINDO:  I am sorry.  I'm just kind of 

caught off guard.  It was so sudden.  So I'm a little 

out of my element right now.  Apologies.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  That's okay, 

Mr. Galindo.  Do you have something more to add?  

  MR. GALINDO:  Yes, I do.  Oh, I don't have my 

paperwork with me.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  We need to move 

on, Mr. Galindo.  

  MR. GALINDO:  Yes, I understand.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I have a big agenda 

today.  

  MR. GALINDO:  Yes, I understand.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'm going to --   

  MR. GALINDO:  I have nothing else.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Any 

questions from the Board?  

  MR. GALINDO:  Any questions for the Board.  No, 

I don't.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Galindo, let me 
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speak.  Mr. Galindo, you're done.  I'm speaking to the 

PILB right now.  

  MR. GALINDO:  Oh.  My apologies.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any questions? 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Chairman Flynn, Board 

Member Brown. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes, go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  I apologize if I missed 

it, because I was taking some notes.  But did we get an 

explanation as to why he did not disclose this to us?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  No, I asked him, and he 

did not.  

  MR. GALINDO:  Oh.  I -- oh.  I can actually 

tell you that.  I'm sorry.  Hold on.  Where's that note?  

The reason why I didn't disclaim, the reason why I am 

actually just being -- I apologize.  I'm just being -- 

because I -- I apologize to the Board for wasting so 

much time.  I'm just, I don't have anything on me.  And, 

okay. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Mr. Galindo, 

you're done, if you have nothing more to add.  I keep 

saying the same thing.  I understand that you're sorry.  

And we understand you're in a bad place.  

  MR. GALINDO:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 
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questions from the Board?  

 All right.  I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I move that we deny the appeal of Mr. Galindo.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I have a 

motion.  Do I have a second?   

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Do I have 

any discussion? 

  Okay.  All in favor, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  The appeal is denied.  

Mr. Galindo.  

  MR. GALINDO:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You can reapply in a 

year.  We have a standard that you need to disclose your 

criminal history.  And that is the reason why.  You have 

a good day, sir.  Have a safe flight.  Thank you.  

  MR. GALINDO:  You, too.  Bye.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Number 109, 

Bernard Payne. 

  MR. PAYNE:  Good morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Are you here, sir? 

  MR. PAYNE:  Yes, I am.  Good morning. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do you understand 
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you're under oath?  

  MR. PAYNE:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll turn it over 

to the investigator.  

  MR. JONES:  Good morning.  This is Investigator 

Jones.  The applicant applied in November of 2019.  He 

was denied for a carrying a concealed weapon without a 

permit for an arrest in February 2018 at the misdemeanor 

level.  The applicant received a suspended jail 

sentence.  He was ordered to forfeit the gun and was 

able to perform 50 hours of community service in lieu of 

a fine.  This was the only arrest found on the 

fingerprint report.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And the applicant did 

not disclose this?  

  MR. JONES:  This was disclosed, and court docs 

were provided.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  All 

right.  Mr. Payne, anything you want to add, state?  

  MR. PAYNE:  No, it's self-explanatory.  It's 

fine.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, I'd be curious, 

because you're -- you know, we take any gun charge very 

serious, especially the --  

  MR. PAYNE:  Okay.  I have an explanation. 
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead, please. 

  MR. PAYNE:  I was a professional street 

performer, professional musician.  And I've always 

open-carried.  I've always worn out there.  I have 

pictures with me with Metro and everything.  So I was a 

very positive entity out there as a street performer.  

And I was out there for like five years.  And, 

eventually, things changed.  They made an ordinance to 

get the street performers out of there, which they 

succeeded.  And I was just made a sacrificial lamb.   

  But everything is fine.  I've played in every 

major casino in town.  So that was just a chapter in my 

life and not negative.  Because they know I had it.  

That was in February.  And it was cold that day, so I 

was just trying to perform and get out of there.  I 

didn't want to leave my gun in the car because there was 

too many eyes watching.  So that's what that was.   

  And, actually, the original reason they even 

confronted me was they said that I was two decibels over 

the sound.  They're not professional sound men.  But, 

you know, instead of arguing and everything, I just, I 

move on with my life.  Time is the most valuable thing 

in the universe.  I don't waste it.  So that's my 

answer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you.  
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  MR. PAYNE:  Yes. 

 BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any questions from the 

Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  So I just want to 

understand.  You said that you open-carry.  I'm sorry.  

And this is Board Member Nixon.  But on the arrest or on 

the paperwork that we have, it says it was a concealed.  

Was it indeed concealed? 

  MR. PAYNE:  I had my hoodie on back in 

February.  It was a cold day.  That's the only reason.  

Other than that, I wouldn't.  I took a chance, I took a 

risk, but just to perform and get out of there.  But 

I've never been in any trouble, you know.  And I've 

been, I purchase a shotgun.  It wasn't like a felony 

where I couldn't buy it where they sell firearms.  So I 

understand.  I'll get my CCW so I can be a hundred 

percent.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Board Member 

Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  For the investigator, 

he spent the hours of community service.  And we have 

paperwork to say that that was completed?  

  MR. JONES:  I'm checking right now.  

  Yes, this was completed.  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 

questions?  

 All right.  I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Board Member 

Nixon.  I move that we uphold the denial.  And for me, 

it's based on the time and distance.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second? 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown.  I second.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Brown second.  

All right.  Any further discussion?  

 I'll call for a vote.  All those in favor of 

the motion, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  The appeal 

is denied.  And you can reapply in a year, sir.  

  MR. PAYNE:  Oh, man.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Good luck to you.  

  MR. PAYNE:  Oh, man, that is just.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Number 110, Geron 

Funches?  Mr. Funches, or Funches, are you here, sir?  

 All right.  I will trail that.  

 Number 111, Raad Sunna, if I'm pronouncing that 
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correctly?  

  MR. SUNNA:  Yes, sir.  Correct.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you.  

I'll turn it over.  Oh, do you realize you're under 

oath, sir?  

  MR. SUNNA:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Turn it over to 

the investigator. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  In 2016, 

the applicant was charged with aiming a gun at a person 

in the state of Nevada.  This was at gross misdemeanor 

level.  The disposition was 364 days suspended sentence 

and 36 months probation.  They did disclose and provided 

court documents.  The applicant disclosed the arrest and 

was not made provisional.  The arrest was confirmed with 

the fingerprint report and court documents.  He was 

denied 3-12-2020.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Mr. Sunna, do you want to explain what 

happened?  

  MR. SUNNA:  Yes, sir.  Back in 2010, my family 

purchased a couple of tobacco shops.  And both my 

brother and I were working them individually.  

December 2nd, 2016, well, I should say a month prior to 

that, we had sold one of the locations.  And the new 
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owner is a family friend of ours and asked if I would be 

able to cover him until he went out of town and 

returned.  So I said yes.  I went into the store like 

normal, and I did open-carry on my side.  

 At about 5:20, 5:30 p.m., three masked men 

rushed into the store, one going behind the counter 

towards me and one on the opposite side and one coming 

down the middle.  I did feel my life was in danger.  I 

didn't know what their intentions were.  So I drew and 

opened fire.  The other two fled.  The other one went 

down by the door.  

 The original -- on December 2nd, this occurred.  

And Metro arrived on scene, did their thing.  They 

released me.  And it wasn't until December 5th, that 

night around 6:00 p.m., where I got a call from a 

detective saying they needed to ask further questions.  

And that's when they placed me under arrest for the 

original charge being open murder.  And I did do a 

72-hour holding period in the detention center.  I was 

released on house arrest.  I was allowed to go to work, 

attorney meetings and doctor's appointments and 

et cetera.  

 It wasn't till evidence came to light.  Well, 

the original charge, why it was that way, because they 

said all the shots were to the back.  And later on, 
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evidence came to light showing it incorrect.  Two shots 

were in the front that traversed the body, and the rest 

of the shots followed after that.   

 Later, also, more evidence came to light that 

the charge was filed incorrectly.  And it was reduced to 

a gross misdemeanor.  There was a 365-day jail time 

suspended.  I was placed on probation.  And I was 

discharged from probation on June 18th of 2019 for 

complying with all the rules and everything.  And I also 

did a hundred hours of community service.   

 And since then, the case has been closed.  I'm 

just waiting to actually go ahead and expunge and seal 

in June of 2021.  But at the same time, I'm also trying 

to apply for a position that requires a PILB card.  And 

that's it.  I'm still legally allowed to carry a 

firearm.  I can purchase and carry.  But I would just 

have to wait till June to get my CCW. 

 And that's pretty much everything.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you, sir.  

  MR. SUNNA:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any questions from the 

Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  For the investigator.  
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I believe, it was Maxwell.  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Do we have any police 

report on this or anything to see what really happened 

here?  I mean this seems a little bit convoluted, a 

little bit crazy.  It started out with murder and down 

to aiming a firearm?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  I don't have any, I don't have 

any police report, sir.  I've just got the court 

documents and the fingerprint report.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  By court documents, 

what do you mean by that?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  The documentation that shows the 

charge that he was charged with, which was aiming a 

firearm at a human being.  And it gives the dispositions 

and the final outcome, and it tells you the completion 

of community service, probation, that type of stuff, 

sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  I'd love to 

have the court documents tell me what happened in court 

here all the way.  I mean there's just something that 

doesn't, doesn't fit right with me.  

 Could I have a question?  Mr. Chairman, I'd 

like to question the applicant.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes, go ahead.  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Mr. Sunna?  

  MR. SUNNA:  Yes, sir. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You fired the shots, 

and one went down.  Was he deceased?  

  MR. SUNNA:  Yes, sir.  He died on the way to 

the hospital.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  That's all I 

have.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And if I recall 

the case, Mr. Sunna, the decedent was 13 years old.  Is 

that correct?  

  MR. SUNNA:  Yes, correct.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Any other 

questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  A question from Board 

Member Brown for the applicant.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Mr. Sunna, did you say 

these gentlemen were armed when they came at you?  

  MR. SUNNA:  One of them was armed with a knife, 

correct.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you, sir.  

  MR. SUNNA:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any other questions from 

the Board?  
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  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  So I know we don't have 

the police report, and you said there were some mistakes 

made in the filing and such.  Was there camera footage 

of this incident inside the shop?  And did the -- you 

know, I'm assuming that the police department would have 

had access to this footage?  

  MR. SUNNA:  Yes, there is.  And there was also 

camera footage of the three assailants next-door in the 

vestibule putting on the masks and preparing for the -- 

the rush.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Okay.  I have 

nothing else.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 

questions from the Board?  

 All right.  I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  Very 

unusual situation.  But from the heights of it to the 

lows of it, and it's so sad anybody got killed in any 

situation, but with the facts that were presented at 

this point from the applicant and the final disposition 

of the case, I'm going to make a motion to grant the 

appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion 

to grant the appeal.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Nixon. 
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  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion, 

and I have a second.  Any further discussion?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I'm with Gronauer.  This 

is, you know, this is a difficult one for me.  But, 

yeah, this is a challenge.  I feel like we don't have a 

lot, a lot or all the information.  But, yeah.  That was 

all, just more of a statement.  Sorry.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And just for 

discussion purposes, I've got an issue with time and 

distance.  And I also have an issue that he can't do 

anything till June 2021 to further a firearm issue.   

  Mr. Galindo, real quick, this is an unarmed 

position?  I'm sorry.  Mr. --  

  MR. SUNNA:  Sunna.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Sunna.  Is this an 

unarmed position?  

  MR. SUNNA:  I would assume so.  The job 

description did not state anything about carrying.  But 

I do have no, nothing holding me back from being able to 

carry or purchase.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  

Without any further discussion, I'll call for a vote.  

All those in favor, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.") 
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any opposed, 

state "nay."  Nay.  

 Okay.  Motion carries three to one.  

Congratulations, sir.  You have a good day.  

  MR. SUNNA:  You, too.  Thank you very much.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Number 112, 

Jeremy Jongepier?  

  MR. JONGEPIER:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Did I pronounce that 

correctly?  

  MR. JONGEPIER:  It is "Yung-eh-peer."  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Jongepier.  All 

right.  Do you realize you're under oath?  

  MR. JONGEPIER:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll turn it over 

to the investigator. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  In 2015, 

in Nevada, the applicant was charged with --   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Jongepier, I 

believe, that's your phone.  Can you put it on mute 

until we ask you a question?  Thank you.  

 Go ahead, Mr. Maxwell. 

 MR. MAXWELL:  Thank you, sir.  2015, in the 

state of Nevada, the applicant was charged with assault, 

carrying a concealed weapon without a permit, at 
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misdemeanor level.  He did disclose, and court docs were 

provided.  The disposition showed it was 90 days plus 

90-day concurrent jail sentence, which was suspended.  

He was ordered to stay out of trouble, community 

service, counseling.  The property was forfeited.  And 

all of the conditions were satisfied by August 4th, 

2015.  

 The applicant was initially denied in 2017 for 

the weapons conviction.  He disclosed the arrest on his 

application and was not made provisional.  The 

conviction was confirmed with SCOPE, the fingerprint 

report and court documents.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Mr. Jongepier, can you tell us what happened?  

  MR. JONGEPIER:  So there was a kid in my 

neighborhood who was being arrested for a murder that 

had happened like at the end of my block.  I happened to 

be, or young and stupid, and I was nosey, and I went to 

go watch him get arrested.  And I had, oh, I always 

open-carried at that time.  And I had put my gun inside 

my glovebox.  When I got out of my car to go, the police 

barricade happened.  And some gentleman ran up to me, 

and he tried to fight me.  And I put my hands up.  And 

when I lifted my hands, he saw my holster.  We were 

separated by the police officers.  The officers told us 
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to go our separate ways.   

  I didn't know the guy had lived in my 

neighborhood.  I drove past his street.  He threw a 

handful of rocks at me and my fiance at the time, hit my 

car.  I stopped my car, and I yelled some profanity at 

him, which I really regret doing.  That's what the 

assault charge was about.  And then I drove back to my 

house.  And about 15 minutes later, I had my 

neighborhood barricaded off saying that I had assaulted 

this guy and with my firearm.   

  And they dismissed it down to a concealed carry 

firearm, which was in my glovebox, that I admitted to.  

And two weeks after I was released off of house arrest, 

they no longer had that criminal charge.  So.  And I was 

forced into taking a plea.  I would have went to a trial 

with it.  But my lawyer, since it was such a high 

priority case, they wanted 25 grand, and I couldn't 

afford it at the time.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  Any 

questions -- put it back on mute unless the Board has 

questions.  You've got a very scratchy phone.  Okay.  

Thank you.  

 Any questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  So I --   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Hearing no questions, 
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I'll entertain a motion. 

  I'm calling for a motion a second time.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Mr. Chair, this is Brown. 

I think, we're pausing.  I thought Board Member Nixon 

had a question.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Oh, I didn't hear her.  

My apologies.   

  Go ahead, Tammy.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No.  Thank you.  I wanted 

to find out.  It says assault, carrying a concealed 

weapon.  Did you assault anybody with the weapon, or was 

there actually any physical confrontation, or was this 

just you yelling profanities at somebody?  

  MR. JONGEPIER:  Yes, ma'am, there was no weapon 

involved with the assault.  It was all verbal.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  And then, when they 

saw your belt, was there an actual gun in the holster, 

or was --   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Jongepier, it's your 

phone.  I don't know if you could step to another part 

of where you're at, if you're at home.  But we cannot 

hearing anything.  And we can't even hear ourselves 

speak.  

  MR. JONGEPIER:  Is this better?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  A hundred percent.  
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  MR. JONGEPIER:  Oh, is it?  Okay.  So, no, I 

did not have the firearm inside of my holster.  It was 

inside of my glovebox, because I felt that it was more 

responsible to step out with my gun being locked up with 

the officers around.  I did not want to intimidate any 

of the officers with a firearm during a police 

barricade, so I had it locked away in my glovebox.  And 

that was during the whole confrontation with the 

gentleman, also.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Understood.  Thank 

you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any other questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I have another 

question.  Have you, for the applicant, have you 

attended a CCW class?  

  MR. JONGEPIER:  Yes, sir, I have.  And the only 

problem with my having the CCW is I haven't had enough 

money to pay for the court documents and fingerprinting 

down there, just because I've been laid off because of 

the Covid.  But I have taken the actual class.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah, I understood that 

part, and I was trying to figure out, okay, about the 

money part.  But, okay.  The other part is, if you took 
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the class, they pretty well instruct you when to bring a 

gun and not to bring a gun, or bring it out or not to 

bring it out.  Is that correct?  

  MR. JONGEPIER:  Yes, sir.  And this, I'd taken 

the class after that I had gotten this charge.  So.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any other questions?  

 All right.  Hearing none, I'll call for a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Board Member Brown.  I 

move that we grant the appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

 I'll call for a second again.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I'm sorry.  I'm on mute.  

I second.  This is Nixon.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

I have a second.  Any further discussion?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah, this is Gronauer.  

I probably won't be able to support this for the simple 

reason of time and distance on this one.  And I'm glad 

he took the CCW class, but it was afterwards.  And I 

just won't be able to support it probably.  And that's 

my reason, time and distance.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  All 
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those in favor of the motion, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.") 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Those opposed, state 

"nay."  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Nay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carries 

three to one.  Good luck.  

 All right.  Mr. Brett Bagley, are you here?  

  MR. BAGLEY:  Yes, good morning, Director 

Ingram.  I'm here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do you realize 

you're under oath?  

  MR. BAGLEY:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I'll turn 

this over to the investigator. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  In 2010, 

in the state of Mississippi, the applicant was charged 

with fleeing from police.  This was at the felony level.  

Disposition shows three years probation.  And this was 

disclosed by the applicant.  

 In 2018, in the state of Nevada, he was charged 

with engage in lewd, dissolute conduct in public place.  

This was at misdemeanor level.  He received six months 

suspended jail sentence and a fine.  This was also 
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disclosed.  

 The applicant was initially was made 

provisional on November 1st, 2019 but was not added to 

added to anyone's roster.  The arrests were disclosed on 

the application and were confirmed with the fingerprint 

report.  He was denied December 3rd, 2019.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  Mr. Bagley, anything you want to add?  

  MR. BAGLEY:  Yes.  I've prepared a statement in 

the interest of saving time and getting all the 

pertinent facts at hand.  Let's see.   

  In June of 2010, I was employed as a tour bus 

driver in Las Vegas.  After a long work week, I rented a 

vehicle and drove to Georgia to help a friend.  He 

stated they needed immediate help to get out of a 

domestic violence situation.  I made only one stop to 

rest, and I was unable to sleep with all that was on my 

mind.  I got back on the road and reached Georgia two 

days later.  And on the way back to Las Vegas, I began 

to experience the effects of extreme sleep deprivation.  

Being a professional driver and having driven many long 

trips before, I pushed myself beyond my limits without 

realizing it.   

  A police officer in Vicksburg, Mississippi 

initiated a traffic stop for an out headlight.  I was in 
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a dreamlike state at this point simply from extreme lack 

of rest, and no drugs were involved.  When I saw only 

blue lights in the rearview mirror, I did not perceive 

it to be a police car, since it did not have any red 

lights.  In my normal frame of mind, I'm well aware that 

police vehicles in other areas of the United States use 

only blue lights.  I graduated as class president of the 

Monterey Peninsula College Law Enforcement Academy in 

2000.  And I come from a law enforcement family.  I was 

also a licensed driving instructor in the state of 

California from 2003 to 2004.  Traffic safety has been a 

passion of mine throughout my life.  I truly thought it 

was someone attempting to impersonate a police officer, 

in my frame of mind, and drove away at a high rate of 

speed.  My judgment and perceptions had been completely 

impaired from my extreme lack of adequate rest.   

  I remember reaching a large railway area where 

there's only one way in or out.  And when I turned 

around --  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Wait, wait.  Mr. Bagley?  

  MR. BAGLEY:  Yes. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  You explained 

that.  I see where that's going.  I accept your 

explanation.  Talk to me --   

  MR. BAGLEY:  Okay.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  -- about the lewdness in 

public.  

  MR. BAGLEY:  Okay.  This was the second arrest 

here in Pahrump.  This was after I was a limousine 

driver in Las Vegas from 2011 to 2017.  And I was 

involved in a vehicle versus pedestrian accident as a 

pedestrian and suffered a knee injury, which took nine 

months to recover.  So I had moved to Pahrump to 

recover.  I was becoming extremely distressed and began 

to lose sleep over a period of days.  And while I was in 

my camper, I stayed up all night watching videos on 

YouTube.  Since I was not driving anywhere, I did not 

see any potential problems, and I ended up in the same 

dreamlike state by morning and sleepwalked out of my 

camper not wearing any clothing and was promptly 

arrested by the Nye County Sheriff's Department.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  The 

rest of the Board --  

  MR. BAGLEY:  I do have more.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  We have limited time.  

If the rest of the Board's got questions and they want  

you to continue with your statement, I'll allow it.  But 

I'm good with your explanation so far.  

  MR. BAGLEY:  Okay.  The only thing I have to 

add is a letter from the psychologist as the explanation 
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for my actions, if I might add that.  It takes less than 

a minute.  It could be pertinent for the decision.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  Read 

what the psychiatrist says about your condition and as 

it applies to being a security officer.  

  MR. BAGLEY:  Actually, I'm applying for mystery 

shopping.  But, yes, this is from Laurel Life in 

Chambersburg, Pennsylvania, dated 29 September 2010, 

just after the first incident. 

  It says, it reads here:  Mr. Bagley was seen 

for a psychological interview assessment on 

September 20, 2010, and the status of examination 

reveals that it be focused and calm --  

  (The Reporter asked Mr. Bagley to read slower.) 

  MR. BAGLEY:  Okay.  No problem.  

  Prior to the incident in Mississippi that 

occurred in June, Mr. Bagley had no history of any 

mental health or substance abuse issues.  Given all 

available information, it seems evident that the cause 

of Mr. Bagley's aberrant behavior at the time of his 

arrest was the result of sleep deprivation.  After over 

a week period of attaining minimal sleep, he began to 

exhibit signs akin to a brief psychotic episode.  In 

addition to slow response time and impairment in motor 

skills and judgment and fragmented thought processes, 
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one of the psychological effects of sleep deprivation 

can be microsleeps.  This occurs when the brain 

automatically shuts down for a brief period, leading the 

person to mentally fall asleep regardless of what they 

are doing.  During a microsleep, the person is in a 

dreamlike state, causing distorted perceptions.  As the 

person is unable to distinguish reality from waking 

dreams, inappropriate behavior and emotional responses 

are common.  This, I believe, has occurred when 

Mr. Bagley was driving a vehicle.  Given his lack of the 

late history and current presentation, as long as 

Mr. Bagley attains adequate rest, it is my professional 

opinion that the June incident was an isolated incident 

and not apt to recur. 

  And that was by Tara Louchery, licensed 

clinical psychologist from Laurel Life.  

 I have since been diagnosed with severe sleep 

apnea where I have over 30 events an hour, and it wakes 

me up over 250 times a night, making it impossible to 

get rest.  I was diagnosed just last year and received a 

BiPAP machine and went from 30 events down to five, and 

I'm finally receiving the rest that I desperately needed 

for years.  I did not know I had this condition.   

 I've strived to be a moral person all of my 

life.  These incidents are extremely embarrassing.  I 
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try to help others whenever possible.  And for me to be 

involved in incidents such as this, while I take 

responsibility for my actions, there were contributing 

factors that definitely were in play for something like 

this to happen.   

 I apologized to the police officer in person.  

He's the one that had the charges brought down.  I had a 

destruction of property, assault on a police officer.  

He's the one that went to the D.A. and asked them to 

drop those charges after speaking with me and getting 

the facts.  

 I have nothing else to add at this time.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Bagley? 

  MR. BAGLEY:  Yes, sir. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I appreciate your 

statements.  I'll turn it over to questions from the 

Board.  And just so you know, my issue has nothing to do 

with your medical condition.  My issue is time and 

distance.  And your last incident was only two years 

ago.  But we'll see what the rest of the Board feels.  

 Any questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  To 

the applicant, if you get a card, what do you plan on 

doing with it?  

  MR. BAGLEY:  Well, I plan to become an 
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outstanding mystery shopper.  I have a lot of customer 

service experience in hotel and limousine.  I had an 

offer from QSI Specialists with Alex.  And I plan to do 

mystery shopping quality assurance.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  MR. BAGLEY:  You're welcome.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Any other 

questions from the Board?   

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I guess, mine's more of a statement.  I'm just a 

little worried that both of these charges came upon a 

decision that you made.  Granted, you didn't make a 

proper decision because of lack of sleep.  What I'm 

worried about is if you get into any kind of position 

where you have any type of authority or a weapon, and 

you make a decision that, yeah, I'll work the overtime 

shift, and you have another one of these incidents.  And 

that's my concern.  

  MR. BAGLEY:  I can understand your concern, 

sir.  And as far as --  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Bagley? 

  MR. BAGLEY:  -- the mystery shopping, I don't 

think it's the same as security or --   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Bagley?  Mr. Bagley.  

That was a statement.  It wasn't a question.  
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  MR. BAGLEY:  Oh, I'm sorry.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  That's okay.  

 All right.  Any other questions or statements 

from the Board?  

 All right.  I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  I 

can make a motion.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I make a motion that we 

deny --   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  The appeal.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thank you.  Thank you.  

We deny the appeal for Mr. Bagley.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Any further 

discussion from the Board?  

 Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All those 

in favor of the motion, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any opposed, 

state "nay."  

 All right.  Hearing none, motion carried.  

Mr. Bagley, you can reapply within a year.  And I can 
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only speak for myself.  That would be more time and 

distance.  I might be more apt to change my views.  

Thank you for your time.  

  MR. BAGLEY:  That would be the first time.  

Thank you for your time.  Have a good day.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Number 114, 

Kevin Martinez?  Number 114, Kevin Martinez?  

 All right.  I will trail that one.  

 Number 115, Donald Williams?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Donald Williams here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Good 

morning, Mr. Williams.  Do you realize you're under 

oath?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'm going to turn 

it over to the investigator.  

  MR. JONES:  Thank you, sir.  Investigator 

Jones.  The applicant applied in December of 2019, where 

he was denied for the arrest in 2013, which began as a 

felony and was reduced.  It started off as a child 

cruelty, possession of marijuana for sale, and receiving 

known stolen property.  This was reduced to a 

misdemeanor carrying concealed firearms.  They did 

disclose this, and they did provide court documents. 

  Previously, before that, the applicant was 
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arrested for two counts of commercial burglary in 

November of 1995, which they did disclose as well.   

  And then, in 2000, there was a warrant issued 

for this burglary.  The fingerprint report does not 

indicate the status of that warrant. 

  The applicant was, had applied before, in late 

December of 2016, and was denied.  So the applicant has 

reapplied in 2019 and is appealing this decision again.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you. 

  All right.  Mr. Williams, why don't you tell us 

about the criminal history.  And then I'm real curious 

about the child endangerment charge that was pled to a 

different one.  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Okay.  With the commercial 

burglary, I was, you know, at the store buying stuff and 

giving receipts to another guy, and he was going back in 

and trying to steal the stuff and, you know, regain the 

money.  And I got caught doing that.  That was a big 

mistake on my part.  

 And the arrest in 2013, with the child 

endangerment, there was no endangerment to my child, but 

they found a weapon in the top of the closet, and in the 

report they said that my son was holding the weapon in 

his hand or jumping on the bed.  And at the time, I was 

outside the dwelling.  And the police went inside and 
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found the gun on the bed, or he threw it on the bed and 

said that my son was near it.   

 And I went through all the court proceedings.  

The family, father and child program, the drug programs, 

I did everything the courts needed me to do to rectify 

the situation.  And I got my children back in record 

time.  They said it was the quickest they ever seen.  

Within six months, I had my children back.  

 And I decided to move to Las Vegas to get away 

from that lifestyle.  And I've been living a productive 

life here in Vegas.  My credit score is going up.  I'm 

paying all the creditors I owe.  I joined the church, 

Victory Outreach of Las Vegas.  We feed the homeless in 

the winter with chili and cornbread and give out 

blankets and prayer and things like that.   

 So I've changed my whole life around 

completely.  I work two jobs.  I donate plasma.  I do 

whatever I can to stay on the positive side of the law 

these days.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Thank you.  And I am 

familiar with your church, and they do a lot of good 

work here in town.  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Yeah.  I have my own car. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  What are you doing for a 

job now?  
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  MR. WILLIAMS:  For a job, I work at a company 

called Secure Source.  I've been working there for three 

years.  All my reviews are 4.5 and higher.  I've never 

missed a day of work.  I have my own car. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And what do you do for 

them?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  I'm a guardsman.  I'm a private 

guardsman for Las Vegas Paving and Aggregate.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  Thank 

you.  

  Any questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Board Member Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  What is a guardsman for 

Las Vegas Paving, what does that entail?  I don't 

understand.  Is that --  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  I just guard equipment.  You 

know, when they have like million-dollar equipment 

that's out on the side of the freeway or something, or 

also in the mountains somewhere, we just go out there 

and watch it.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  This is a 

question for Mr. Ingram.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Kevin, maybe I'm 
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confused.  But does a guardsman guarding the equipment 

out there for a private company, do they have to have a 

card?  

  MR. INGRAM:  In depends on how they're hired.  

If they're hired as an actual employee of the company, 

and their duties are to guard that equipment, then they 

don't fall under NRS 648 or NAC 648.  If they are hired 

as an independent contractor to do that, then, yes, they 

would be required to be licensed.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Well, he said 

he's working for Securitas, or whomever.  And I'm just 

trying to figure out how that all plays into this here.  

And that's what I'm asking.  

  MR. INGRAM:  So I would ask the applicant, you 

know, is the company that you're currently employed for, 

are they part of Las Vegas Paving, or does Las Vegas 

Paving hire this company to provide those services?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  They're part of Las Vegas 

Paving.  They're based out of Arizona.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  What's the name of that 

company?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Secure Source.  I don't know the 

details.  A church member, because when I needed a job, 

he introduced me to the lady.  And she just gave me the 

job, and she has me, you know, watch equipment here and 
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there.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  Hold on.  

To the applicant again, who gives you the paycheck, 

where does your paycheck come from?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  My paycheck comes from Secure 

Source.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, I'm with you, 

Bobby.  I have an issue.   

  Mr. Williams, we're going to have to look into 

this further.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah, I think, we have 

to trail, put it someplace else or try it another time.  

I don't know.  But I can't even deal with this one right 

now.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  No, and neither can I.  

Let me explain to the applicant. 

 Sir, there may be a question that this company 

is operating improperly in the state of Nevada.  And 

that would affect your employment with it, on your 

application for the card.  So what Commissioner Gronauer 

is asking is that we trail this, allowing staff and PILB 

to take a look.  I mean we're going to be here for 

eight, nine hours.  We'll be able to give you a 

decision.  If I was to have to move forward right now, I 
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would deny this.  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  I did, I did something wrong?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'll tell you what, do 

you want to come back in about 1:00 o'clock?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Director 

Ingram, that's like four hours.  Hopefully, somebody 

from your staff can track this down and see what the 

deal is.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Actually working on it right now 

as we speak, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  So, Mr. Williams, 

I appreciate your patience.  And why don't you just call 

back in at 1:00 o'clock, and we'll hear you again.  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Okay, sir.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  

  All right.  Number 116, William Landreth.  Are 

you here, sir?  Number 116, William Landreth?  

  All right.  I'm going to trail this one. 

 Number 117, Royale Brown? 

 MR. BROWN:  I'm here.  How are you doing, sir?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm doing good.  Thank 

you, sir.  Do you realize you're under oath?  

  MR. BROWN:  Yes, I do.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'm going to turn 
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this over to the investigator.  

  MR. BROWN:  All right. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  2005, out 

of New York, the applicant was charged with misdemeanor 

DUI.  Disposition showed three years probation.  It was 

disclosed on the application.  

 2010, also out of New York, another DUI at 

felony level.  Disposition showed five years probation 

and 16 weeks jail.  This was also disclosed.  

 The applicant disclosed the arrest conviction 

and was not made provisional.  This was confirmed with 

the fingerprint report.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

 All right.  Sir, do you want to explain your 

DUIs?  

  MR. BROWN:  Well, they're pretty much, yeah, 

these, I would, I would classify these as just, you 

know, as reported.  They happened, you know, within -- I 

mean the first one was just -- I would just classify 

them as isolated, unfortunate isolated incidents that -- 

and not, I would not, and not -- I wouldn't -- if you 

would, you know, I don't, I don't think they -- they 

don't reflect, they're not a reflection of my personal 

character or the type of -- yeah, like I was saying, 

just isolated, unfortunate incidents.  I don't know. 
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Can you explain 

why the arrest in 2010 made it a felony?  Did you injure  

somebody?  

  MR. BROWN:  No, nobody was injured.  These 

were -- I think, it was because of the multity, the 

number of incidents that happened.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.   

  MR. BROWN:  They were actually, they weren't 

DU.  They were actually classed as DWIs, driving while 

intoxicated.  I think, it might have been the nature of 

the -- maybe my BAC level.  Or just I'm not sure 

exactly.  You know, I guess, the first one, okay, that 

was the lenient.  That was the misdemeanor.  That was 

my, I would call it a slap on the wrist.  But then, you 

know, when I got, when I went ahead and when I did the 

same thing in 2010, then that's when it, you know, 

because that's when it was, it became more of a serious 

offense, so.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do you have a 

driver's license right now?  

  MR. BROWN:  No, it's not, not -- I'm still tied 

up with -- in Albany.  But New York state, they're 

not -- well, I have, I have written appeals to -- so 

that I could, because there's a hold placed on my 

driver's record from New York state.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  What are you 

doing for employment now?  

  MR. BROWN:  I'm self-employed right now.  I 

have, over the past, you know, three, four, five years, 

I've been doing various, you know, some various, yeah, 

I've been on various different payrolls.  You know, I've 

worked at Walmart Super Center, worked for, you know, 

other retail outlets.  And I've also done -- I'm a 

basketball school trainer for a company called 

Lab Works.  But, yeah, just.   

  And, currently, right now, I'm just, I'm trying 

to do my own thing with like kind of self-employed with 

Allow Me Services.  It's my own, my personal company 

where I just perform, you know, various services, 

miscellaneous services that, you know, kind of like odd 

jobs.  Because I'm fairly good, I'm pretty good with my 

hands.  So, yeah, I'm trying to, yeah, I just do 

contract work right now.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you.  

And just so you know, I'm aware that the last time you 

were arrested was over 10 years ago.  So I'm going to 

turn it over to the Board, if they have got any 

questions for you.  

 Any questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Yes.  So this is Nixon.  
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This is for the investigator.  Quick question.  He said 

his license is held up in New York.  Is everything taken 

care of with his probation and paying off of fines, jail 

time, is all of that closed out?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  As far as 

I'm aware, ma'am, yes.  But I would just like to clarify 

something with reference to the felony 2010.  According 

to the fingerprint report, the reason why that was a 

felony level DU, DWI was because he'd had a previous 

conviction of the designated offense within a 10-year 

period.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Got it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And, Tammy, just an FYI, 

some states require you to go through a process as well 

as classes.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And in some states, you 

have to take the driving test to get your driver's 

license back.  And that might be the issue with him 

living here and trying to get his New York license.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I see.  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any other questions from 

the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Board Member 
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Gronauer.  To the applicant, what do you plan on doing 

with a card?  

  MR. BROWN:  I would like to start trying to 

apply for different security, security officer position.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  I'm fine. 

  MR. BROWN:  In Henderson or Vegas, or Vegas or 

Henderson.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'm good.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 

questions from the Board? 

  All right.  Hearing none, I'll entertain a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I move that we grant the 

appeal for Mr. Royale Brown.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I have a 

motion and a second.  Any further discussion?  

 Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All those 

in favor, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carries.  

Congratulations, Mr. Brown.  You have a good day.  

  MR. BROWN:  Thank you.  Yes, I appreciate it.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Number 118, 

Trayana Jordan?  

  MS. JORDAN:  Trayana Jordan.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Good morning, 

ma'am.  

  MS. JORDAN:  Good morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Do you realize you're 

under oath?  

  MS. JORDAN:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll turn it over 

to the investigator. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  In 2013, 

state of Nevada, the applicant was charged with larceny 

from a person, to the amount of $3,500.  This was at 

felony level.  Disposition showed a minimum of 12 

months, maximum of 32 months suspended sentence and 36 

months probation.  This was disclosed, and we do have 

court docs.  

 Also in 2013, state of Nevada, resist a public 

official, at misdemeanor level.  Disposition showed 

classes and a fine.  And this was disclosed.  

 The applicant disclosed the arrests on the 

application and was not made provisional.  She was 

denied 4-22 of 2020.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Ms. Jordan, tell 
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us what happened, please.  

  MS. JORDAN:  Okay.  So the resisting the 

officer, that was actually the first charge I had ever 

caught, 18 years old, was having a little domestic 

dispute with a boyfriend of mine.  It was my first time 

ever, you know, being in trouble with the law.  I was 

18, kind of freaked out, and they arrested me.   

  I was supposed to stay out of the trouble.  

Unfortunately, I didn't, and that's when I caught the 

case for the larceny from the person.  I was out in a 

public place.  I did come across some belongings that 

were not mine.  I did take them.  And instead of turning 

them in, which I should have, I took them.  I was caught 

with that possession, and I was arrested for it.  And I 

had to suffer the consequences for that, unfortunately.  

  I was placed on probation.  And that was 

revoked.  Which that got me sent to Nevada Department of 

Corrections.  I went in with credit time served, 

finished out my case, came home on a closed case, no 

parole or anything.  Which that was in 2015. 

  And since then, I have become a mother.  Like I 

said, I was 19 years old when I caught that case.  I'm 

now 26.  I'm a mother of three kids, trying to do the 

best that I can by my children and live my life without 

any trouble.  I haven't had any trouble since then, not 
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even a ticket.  I've worked several jobs, holding those 

down, and just trying to do right by my life and my 

children.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Any questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  To the applicant.  You 

said you found property.  This says larceny from a 

person.  It's a little different than finding a property 

just laying around somewhere.  So why is it larceny from 

a person?  

  MS. JORDAN:  Because that was the charge ended 

up being.  That's what they dropped it down to.  

Initially, it was robbery and conspiracy.  Because when 

I took the wallet, she had suspicion that it was me, 

because she did see me go into the bathroom.  When she 

asked to check my property, I told her no, and I 

proceeded to leave.  So maybe that's why.  But I didn't 

physically take anything from anyone.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Originally, it 

was robbery?  

  MS. JORDAN:  That was the original charge.  

When I first got arrested, they did charge me with 

robbery and conspiracy.  But it was dropped because I 
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didn't rob her, or, you know, I didn't conspiracy.  I 

took it out of a public restroom.  And they told me that 

by law, I'm supposed to try to return someone's property 

instead of taking it.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  And then you 

said your probation was revoked.  Why did that happen?  

  MS. JORDAN:  Because I didn't check in with my 

probation officer.  I had missed the call.  And they put 

out a warrant for me.  And when I went to court, they 

revoked it, they didn't reinstate it.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  And how much time did 

you do?   

  MS. JORDAN:  In Nevada Department of 

Corrections?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes.  

  MS. JORDAN:  About 10 months, 9 or 10 months.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  MS. JORDAN:  M-hm (affirmative).  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Any other 

questions from the Board?  

 Okay.  Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion.  

 Call for a motion a second time.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Sorry.  This is Board 

Member Nixon.  Due to time and distance -- or, so you 

got out -- or, Investigator, she got out in 2016?    
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  MS. JORDAN:  '15. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Maxwell?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  She asked you a 

question. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Yes, sir.  I'm just checking the 

notes.  If you just got me a second, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

 MR. MAXWELL:  It looks like January of 2015.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  So the original 

incident happened in '13, and then she spent, or between 

probation and time, it was done in 2015?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Yes, ma'am.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Still waiting on 

a motion.  

 I don't have a motion.  Mr. Detmer, does this 

automatically mean that the appeal's denied?  

  MR. DETMER:  Good morning, Chairman.  Mike 

Detmer, for the record.  I've actually never had this 

happen before.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Mr. Chairman?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Well, then, I 

will make a motion, and we'll see what happens, just to 

move it along.  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Mr. Chairman?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  I'll 

make it easer for all of yous.  Okay?  I'll make the 

motion.  Is that okay?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'd like to make a 

motion to deny the appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion 

to deny the appeal.  Do I have a second?   

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I have a 

motion.  I have a second.  Any discussion on the motion?  

 All right.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  

All those in favor of the motion, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed, state 

"nay."  

 Okay.  Motion carries.  Ms. Jordan, you can 

reapply in a year.  Thank you for your time.  

  MS. JORDAN:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Number 119, Elmer 

Moore.  Mr. Moore, are you here?  

  MR. MOORE:  Yes, I am.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do you realize 
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you're under oath, sir?  

  MR. MOORE:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll turn this 

over to the investigator. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead.  

  MR. MAXWELL:  In 2015, state of Nevada, the 

applicant was charged with coercion nonsexual.  This was 

at the felony level.  It was disclosed.  And we do have 

court documentation.  The disposition showed a maximum 

of 36 months, minimum of 12 months in the Nevada State 

Prison, which was suspended, 36 months probation and a 

hundred hours community service.  The applicant 

disclosed the arrest and was not made provisional.  The 

arrest happened after the issue of the applicant's first 

work card, which expired in 3-27 of this year.  The 

arrest was confirmed with the fingerprint report and 

court documents.  He was denied 3-23-2020.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Mr. Moore, tell us about the coercion charge.  

  MR. MOORE:  2015, I moved out here, started 

working.  My mother-in-law was homeless in California.  

So I moved her out here with me.  They had a little, a 

little daughter.  And I kept telling them not to have 

her wear a T-shirt and her panties around the house.  
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And we got into it.  And I kicked them out.  And then 

about five hours later, the police was at my house, 

arrested me for touching her.  Which I didn't.   

  And I was in jail.  Losing my house, my kids 

was going to go homeless.  So I took a plea deal to get 

out to make sure my kids wasn't homeless.  So I had to 

choose my life over theirs.  So I messed up my life to 

make sure they had a good life.  And I'm not looking 

back from it, just keep moving forward.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And you did time for 

this?  

  MR. MOORE:  I stayed in jail for two months.  

And I got out, did my hundred hours of probation, I mean 

my hundred hours of community service.  I did probation 

for two years, but I got out early on probation for good 

behavior for a year.  And I just haven't looked back 

since.  And I just, I learned how to just do my life and 

just don't try to help nobody.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  So you were a 

security officer before all this happened.  What are you 

doing now for employment?  

  MR. MOORE:  I'm doing scheduling for a temp 

agent right now.  And so I'm trying to get my guard card 

back, because my old previous company, so they're 

holding my position until I get my guard card back.  And 
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so I can't do nothing until I get this.  And I'm not 

trying to mess up nothing.  So I'm doing the proper 

steps.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you.  

  Any other questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Where's the 

coercion?  I'm just, I'm lost.  I'm lost with --  

  MR. MOORE:  That was the plea, that was the 

plea deal. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  It's okay.  What --  

  MR. MOORE:  Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  What was the original 

charge?  

  MR. MOORE:  Pled to the minor under 16.  And 

whatever that is, I never went to jail.  But I know I 

didn't touch nobody.  So I just took a plea deal to get 

out so my kids won't be homeless, because I was losing 

my place.  So they hit me with the nonconsensual 

coercion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right. 

  MR. MOORE:  I did probation.  If I messed up, 

I'd get three to five years in jail.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  Thank you.  
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  For the investigator, Mr. Maxwell.  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  In your 

notes, when I made my notes, I said maybe you can 

explain some of this.   

  MR. MAXWELL:  M-hm (affirmative). 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Anything that you can 

tell me about this?   

  MR. MAXWELL:  Okay, sir.  So the charge, the 

first charge was lewdness by a person over 18 with a 

child less than 14.  But the courts, the court's final 

charge was coercion with force or threat of force.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Thank you.  I 

just needed that explained.  I appreciate it.  Thank 

you. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  You're welcome.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No more questions, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 

questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  So for the investigator, I 

just want to make sure I understand the notes.  He had a 

guard card before.  This probably happened during the 

time that he had an active guard card.  When he went to 

renew, that's when we found out about it, and he was 

denied at that time?   
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  MR. MAXWELL:  Yes, ma'am, that is correct.  

When he came to renew his guard card, he disclosed it on 

the application, and that's when we denied it.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Oh, so he did disclose.  

Okay.  All right.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Any other 

questions?  

 All right.  I'm seeking a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'm going to -- time 

and distance on this one.  And it's a complicated 

really, for where it started.  I have to make a motion 

to deny the appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion 

to deny.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I have a 

motion.  I have a second.  Any further discussion?   

  Okay.  All in favor of the motion, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carried.  

Mr. Moore, you can reapply in a year, sir.  You have a 

good day.  Thank you for your time.  

  MR. MOORE:  Thank you.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Number 120, 

Anthony Rocco?  Number 120, Anthony Rocco?   

  All right.  I'm going to go back to the other 

ones that we're trailing, so we can close out this part 

of the agenda and move on. 

  Number 110, Geron Funches, are you here?  

  MR. ROBERTS:  Excuse me.  I'm sorry to 

interrupt.  My name is Tijuan.  Did you call Tijuan 

Robertson yet?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  What number are you, 

sir?  

  MR. ROBERTSON:  65880.  

  MR. INGRAM:  His item, agenda item 126 has not 

been called yet.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Oh, you'll be in the 

next hour, sir.  You'll be in the next hour. 

  MR. ROBERTSON:  The next hour? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yep. 

  MR. ROBERTSON:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  

Calling Geron Funches last time.   

  All right.  I will entertain a motion. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  I'll make a 

motion.  I'm sorry if I stepped on somebody.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Go ahead. 
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead, Bobby. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  I make a motion 

to deny the appeal for Geron Funches. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any discussion? 

  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All those 

in favor of the motion, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  MS. HAWKINS:  Hello.  May I interject, please? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  What?  

  MS. HAWKINS:  I said may I interject?  My name 

is Chyna Hawkins.  If I'm not mistaken, I have a meeting 

with you all.  Good morning, by the way.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Ma'am, you're --  

  MS. HAWKINS:  My number is -- 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Ma'am?  Ma'am? 

  MS. HAWKINS:  Yes? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You're interrupting a 

proceeding.  Wait till we're done.  And then we will 

take your question.  Okay.  You're in the middle of a 

hearing.  

  MS. HAWKINS:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Place your 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

427 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

phone on mute, please.  Thank you.  

 All right.  Number 114, Kevin Martinez.  

Mr. Martinez, are you here?  Call second time, 

Mr. Martinez?  

 Okay.  I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I move that we --  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead, Tammy. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I move 

that we uphold the denial of Mr. Kevin Martinez.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

I have a second.  Any discussion?  

 Okay.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All 

those in favor of the motion, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carried.  

 Number 116, William Landreth, are you here?  

  MR. LANDRETH:  Yes, I'm right here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Landreth, do 

you realize you're under oath?  

  MR. LANDRETH:  Yes, I do.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll turn this 
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over to the investigator. 

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  The 

applicant was denied for a felony assault with a deadly 

weapon not a firearm, out of California, in 2012.  This 

was a felony.  The court documents show he was convicted 

and placed on three years formal probation.  The 

applicant stated on his application this was as a weapon 

charge and said that he got some of his things stolen.  

The court documents show it was a felony conviction, and 

he received three years probation and 24 actual days in 

jail.  

 In 2007, out of California, there was a 

conviction for carry concealed dirk or dagger.  This 

charge in California in a wobbler, meaning depending on 

the disposition of it, it can be charged as a felony for 

a misdemeanor.  He did receive three years probation, 

which was terminated, and the applicant received a year 

jail time.  

 In 1984, out of California, there was a mail 

fraud, slash, wire fraud, which was charged as a 

misdemeanor, where he received three years probation and 

a $5,000 fine.  The applicant did list it and wrote it 

down as wire fraud and stated he paid $87 in 

restitution.  The fingerprint report shows three years 

probation, which ended up being extended two more.  It 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

429 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

doesn't state why it was extended.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 All right.  Mr. Landreth, do you want to 

explain your arrests, please?  

  MR. LANDRETH:  Yes.  Well, at first, the first 

one was computer, being into computers in 1984.  And the 

FBI had raided a whole bunch of people around the 

country, including me.  And I don't know.  I don't 

really think -- I wanted to defend myself.  And my 

father said, no, that wouldn't really be acceptable.  

And so I ended up taking a plea on one of the three 

charges.  Because they had three charges.  And one of 

the three, which I just pled guilty to whatever one they 

wanted to.  And it was an $87 charge.  That's what they 

charged me in restitution for it.  And that was in '84, 

or '85 actually.  It was '84.  It was actually October 

'83 when that, yeah, was at my house.  But it was about 

nine months later when I actually went to court on it. 

  Okay.  And the other ones, and both of them, 

basically, are false arrest charges.  I mean I was in my 

own place in Los Angeles when I had a place at the 

Ballington Plaza.  And there was like some noise 

complaints or something.  And these people were just 

banging on my door, and I would open the door.  And then 

one time when I opened the door, I walked out and there 
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were police pointing guns at me.  

  And they ended up arresting me and, also, 

physically abusing me and accusing me of, at first, to 

me anyway, in my room, they were saying they were going 

to find drugs in my room and they were going to hang me 

on drugs.  But I wasn't really doing any drugs at all.  

And, but they did find a carving knife.  You know, I had 

other knives in my room.  But I got the carving knife 

from a food processor I had brought.  It came with the 

food processor that I had bought.  And it was just 

basically a really -- I mean the cops that arrested me 

were all on speed, and they were really like violent and 

angry at something.   

  And, well, I ended up being homeless.  And when 

I was homeless, I was going up to Seattle.  And I ended  

up going out to Hawaii.  And then I came back from 

Hawaii.  And I was in Santa Barbara for this last charge 

here.  

 This guy, John Tomlin, I think, he said his 

name was, was like, had stolen my blankets and all my 

stuff like 11 days previously.  And I come up to my 

place, just coming up to Halloween, I remember, because 

I was at this Halloween party at the Alano Club.  And I 

was coming up to my stuff right there on East Beach near 

the Carillo, back out there.  And they were going 
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through my stuff.  They like had it all spread out, and 

they were all looking through it and picking out what 

they wanted and stuff.  And I got really mad and said, 

"Who the hell is taking my stuff again?"  And they 

jumped me.  And I got away from it, called 9-1-1, 

flagged down the police.  And then I was the only one 

who was arrested.  And they accused me of --   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Landreth, 

what are you doing for employment these days?  

  MR. LANDRETH:  Oh, I'm working with 

Contemporary Services Corporation here in Los Angeles.  

And they're the ones who wanted me to get the PILB card 

for when they occasionally have a job coming down in 

Las Vegas.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  So they want 

you to be a private investigator?  

  MR. LANDRETH:  No, no, not a private 

investigator, just a security guard, unarmed security 

guard.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Any other questions from the Board?  

 Okay.  I'll call for a motion.  

 I'll call for a motion a second time.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  This is 

Gronauer.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I make a motion that we 

deny the appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  We have a motion.  

We have a second.  Okay.  Any further discussion?   

  All right.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  

All those in favor of the motion, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carried.  

Mr. Landreth, you can reapply in a year.  Good luck to 

you, sir.  Have a good day.  

  MR. LANDRETH:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  The last one 

trailing, Anthony Rocco?  Anthony Rocco?  

 Okay.  I'll call for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown. I move to 

uphold the denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  A motion and 

second.  Any further discussion?  
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 All right.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  

All those in favor of the motion, state "aye."   

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carried.  

 All right.  Mr. Ingram. 

 BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Chairman?   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Just for future 

reference. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes, sir. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  It took us 75 minutes to 

hear 12 cases.  And you know I cut off extended 

testimony, a couple of them, and some trailed.  So use 

that for future reference putting agendas together.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Absolutely.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Because there's no way, 

I think, we're going to get through all these today.  

There's just way too many.  And we have to let them 

speak.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  As well as discussion 

from the Board.  

 All right.  If no one has any issues, I'm going 

to call for a five-minute bio break.  And we'll come 

back on at 10:30.  I'm going to go to mute.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you.  
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  MR. INGRAM:  Everyone, please stand by.  The 

Board is on a short five-minute break, and they will 

resume shortly. 

* * * * * 

(A break was taken, 10:24 to 10:30 a.m.) 

* * * * * 

 MR. INGRAM:  So we will be starting with item 

number 121.  These are the individuals that were told to 

call in at 9:00 a.m. this morning.  So at this time, we 

will have items number 121 through 141 on the call.  So 

we'll have two different hours that are currently coming 

up.  Would you like me to go ahead and take roll call, 

sir? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  So we have Chairman Flynn.  

 Board Member Brown?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Here.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Board Member Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Here.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Board Member Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Here.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Legal, Michael Detmer?  

  MR. DETMER:  Present.  

  MR. INGRAM:  And Shannon Taylor?  

  THE REPORTER:  Present.  
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  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  We're good to go, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Do we need 

to swear anybody in, or?  

  MR. INGRAM:  I think, we should probably swear 

everybody in at this time.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Detmer, it's 

all yours.  

 MR. DETMER:  It would be my pleasure. 

 For those who are about to testify, do you 

hereby swear or affirm to tell the truth, the whole 

truth, and nothing but the truth?  

  (Applicants and witnesses present were 

sworn/affirmed.) 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  Do 

you want to update us on number 115, Mr. Ingram?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Sure, I'd be happy to.  After 

investigation, we have uncovered that this individual 

who testified, the company Secure Source is not licensed 

in Nevada.  We contacted the company and have confirmed 

that they are providing services in Nevada.  And we are 

following up with a complete investigation and will be 

moving forward with that here in the next day or so.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  So do we want 

to -- what's the best way to proceed with Mr. Williams?  

Do we want to put him on hold, or do we want to hear him 
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at 1:00 o'clock?  

  MR. INGRAM:  That's entirely up to the Board.  

Mr. Williams, being employed by an unlicensed company, 

you know, if the Board perceives his employment as him 

being misled and being able to work for the company 

legitimately in Nevada, the Board could find in that 

favor.  The Board could also find that, you know, he is 

part of an an unlicensed activity operation in Nevada 

and could potentially deny his appeal for that as well.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  For the sake 

of discussion, I'll just throw it out to the Board.  I 

have no issue hearing from him on the status of his 

card.  The fact that the company's unlicensed, and 

especially at his level of employment, I think, that 

would be out of his decision-making.  So I have no issue 

hearing him at 1:00 o'clock.  Because I felt he had time 

and distance.  But, you know, I'm only one person of 

four.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Board Member 

Nixon.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  Go ahead. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead, Tammy.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I agree with you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Bobby, you wanted 

to weigh in?  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah, I'm on the same 

page.  I have no problem when it's not his fault.  He's 

just got a job and he's happy.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  Then, 

we'll hear him when he calls in at 1:00.  And if by 

chance he calls in a little earlier, Kevin, we'll make 

sure to put him on. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Sounds good.  Thank you, sir. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Without any 

further -- without any further to-do, number 121, Brent 

Wheeler, are you here, sir?  

  MR. WHEELER:  Yes, sir, here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do you realize 

you're under oath?  

  MR. WHEELER:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I'll turn to 

it over to the investigator.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Saladino.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Is he in the office with 

you?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Each one of us are in our own 

office, sir.  Let me see if his phone is not connecting.  

  MR. SALADINO:  I'm here.  I had a headset  

issue.  Sorry about that.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  Thanks.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Go ahead, Vinny.  

It's all yours.  

  MR. SALADINO:  Okay.  We're on Mr. Wheeler, 

correct?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes, number 121.  

  MR. SALADINO:  All right.  Mr. Wheeler was 

denied for a 2009 felony battery with serious bodily 

injury.  The applicant was convicted, with three years 

probation, two years suspended prison sentence, and a 

fine.  The applicant disclosed the arrest and was 

sentenced to two years in prison, but it was suspended.  

He was placed on three years probation with conditions 

that he serve 90 days in jail, pay restitution and 

complete anger management classes. 

  On March 9th of 2012, the applicant -- the 

applicant committed to pay restitution in the amount of 

$130 per month.  The total restitution amount was 

$84,681.48.  This is what caused the applicant's 

probation to be extended to 12-2 of 2014.   

  The applicant did complete all of his terms for 

probation.  He subsequently was denied for his 

California repo license or work card.  However, he 

appealed that and was granted, after serving three years 

of probation for the Bureau of Security Investigation 

Services.  They concluded on July 16th of 2019.  He did 
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disclose the arrest and provided court documents, along 

with his BSI appeal and the information from the hearing 

where he was granted his work card for repossession in 

California. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  all right.  

Mr. Wheeler, I'm aware that this occurred in '09.  And 

I'm also aware that you disclosed, which I appreciate.  

Tell us the circumstances behind the battery with 

serious harm.  

  MR. WHEELER:  Yes, sir.  Well, it actually 

happened in 2005.  We went to -- I was in court for four 

to five years, you know, fighting it.  So it happened on 

December 23rd.  A couple and a girlfriend of mine had 

gone out for dinner and drinks.  And when we were 

leaving the bar, my friend's wife had gone up to the bar 

to pay the bill, and we were kind of standing bank at 

the door.  And she encountered another customer at the 

bar who was intoxicated and putting his hands on her and 

whispering in her ear and stuff.  So I noticed that 

standing from the door.  So I approached and kind of 

just put my back to him and kind of went in between just 

to let him know that, you know, she was there with 

somebody.  So he proceeded to grab my shoulder and turn 

me around and face him and said, you know, "What the F 

are you doing?"  And I said, "Well, this is my friend, 
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and we're paying our bill, and we're leaving," and I 

turned back around.  And he grabbed me again and spun me 

around, said, "No, that ain't right, man.  What are you 

doing?  Do you want to fight?" or whatever, whatever his 

accusation was, and said, "No, no."  I turned around, 

and he grabbed me one more time a little more 

aggressively and said, "No, I'm going to F you up."  And 

at that point, I struck him three times.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And did he go to 

the hospital?  

  MR. WHEELER:  Yes, he did.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Was he in a 

coma?  

  MR. WHEELER:  No, sir.  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  What was the serious 

injury?  

  MR. WHEELER:  A broken nose.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  Any 

other trouble with the police since then?  

  MR. WHEELER:  No, sir, not since, not never, 

never again, never before.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And what do you 

do for employment?  

  MR. WHEELER:  Currently, while I'm waiting for 

this appeal, I'm working for a swimming pool 
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construction company.  And then I would like to do my 

repossessions again.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  Any 

other questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Question for the 

investigator.  Gronauer. 

  MR. SALADINO:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Mr. Saladino, on the 

payback here, this seems to be a lot of money, $84,000.  

Has that been taken care of?  

  MR. SALADINO:  Yes, that has all been paid 

back.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  And we have 

paperwork on the management anger classes?  

  MR. SALADINO:  Correct, the court document show 

that all the terms for the probation have been met.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Thank you.  I 

appreciate it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 

questions from the Board?  

 All right.  Hearing none, I'll seek a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.  I move 

that we grant the appeal for Mr. Wheeler.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  Do I have a second?  
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  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

I have a second.  Any further discussion?  

 Okay.  Hearing none, call for a vote.  All 

those in favor, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  The motion 

carried.  Congratulations, Mr. Wheeler.  You have a good 

day.  

  MR. WHEELER:  Thank you very much.  You guys, 

too.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Number 122, Chyna 

Hawkins, are you here, ma'am?  

  MS. HAWKINS:  Hi.  Good morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Good 

morning.  Do you realize you're under oath?  

  MS. HAWKINS:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'm going to turn 

it over to the investigator. 

  MR. SALADINO:  The applicant was -- this is 

Investigator Saladino.  The applicant was denied for a 

2014 attempted robbery, out of California, which was a 

felony level.  She was found guilty, three years of 

probation.  And this was dismissed under 1203.4.  The 

applicant did disclose and provided the California 
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dismissal paperwork showing that the felony conviction 

was dismissed under 1203.4. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  

Ms. Hawkins, I appreciate your honesty in disclosing.  

Please tell us about what happened with this robbery.  

  MS. HAWKINS:  So, you know, I really do have a 

problem with the fact that they put robbery.  The reason 

why I have a problem with that is because the gentleman 

that assaulted me only called the Los Angeles police 

department because he knew that he was wrong.  So I was 

incriminated because of his false portrayals.   

  So the issue that I have with this gentleman is 

that, you know, me, being in a store, I was with, you 

know, other people, and, you know, I saw him physically 

assaulting a woman.  And because, you know, this woman, 

you know, she was African American.  I know these are 

like, oh, don't make it about race.  But I understand, 

as a young woman, at the age and at the time, that I 

have been a victim to, you know, racism and 

discrimination.  So what I do not like, because I have 

been a victim to domestic violence, is men putting their 

hands on women.  I am totally against that.  

 So with me trying to stop the man, I'm like, 

"Hey, excuse me."  Like, you know, and what he did 

instantly was swing at me. 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

444 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

 So it ended up in the altercation.  And instead 

of me calling the authorities, it's something that he 

took upon himself.  So with him calling -- 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Ms. Hawkins?  

Ms. Hawkins?  

  MS. HAWKINS:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Was the person here, was 

that person the store owner or store employee?  

  MS. HAWKINS:  Actually, he was like a secret 

shopper.  And that's why I'm like, "Well, I didn't take 

anything.  So how are you guys disclosing that, you 

know, this is a robbery?"  I could see if I walked into 

the store with a gun and say, "Hey, give me everything 

in the register."  That's something that did not happen.  

So that's why I say it was fault on his behalf.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  The person that he was 

arguing with, was that person involved in the 

shoplifting incident?  

  MS. HAWKINS:  No, I wasn't with the person.  I 

saw him antagonizing the person.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I didn't ask that.  I 

said, do you know what the circumstances were between 

him and the woman, before you got involved?  

  MS. HAWKINS:  No, just the fact that --   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  You 
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answered.  

  MS. HAWKINS:  -- I saw him putting his hands on 

the woman.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you.  

What are you doing now for employment?  

  MS. HAWKINS:  Oh, I thought I was able to 

explain all these things.  Okay.  Well, right now, since 

Covid --  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, I have --  

  MS. HAWKINS:  No, no, I completely understand.  

Nobody wants to hear about race.  Everybody wants to 

ignore it.  Nobody wants to hear about discrimination. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I did not --  

  MS. HAWKINS:  I'm just speaking on my behalf 

because I know I was a victim to this.  And the only 

reason why that I was even convicted was because I had a 

public defender that did not speak on my behalf.  And 

because I had no type of help on my family's behalf, I 

was a former foster youth, so I had no additional help.  

I had no one that I could reach out to.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Ms. Hawkins. 

  MS. HAWKINS:  I'm listening.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Ms. Hawkins.  

  MS. HAWKINS:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I asked you a question.  
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You answered it.  And I thanked you.  

  MS. HAWKINS:  Oh, okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I wanted to know what, I 

wanted to know what you're doing for employment now, so 

we understand your background before we make a decision.  

  MS. HAWKINS:  Okay.  Sorry.  I get excited.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You answered that.  I 

let you expand on why you thought it happened.  I asked 

some follow-up questions.  You answered them.  I made no 

statements whatsoever.  Okay.  You're the one that's 

brought up racism.  We've never mentioned that here at 

all.  So I'm asking you a question --   

  MS. HAWKINS:  No, that's fine.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  -- for background, is 

what are you doing now for employment, so I can 

understand the type of person that's before us now.  

  MS. HAWKINS:  Okay.  Well, with COVID-19, I 

really don't have resources as to working right now.  

But what I did is I reached out to several different 

type of employment agencies.  And I reached out to 

different type of jobs that I feel like I wouldn't mind 

doing.  Security just happens to come up.  Because I see 

that, you know, with like M.D. or like anything that 

pops up on these job seeker websites, that a lot of 

them, you know, include security.  So I was like, well, 
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you know what, I never really thought about it, but, you 

know, I don't mind doing something like that.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  But before Covid 

happened, what did you do for employment?  

  MS. HAWKINS:  I worked various.  Rowe.  I 

worked at MGM.  And I had, you know, done customer 

service.  I had done fast food.  I did a number of 

things.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay. 

  MS. HAWKINS:  I'm really like a go-getter.  So 

it doesn't really bother me. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right. 

  MS. HAWKINS:  As long as I can provide for my 

family.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you.  

Let me see if any other members of the Board have 

questions.  

 Any questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Mr. Chairman, I 

think --   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Hearing none, I'll call 

for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Mr. Chairman, this is 

Gronauer.  I'd like to make a statement first.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah.  Yeah, sure.  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Everybody on, everyone 

on the line knows, we don't see anybody, we don't have 

any pictures of anybody on these here, or anything else.   

We don't know what your race or anything else is.  And, 

actually, we don't really care.  What it's about is what 

we're talking about, is trying to get you back to work 

and get you a card.  That's for everybody to understand 

that.  So I don't know who's who or what's what on 

there.  And I don't think any other Board members know, 

either.  I just wanted to make it clear to everybody on 

the phone that --   

  MS. HAWKINS:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  -- we don't have 

pictures of them.  What we have right now is just what's 

in front of us, is their history, and they're working on 

their denial.  

  MS. HAWKINS:  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  With that --   

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Board Member Gronauer, 

thank you for that.  Than you for saying that, because I 

agree.  But I do have a quick question.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  For the investigator.  So 

it says found guilty, three years probation, dismissed.  

When did everything end, when was everything completed, 
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was it 2017?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And that question is for 

the investigator.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Yes.  

  MR. SALADINO:  I'm just, my computer's firing 

up here for this.  The 1203.4 dismissal was filed and 

signed off on December 16th of '19.  However, the court 

proceedings were completed in September 25th of 2017.  

So she was done with probation September 25th of 2017.  

And then, two years later, she was able to get the 

1203.4 expungement.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Gotcha.  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Any other 

questions?  

 All right.  I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  I'll make a 

motion.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I make a motion that we 

grant the appeal for Ms. Chyna Hawkins.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  I have a motion.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  This is Board 

Member Nixon.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  
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I have a second.  Any further discussion?  

 Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All those 

in favor, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carried.  

Ms. Hawkins, congratulations.  You have a good day.  

  MS. HAWKINS:  Oh, God bless you.  Thank you.  

  UNIDENTIFIED MAN:  Excuse me. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Number 123, Larry 

Benford, are you here?   

  UNIDENTIFIED MAN:  Excuse me. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Larry Benford?  

  UNIDENTIFIED MAN:  No.  I've been here since 

9:00 o'clock.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, so have I, sir.  

  Larry Benford, are you here?  

 Okay.  We're going to trail that one. 

 MR. SALADINO:  Mr. Chair, Investigator 

Saladino.  Mr. Benford was notified via telephone, mail 

certified, and email, and we had no response that he was 

going to attend.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'm still going 

to trail it, as I've done with others.  But thank you 

for letting us know that.  

 All right.  Number 124, Tarza Tell?  
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  MR. TELL:  Yes, I'm here. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Do you  

realize you're under oath, sir?  

  MR. TELL:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll turn it over 

to the investigator.  

  MR. JONES:  Investigator Jones.  The applicant 

was arrested in October of 2008, out of the state of 

California, for first-degree burglary.  This was a 

felony.  He served 180 days in jail, five years 

probation.  This was disclosed.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Tell, tell us 

about the burglary.  And I am aware that it was 12 years 

ago.  

  MR. TELL:  Yes.  This happened when I was 17.  

I just had my first kid.  It was a boy.  Then I was 

around my high school friends.  They weren't the right 

crowd.  So then they caught me six months later at an 

apartment with my kid.  Then I went to jail.  And now I 

have five kids.  I have four boys and one girl.  And I'm 

just trying to work and feed my family.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  What was the 

burglary, what did you burglarize?  

  MR. TELL:  It was a residential house.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And what are you 
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doing for employment these days?  

  MR. TELL:  I never actually had a job.  I've 

been on -- because I never had help as far as 

parent-wise.  So I've been on SSI like my whole life.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  So you 

haven't had a job your whole life?  

  MR. TELL:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  Any 

other questions from the Board?  

  MR. TELL:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  No, no, I'm asking the 

Board.  Thank you, sir.  Let's see if they got questions 

for you.   

  Any questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  To the applicant, are 

you living in Nevada now?  

  MR. TELL:  Yes.  I live in Nevada with my 

family.  I live by the Air Force base.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  How long have 

you lived here?  

  MR. TELL:  I've been here for like two and a 

half, three years.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  That's it.  
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Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  And this is Board Member 

Nixon.  Have you applied at different locations and, you 

know, have an offer as of yet?  

  MR. TELL:  No.  No.  No, I don't.  The only 

thing I applied for was the guard card license.  That's 

my first start.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Got it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 

questions?  

 Hearing none, I'll seek a motion. 

 BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.  I'll move 

to grant the appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

I have a second.  Any further discussion?  

 Just for the record, we've got time and 

distance.  It was one event.  I'm in favor of letting 

him try to get his first job, so.  

 All those in favor of the motion, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

 BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed?   

 Okay.  Motion carries.  Congratulations, 
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Mr. Tell.  Good luck to you.  

  MR. TELL:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Number 125, Ian Hain.  

  MR. HAIN:  Yes, sir, this is Ian Hain.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Hain, do you 

realize you're under oath?  

  MR. HAIN:  Yes, I do, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I'll turn  

it over to the investigator. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  The 

applicant was arrested in September of 2013 in Nevada 

for DUI resulting in serious bodily harm.  This was at 

the felony level.  The fingerprint report and court 

documents did not show any disposition.  He did disclose 

it.  And we do have court documents.  The applicant 

disclosed that he received two to five years in a 

correctional facility, and he was released after 15 

months and completed his parole.  The applicant came off 

paper on January 25th of 2016.  

 In the October 2013, in Nevada, conspiracy to 

commit burglary, a gross misdemeanor, he did disclose, 

and we do have court documents.  The applicant was 

sentenced to 364 days in jail to run concurrent with the 

above-mentioned sentence in arrest 1.  His was given 160 

days credit for time served.  
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 In January of 2012, in Nevada, he was arrested 

for supplying alcohol to minors.  This was at 

misdemeanor level.  There was no disposition available 

on the fingerprint report.  And this was not disclosed, 

and we do not have court docs.  

 The applicant was initially made provisional on 

6-3 of 2020 and was hired by Martin Ross and Associates, 

LLC, license number 1245, on 6-15 of 2020.  The arrests 

were confirmed and found on the fingerprint report.  He 

was denied on 7-21 of this year and terminated by Martin 

Ross and Associates the same day.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Mr. Hain, do you want to discuss your history 

there?  

  MR. HAIN:  Yes, sir.  This is Ian Hain.  So all 

that happened.  For that January 2012 charge of 

supplying minors with alcohol, I was actually a minor, 

and I did not get that charge.  I originally -- we were 

downtown Reno and ended up getting in a fight.  Somebody 

knocked my friend out.  So we got arrested.  And, I 

believe, I was only arrested for minor in consumption 

for that.  That's what my thought was.   

  Currently, I was in the Marine Corps.  So when 

my first sergeant found out that I got arrested, they 

called the jail and let me get out of jail and go back 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

456 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

to southern California, Camp Pendleton, where I got a 

page 11.   

  Currently, with what was going on there, I got 

injured in Afghanistan in January of 2010.  And I 

started having seizures.  So I was waiting for over two 

years to get medically discharged.  While my unit went 

on another deployment, I became really hell-bent on 

alcohol consumption to the point where that's pretty 

much what I did on a day-to-day basis.   

  And then, September, when I got into that DUI 

accident, the charge from October was actually -- I 

don't know why it says October.  It was from the day 

before September 1st when I got into my accident.  I was 

going on a weekend binge out in Fernley.  And I ended up 

running into an ex-friend that was causing problems with 

parents.  And we got in a fight in his front yard.  So 

that's the burglary with battery.  It later got dropped 

down to conspiracy to commit burglary when I was going 

to trial for that while I was in prison.   

  I got out of prison for the DUI substantial 

bodily harm.  One of my best friends broke his back.  He  

spoke on my behalf.  That's why I got sentenced from two 

to five.  

 And since then, you know, I've learned.  You 

know, I go to meetings.  I go to church.  I've got a 
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wife now, a son now.  I've stayed out of trouble ever 

since then.  I've been trying to find my place in the 

work force.  Most recently, I was doing tow trucking, 

before Martin Ross.  And then I switched to Martin Ross 

because, with all the hours that I was working as a tow 

truck driver, I was diagnosed with diabetes, and I 

couldn't really focus on food and my medicine.  So I 

took an easier job.   

 And then Martin Ross, I got originally got 

approved and then found out that I have to go through 

the appeal process.  So that's what I'm doing today.  

And I just want to let you guys know that I appreciate 

your time, and I really have changed for the better.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Hain, first 

off, I want to thank you for your service to our country 

and as well as the sacrifice that you gave.  And I 

appreciate your comments and your honesty and what 

you've done for self-improving.  I have no questions.  I 

will ask the Board if they have any questions, and we'll 

proceed.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  To the applicant, you 

said you're routinely attending meetings?  

  MR. HAIN:  Yes.  It has been a little difficult 
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with Covid, but I do.  We do some Zoom meetings with NA.   

I do NA just because, you know, alcohol, to them, is a 

drug.  And I found out that they're more family-oriented 

than AA.  But I do attend. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  Thank you.  

And Semper Fi to you.  But the other part about this is, 

are you familiar with the alcohol, the veterans court in 

Las Vegas, Las Vegas Township and also in Henderson?  

  MR. HAIN:  I, while I was going through the 

trial, I did not know about the veterans court.  I only 

found out about the veterans court after I was in 

prison.  So I couldn't, as to my knowledge, use that to 

help me out anymore.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  Well, you 

still could reach out to them, and they could still help 

you get to certain places and keep you helping and maybe 

use you as a mentor.  I'm just giving you that advice.  

Okay?  

  MR. HAIN:  Yes, sir.  Thank you so much.  I'll 

keep that in mind.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  And, also, 

thank you for the service.  

  MR. HAIN:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any other questions?  

 Okay.  Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion.  
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  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.  I move we 

grant the appeal of Mr. Hain.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I have a 

motion.  I have a second.  Any further discussion?   

  Okay.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All 

those in favor, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carries.  

Mr. Hain, congratulations.  You have a good day.  

  MR. HAIN:  You, too.  Thank you so much.  God 

bless you all.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Number 126, 

Tijuan Robertson?  Mr. Tijuan Robertson?   

  All right.  I'm going to trail this one.  

  Number 127, Marvin Warren?  

  MR. WARREN:  Yes, I'm here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Warren, do 

you understand you're under oath?  

  MR. WARREN:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I'll turn it 

over to the investigator.  

  MR. JONES:  Investigator Jones.  The applicant 
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has listed several felonies and several other arrests, 

all of which occurred in the state of Nevada.   

  In February of 2011, the applicant was arrested 

for attempted murder and assault with a deadly weapon.  

The fingerprint report does not show disposition.  

However, the applicant states that he was convicted of 

this.  

 In May of 2014, he was initially arrested for 

two counts of burglary.  This was reduced to one count 

of attempted burglary at the felony level, and he was 

sentenced to up to 30 months incarcerated.  

 In August of 2016, he was arrested again for 

possession to sell a Schedule I or II substance and was 

sentenced to 48 months.   

 UNIDENTIFIED MAN:  Excuse me. 

 MR. JONES:  I'm sorry.  Did someone say 

something? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Continue, please.  

  MR. JONES:  In May of 2014, there was another 

arrest for conspiracy to commit criminal contempt.  This 

was a gross misdemeanor.  And this was not disclosed.  

The fingerprint report does not show a disposition.  

 In 2015, we have contempt of municipal court.  

 In July of 2016, we have possession of 

marijuana less one ounce, misdemeanor.  This was 
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dismissed and confirmed by the fingerprint report.   

 And again in 2016, we have contempt of 

municipal court, and the disposition is unknown.  

 All of the felonies were disclosed and 

confirmed by the fingerprint report.  However, none of 

the misdemeanors were disclosed.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Warren, do 

you want to explain what happened and, also, why you 

didn't disclose the misdemeanors?  

  MR. WARREN:  Yeah, sure.  When it came to the 

misdemeanors, honestly, I didn't, I didn't really know 

what the misdemeanors exactly were.  But I knew what my 

felonies were.  So that's why I disclosed the felonies.  

  But when it comes to the 2011 arrest, I was 

arrested for attempt murder.  I was --   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, and I got a lot of 

background.  Those of you that are on the call, unless 

you're the applicant, you need to go on mute.  You need 

to go on mute, please, unless you're the applicant.  

  Okay.  Mr. Warren, let's try again.  

  MR. WARREN:  Okay.  So, once again, like I 

said, when it came to the felonies, it is pretty much 

all the charges I've pretty much known about.  When it 

came to the misdemeanors, I didn't really know what the 

misdemeanors were.  I didn't really know the exact 
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charges to list them.   

  And in the 2011 arrest, I was a 16-year-old.  I 

was arrested for attempt murder.  I was convicted for 

assault with the use.  I did two years in YOP, which was 

in High Desert State Prison.  I was convicted for nine, 

or, no, it was 24 to 48 months.   

  I was just young.  I mean a lot was going on in 

my life at the time.  I did assault the person.  I 

didn't injure anyone.  But I did assault the person as 

far as his life, you know.  So.  And I do regret the 

situation.  I mean I did do my time.  And I've grown 

from it. 

  From the 2014 arrest, the attempt burglary, I 

was with a couple of friends.  I was 18.  I had probably 

been out for like a year from my 2011 arrest, with some 

friends and everything, and we were just messing 

together, whatever.  And we was, we were going to 

burglarize a residential home.  And we saw that we were 

on camera, so we just left the scene.  And I ended up 

getting caught a little bit later, or whatever.  And I 

was convicted of an attempt burglary.  I was convicted 

for -- I think, I did, I think, it was 19 to 48 for that 

one.  

 And then, for the sales, the most recent sales 

felony, I ended up selling some marijuana to an 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

463 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

undercover cop.  And I -- I was in the hard times at the 

time.  I was, you know, I was pretty much trying to 

figure out a way to make some money, or whatever, and 

didn't see that it was the right way, so.  And now I'm 

just, you know, looking toward the future now.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  What are you doing for 

employment these days?  

  MR. WARREN:  As of right now, I was working for 

B&B Glass.  But due to the pandemic, you know, it's hard 

to travel.  And I was also doing temp for -- what's it 

called?  Odyssey.  And that's for like, they work 

like -- I don't really know exactly what to say, but we 

do like maintenance.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  Thank 

you.  

 Any questions from the Board?   

 BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  So I'm just a little 

confused.  He was convicted.  But no one was hurt.  I'm 

not sure.  

  MR. WARREN:  Like I said, I was convicted of 

assault with the use of a deadly weapon.  No one was 

injured as far as like no one, no one, like no injury 

was like was inflicted.  It was at first, but they 

dropped the charge from attempted murder.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  So, Mr. Warren, 
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just for clarification, you fired a gun at somebody and 

missed?  

  MR. WARREN:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer, for 

the applicant.  Mr. Warren.   

  MR. WARREN:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  When did you finally 

get released from prison, the last time you've been 

released?  

  MR. WARREN:  The last time I was released was 

December, I believe, 18, 2018.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any other questions?   

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Hearing 

none, I'll call for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Board Member Brown has 

something.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Oh, I'm sorry.  I 

couldn't hear him.  Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is for both the 

investigator and the applicant.  I'm a little confused, 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

465 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

looking at the dial sheet.  In July of 2016, you were 

arrested for possession of marijuana.  You said that was 

the last charge.  But then a month later, you're 

arrested for possession to sell a Schedule I or II drug 

and conspiracy to violate the Uniform Controlled 

Substance Act.  

  MR. WARREN:  Yes.  Oh, I'm sorry.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Explain that to me.  

They're two separate charges, correct?  

  MR. WARREN:  Yes, yes.  First, I was arrested, 

I was arrested of selling a controlled -- or no, no.  I 

was arrested of possession of a controlled substance at 

a friend's house.  I had some, I had some cocaine and 

some marijuana on me, or whatever.  And they're illegal 

substances at the time, so, and one of them is 

definitely an illegal substance.  So I went to jail for 

that.  And, I believe, they ran that concurrent with the 

2016 arrest of the Uniform Substance Act, Controlled 

Substance Act.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  But, so the first 

one, you were arrested for marijuana and cocaine.  What 

were you arrested on, on the second one, in 2016?  

  MR. WARREN:  The sale, like I said, that was 

the sale to the undercover.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Were you out on 
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bail on the first charge?  

  MR. WARREN:  No, well, I was out.  They had 

released me because -- oh, because it was in North 

Las Vegas, and they transferred me to the county, and I 

didn't, I don't think, I think that I had like court or 

something like that, like they had just released me for 

court.  They just had released me like for court.  They 

just gave me a paper and said I had court in North 

Las Vegas.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any other questions from 

the Board?   

  All right.  I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Board Member 

Nixon.  I move that we uphold the denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any further discussion?  

 I'll just add that it is my opinion that we 

don't have enough time and distance.  There's been a 

significant amount of activity.  

 All right.  All those in favor of the motion, 

state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed?  

 Okay.  Motion carried.  Okay.  Sir, good luck 

to you.  You can reapply in a year.  

  Okay.  Number 128.   

  We still have somebody with a lot of 

background.  If you're not Mr. William Evans, please put 

your phone on mute.  I've still got a phone with a lot 

of -- Mr. Evans, are you here?  Call Mr. Evans a second 

time?   

 MR. SALADINO:  Mr. Chair, Investigator 

Saladino.  Again, we had tried telephone, email, and 

sent certified and regular mail.  We did not hear back 

from Mr. Evans.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  

Number 129.  And then I'm trailing that.  129, Noah 

Borden?  

  MR. BORDEN:  Here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Borden, do 

you realize you're under oath?  

  MR. BORDEN:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'm going to turn 

this over to the investigator. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  In 2009, 

out of California, the applicant was charged with the 

offense of throwing substance at a vehicle, at 
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misdemeanor level.  Disposition was 15 days jail.  This 

was disclosed, and we do have court documents.  

 In August of 2009, also in California, the 

charge was burglary first degree at a felony level.  

Disposition showed four years probation and six months 

jail.  This was disclosed, and we do have court 

documents.  

 January 2010, California, there was a violation 

on the probation and a rearrest and revoke of probation.  

And this links into item number 4.  

 In March 2010, burglary first degree, at felony 

level.  Disposition is two years prison.  He did 

disclose, and we do have court documentation.  

 The applicant disclosed the arrests and was not 

made provisional.  The arrests were confirmed with the 

fingerprint report and court documents.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Mr. Borden, 

why don't you explain to us the nature of your arrests.  

  MR. BORDEN:  Like the burglary?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, all of them, sir.  

  MR. BORDEN:  The first one, I really don't 

remember.  I just, I think, I was 18.  And --  

  (The Reporter asked Mr. Borden to speak 

louder.) 

  MR. BORDEN:  My first one, I think, I was 18.  
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And I had family, a lot of family members, a lot of --   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Borden? 

  MR. BORDEN:  Yes. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Borden, we're going 

to have to figure out your phone, because we can barely 

hear you.  It sounds like, I could be wrong, but you're 

outside, and you may be walking.  There's a lot of 

background noise.  So either go indoors, speak louder, 

or I'm going to have to postpone you for later on today.  

  MR. BORDEN:  Hello.  Is this better?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I still have background.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Chair, this is Kevin Ingram.  

I believe that we still have somebody else that has not 

muted their phone.  

 Anyone that is currently on this call, who is 

not speaking to the Board Chair at this time, place your 

phone on mute, please.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Let's try it 

again.  Go ahead, sir.  

  MR. BORDEN:  Yes.  Well, at 18, I had some 

family members that was throwing rocks on the freeway.  

And I --   

  (The Reporter interrupted, trouble hearing the 

applicant.) 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I'm going to 
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try one more time.  After that, Mr. Borden, I'm going to 

have to ask you to call back in and maybe get a better 

circuit or a better line.  Because we cannot hear you, 

and that doesn't help your case here.  

  MR. BORDEN:  So do I call in again, or no?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, don't know what 

kind of phone you're using.  It sounds like you're 

muffled.  Are you in, are you by yourself, or you're out 

in public?  

  MR. BORDEN:  Yes.  I'm by myself.  I'm at home 

actually.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  There's some other 

outside interference here.  Somebody else has their 

phone on.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Again, everyone that is currently 

on this call, you need to place your phone on mute.  If 

you don't, we will not be able to proceed with the 

hearings today.  So whoever is outside with horns 

honking and traffic in the background, place your phone 

on mute.  This is going to be the last request.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Kevin?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes, sir.  I believe that that 

phone is now on mute, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'd love to know who 

that is.   
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  All right.  Mr. Borden, please proceed.  

  MR. BORDEN:  Okay.  At 18, I was arrested 

for --   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You need to speak up, 

Mr. Borden.  

  MR. BORDEN:  I said, at 18, I was arrested for 

obstructing against an officer.   

  And then the burglary case, that was something 

that happened, but it wasn't actually burglary.  But I 

went to the house.  Somebody was there.  I thought it 

was vacant.  And the stuff that I took was replaced to 

the people.  And one of the neighbors pointed me out.  

And I ended up going to jail for that and released.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Any questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.  I don't 

want to draw this out any longer.  But what was the 

probation violation that got you to serve your full 

sentence for the burglary, sir? 

  MR. BORDEN:  Since I was going to school, and I 

didn't know the -- read the like -- basically, I didn't 

tell them I changed my address.  Because I moved out 

from my old place.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.  And if 

I understood you correctly during all the muffle, the 
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throw the substance at the vehicle, you were 18 years 

old, and you were throwing rocks at cars?  

  MR. BORDEN:  No.  I had younger siblings that 

was throwing rocks on the freeway, and I went down there 

to get them, because one of the people told me that they 

saw my sister and brother down there.  And I went down 

there.  The officer told me to leave.  And I didn't 

leave, because I told them I couldn't go back to the 

house without them.  And he took me to jail. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 

questions from the Board?  

 All right.  Hearing none, I'll call for a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.  I'll move 

to grant the appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

 I'll call for a second.  

 Okay.  I don't have a second.  Motion failed.  

I'll call for a new motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I'm not sure during the 

muffle.  I have a quick question.  When was the 

last incident?  I want to make sure we have time and 

distance.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  For the investigator, 

she wants to know when the last contact was, the last 

arrest?   

  MR. MAXWELL:  My apologies there.  You cut out 

there.  The last arrest, according to the fingerprint 

report, was March 25th of 2010.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Can I go back and 

second the first motion?  Sorry.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, we need -- yeah, I 

know what you want to do.  But technically and by 

Robert's Rules, we need a new motion, because the first 

one failed, and I called it.  So I'm seeking a new 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I move that we grant the 

appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown seconds.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I have a 

motion.  I have a second.  Any further discussion?   

  Okay.  All those in favor, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  The motion 

passes.  Congratulations, Mr. Borden.  You have a good 

day.  
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  MR. BORDEN:  Thank you.  You, too.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Number 130, 

Anthony Herrera.  

  MR. HERRERA:  Yes, this is Anthony Herrera.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do you realize 

you're under oath, sir?  

  MR. HERRERA:  Yes, I do.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll let the 

investigator proceed. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  The 

applicant was arrested on October 1995, out of 

California, for attempted murder at felony level.  This 

was while he was a juvenile.  And he did not disclose, 

and we do not have court documents.  And this explains 

the item number 2, which is December 29th, 1999, 

California, violation of parole at felony level.  There 

is no disposition available for this.  This was not 

disclosed, and we do not have court documents.  

 5-4-2000, California, parole was revoked.  This 

is felony.  No disposition available.  This was not 

disclosed, and we do not have court documents.  

 September 23rd, 2000, in Arizona, disorderly 

conduct, possession of a weapon by a prohibited person, 

felony level.  The disposition shows 2.25 years in 

Arizona Department of Corrections.  This was disclosed 
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on the application as a gross misdemeanor.  

 March 3rd, 2007, in California, felon, 

et cetera, possession of a firearm, felony level.  This 

was disclosed on the application as a gross misdemeanor.  

The disposition was convicted, committed to prison, 20 

months prison under the Street Gang Act.  This was 

disclosed, and we do have court documents.  

 8-4-07, California, possess controlled 

substance for sale, at felony level.  This was disclosed 

on the application as a gross misdemeanor.  Convicted, 

committed to prison, 96 months prison.  Disposition also 

states felony while on bail or recognized under the 

Street Gang Act.  It was disclosed.  We do have court 

docs.  

 7-24 of '13, in California, possession of a 

controlled substance in prison, felony level.  

Disposition showed convicted, probation and jail, four 

years prison, which was a suspended sentence, four years 

probation and, also, a fine.  This was not disclosed, 

and we do not have court documents.  

 2-24-2015, California, parole violation at 

unknown level.  There was no disposition available for 

this.  Did not disclose.  No court documents.  

 3-5 of '15, California, parole violation again, 

level unknown.  Also, no disposition.  This was not 
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disclosed.  No court documents.  

 10-12-2017, California, sodomy with force, 

unknown level.  Disposition shows that the prosecution 

released, it was detention only, and he was released and 

let go because of lack of sufficient evidence.  This was 

not disclosed, and we do not have court documents.  

 The applicant disclosed arrests four, five and 

six.  He was not made provisional and was denied on 

7-9-2020.  The arrests were found and confirmed with the 

fingerprint report and court documents. 

 BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you. 

 All right.  Mr. Herrera, please explain.  

  MR. HERRERA:  Okay.  For one, I'm pretty bad at 

dates.  So those are probably the reason why I didn't 

disclose as far as '95.  I wasn't quite sure if I was to 

disclose that, because it was longer than 10 years ago, 

which was when I was a juvenile.  I'm currently 42 years 

old.  Those happened when I was 16 years old.  

 As far as my gun charges, they weren't involved 

in no crimes or anything.  They were just, one was found 

on me, and another one was found in my house.  They were 

never involved in no crimes or anything along those 

lines.   

 When I was younger, I did have a drug issue 

when I was younger.  And I've pretty much got that 
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tamed, as I've got 13 years clean under sobriety.   

 As far as my violation, as far as in 2015, the 

violation was I had some photos on my phone, which were 

probably when I was probably like 16, 17 years old.  And 

when my parole officer seen those photos, he basically 

said, "You know, that's a violation."  And he took me 

in.  And then, once it -- he told me, "Okay, that I'll 

give you back your phone.  You have to delete the 

photos."  No problem.  I deleted the photos.  It was a 

done deal.  

 As far as '17, for, what is it, sodomy or 

something like that, it was with my wife.  You know, me 

and her had a big disagreement.  There was no physical 

altercations or anything along those lines.  When I went 

to jail, I went there for like two or three days.  I 

went to court, and the court threw it out, because there 

was no evidence or anything along those lines as far as 

that.  

 Since then, since I've been out, since I've 

been out of prison, I have currently enrolled in 

college.  I did three semesters in college.  I'm 

currently -- well, not currently.  Right before I moved 

to Las Vegas, and I've been in Vegas since July 1st, 

before that, I was a drug and alcohol counselor for NFI 

in Riverside, California.  And so I can't continue the 
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drug and alcohol counseling in California out here 

because the recommendations are different.  They want 

you to have a bachelor's degree out here.  Which, in 

California, their credentials are different.   

 So, you know, so now I'm just trying to look 

for a different field.  I applied for different 

positions as far as with security jobs, and they all 

required a guard card.  So that's where I find myself 

doing this.  

 I am currently employed right now.  I'm a 

custodian at a gym.  And I just changed my life 

dramatically, you know, and I'm just trying to look for 

that chance to grow and do something better with my 

life.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Any other questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Board Member 

Nixon.  I'm just trying to determine time and distance.  

So on, it looks like the last incident that was had with 

law enforcement was, it's a very minimum, or it's a 

very -- in 2015.  Because we have parole violation, no 

disposition and not disclosed.  So is that outstanding, 

and what does that mean?  And maybe that's for the 

investigator. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  There was 
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no disposition on the fingerprint reports to show when 

he actually finished his parole.  So I'm unable to get 

that at the moment.  But I'm looking through the 

paperwork again just to see if I can find something.  So 

if you could just bear with me a second.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Board Member Brown.  While 

Investigator Maxwell is looking at the question, for the 

applicant, are you still on paper, sir?  

  MR. HERRERA:  No, I'm not.  I am currently off 

of all paper.  I currently paid off all my restitution 

fees.  I have been in no trouble or anything along those 

lines since then.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  And when did your 

parole end, that you satisfied your parole?  

  MR. HERRERA:  I want to say, I'm almost 

thinking, I think, it was 2016, I want to say.  It was a 

little bit after my violation.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you, sir.  

  MR. HERRERA:  You're welcome.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 

questions?  

 All right.  Hearing none, I'll call for a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Board Member 
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Nixon.  I move that we uphold the denial.  There's just 

not enough time and distance here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I have a 

motion and a second.  Any further discussion?   

  All right.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  

All those in favor of the motion, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carries.  

Mr. Herrera, you can reapply in a year.  Good luck to 

you, sir.  

  MR. HERRERA:  All right.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Ingram, for future 

planning, we've been going an hour, and I've done one, 

two, three, four, five, six, seven, eight, nine, ten, 

including three that are trails.  Please factor that in 

next time we have an agenda.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Number 131, 

Christopher Dunn.  

  MR. DUNN:  This is number 131, Christopher 

Dunn.  I am here.  I am fully aware that I am under 

oath. 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

481 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you. 

  All right.  Investigator, please proceed. 

  MR. DUNN:  Let me add some details.  I believe, 

I can save the Board some time.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, no, Mr. Dunn, this 

is our meeting. 

  MR. DUNN:  Okay. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  So please hold on there, 

and I'm going to have the investigator speak.  

  MR. DUNN:  Certainly.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Thank you.  

  MS. IRIZARRY:  Hi.  Good morning.  Chief 

Irizarry.  Mr. Dunn was denied for a 1980 carrying 

concealed weapon without a permit, misdemeanor offense, 

out of South Carolina.  He did not disclose the offense 

on his application.  He received a $108 fine, and the 

gun was confiscated.  Mr. Dunn was made provisional, and 

he was incorrectly allowed by staff to take the firearm 

course prior to being made active.  After being made 

provisional, he went to work an armed position for a 

licensee from April 21st, 2020 until he was -- they were 

notified when his fingerprints came back and I contacted 

them on July 28, 2020.  

 Mr. Dunn, I wanted to point out, when he had 

applied, it was during the time that our office was 
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closed due to quarantine.  So when he had applied, it 

was online.  When we opened back up, by that time, in 

May, he had already received his provisional and was 

allowed to take the firearm course.  It wasn't until we 

got the fingerprints back that I notified them of the 

weapons offense, that his card was denied.  He has since 

been denied and let go by the company pending his 

appeal.  He has provided a police report and his 8214 

military documents as well as special military 

clearance.  So his firearms rights have been restored.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.   

Mr. Dunn, the issue is the fact that you didn't 

disclose.  And the Board and I are well-aware that this 

occurred 40 years ago.  And, obviously, that will be 

taken into consideration.  So please explain to us why 

you didn't disclose.  

  MR. DUNN:  Sir, I had lived a lifetime of 

having a secret and top secret security clearance as an 

adult, you know.  I held a top secret security clearance 

for sensitive compartmented information access, which is 

SCI.  And, I guess, I was kind of flippant, and that's a 

fault of mine, when I was filling out the application on 

line.  I had a couple of distractions.  Later, it dawned 

on me, oh, I didn't disclose it.  Well, it was difficult 

to try to find somebody to try to get that fixed.  I 
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couldn't do it online, once I realized it.  And, you 

know, the COVID-19 thing was going on.  I got busy with 

work that I was doing, and I was happy to have found 

that work with my brother's prior special forces.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  What do you do 

currently for employment?  

  MR. DUNN:  Well, I'm retired Army, I'm retired 

Special Forces with about 25 years.  And I'm not doing 

anything right now.  I'm on hold until I get this PILB.  

If I don't get this PILB, I'm not going to be able to do 

anything.  Right now, really, and I want to make this 

clear to the Board, right now, first of all, I'm 

embarrassed to be -- having to be before the Board.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Dunn?    

  MR. DUNN:  Yes?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I want to help you.  And 

in this case, less may be more.  So let us proceed.  

Okay?  

  MR. DUNN:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Anything 

other questions from the Board?  

 Okay.  I'll call for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.  I move to 

grant the appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  
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Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I second.  

And I just want to qualify.  Typically, I wouldn't 

because of the nondisclosure.  But because of the office 

closure and everything else, I'm a little bit kinder 

maybe.  But I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And I'll add on 

the discussion.  This occurred 40 years ago.  The 

gentleman's had no other incidents in his past.  It was 

a misdemeanor from 40 years ago.  He served honorably in 

the Army and retired.  So I don't have an issue with 

this, so.  

 All right.  I'll call for a vote.  All those in 

favor, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any opposed?  

 The motion carried.  Congratulations, Mr. Dunn.  

You have a good day.  

  MR. DUNN:  Thank you, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  

William Cannon II, number 132.  

  MR. CANNON:  I'm here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Cannon, are 

you aware, realize you're under oath?  

  MR. CANNON:  Yes, sir.  



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

485 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll turn this 

over to the investigator. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  In 1993, 

out of California, the applicant was charged with 

carrying a CCW in a vehicle.  This was at misdemeanor 

level.  The disposition showed probation, jail.  The 

fingerprint report did not show the specifics of the 

disposition.  They did not disclose.  We do not have 

court documents.   

  The applicant was initially made provisional on 

12-24-2019 and was hired by Contemporary Services 

Corporation, license number 1621, on January 22nd of 

this year.  He was denied on 2-3 of this year and 

terminated from CSC on 2-6 of this year.  The arrest was 

not disclosed and was found on the fingerprint report.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Cannon, do 

you want to explain what happened here and why you 

didn't disclose?  

  MR. CANNON:  I don't recall not disclosing.  

There were a couple questions, I think, I was kind of 

confused on in regards to the misdemeanor and the felony 

questions.  So, I think, I got a little confused there 

on the application.   

  But just to brief you guys on the situation, at 

the time, I was trying to apply for an armed guard card.  
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I was -- the information I was told to do was go to a 

place called the West L.A. Gun Club, which held a 

firearms course.  So I was told to go down there, 

register for that course, and take the course, and then 

come back to the place where I was trying to apply to, 

to get my guard card.  

 On my way home, driving through Culver City, I 

had a traffic ticket.  This is why I was arrested.  It 

was a traffic ticket that I didn't pay.  And it turned 

into a bench warrant.  That's what caused me to get  

pulled over.  When I pulled over, the officer said, "You 

have a warrant for your arrest."  And I'm, you know, I'm 

confused, because I completely forgot.  And he said, "It 

was a traffic ticket you didn't pay."  And I, "Oh," I 

said, "for the headlights?"  And he said, "Yeah."  I 

said, "Okay."   

 And so he asked me to get out of the car.  

Well, he asked me if I had any weapons in my car.  Now, 

being that I was just coming home from the West L.A. Gun 

Club, the idea was I went down there with my firearm, 

and I was going to try and take the course.  But I had 

to register for the next course that was coming up, so 

on my way home 

 My confusion, well, my big confusion was, was 

the concealed, the word "concealed."  Now, in 
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Los Angeles, it's a little trickier.  I'm thinking, if I 

have it in my trunk, I'm hiding it.  If I have it in my 

glove compartment, I'm hiding it, in the glove 

compartment, I'm hiding it.  So my idea, as a young guy, 

is to keep my gun unloaded, which it was unloaded, and 

just to have it on the seat next to me, because it's not 

concealed.  I'm not hiding it.  I'm trying to have it in 

the wide open, right?  

 So the officer pulls me over.  He asked me if I 

have any weapons.  I put my hands up, and I said, "Yes.  

I have my firearm.  It's right here next to me.  It's 

registered in my name."  He pulled his weapon out, and 

he asked me to get out of the car.  He opened the door 

for me.  I got out.  He explained to me that I'm being 

arrested for the warrant, I have to go to court because 

I didn't pay a traffic warrant, it's a bench warrant 

now.  It just so happens that I had y firearm in the car 

with me.  And not understanding how to carry it is what 

got me the concealed weapons charge.  

 Now, the way it should be carried in 

California, it has to be in a locked compartment, in a 

safe.  It has to have a lock actually going through the 

gun.  And the bullets have to be in another compartment.  

So it was a matter of how it was being carried.  And 

that's pretty much what happened.  
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 As far as how I filled it out on the 

application, I think, I was confused.  Because I don't 

have any felonies.  I've never been to prison, never, 

nothing.  My record's clean, other than this misdemeanor 

here.  They let me out on O.R.   

 That's pretty much the whole situation.  I was 

trying to get a security job at that time.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Dunn, I accept your 

explanation.  You're becoming repetitive.  The question 

was why you didn't disclose.  And you said you were 

confused by the application, is that correct?  

  MR. CANNON:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Why is the application 

confusing, why is the application confusing to you?  

Because I've read that application a bunch of times.  I 

just want your opinion.  

  MR. CANNON:  Well, I don't know if it's the way 

the question is phrased.  Because I don't have any 

misdemeanors.  But then it asks if I have -- see, I 

can't, I can't think of how it's actually phrased, but.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, I'll tell you 

what.  I'm going to, I'm going to have one of the 

staff -- Mr. Dunn, I'll have one of the staff read the 

question.   

  MR. CANNON:  Okay. 
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  MR. MAXWELL:  Mr. Chair, this is Investigator 

Maxwell.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  The question is phrased "Have you 

ever been convicted of a crime involving the illegal use 

or possession of a dangerous weapon?" 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.   

  All right.  Any questions from the Board?   

  Oh, and I apologize, Mr. Cannon.  And what are 

you doing now for employment?  

  MR. CANNON:  Well, right now, I'm a personal 

trainer.  I've been working at 24-Hour Fitness.  So I 

went to school for that.  And 24-Hour Fitness has closed 

down.  Previous to that, for the past 18 years -- I 

moved to Las Vegas, been here since 2018.  For the past 

18 years, I was working as a bookkeeper in Los Angeles 

for an accounting firm.  Since I've been here to 

Las Vegas, I've gotten my concealed firearms permit.  

Even the State of California has issued me a California 

Department of Justice handgun and safety certificate.  

You know, I've been issued these things.   

  So I don't know.  Like I said, when I answered 

the question, I don't know, I didn't know exactly how to 

answer the question.  Because I don't know.  I'm 

figuring that has been gone off my record.  I don't know 
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how to answer the question.  I think, I was confused 

right there.  But I know I have no record. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Listen, I believe you're 

confused.  You'll know how to answer the question in the 

future.  

  MR. CANNON:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  And thank 

you for explaining what you're doing now.   

  So any questions from the Board?   

  Okay.  Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Board Member 

Nixon.  Due to the nondisclosure, again, I just, our 

preference is to not approve.  And so I'd move that we 

uphold the denial of the guard card.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I have a 

motion and a second.  Any further discussion?  

 I'll call for a vote.  All those in favor, 

state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No.  Nay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed, state 

"nay."  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Nay.  Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  So we got 

three-one.  The motion does carry.  Mr. Dunn, you can 

reapply in a year.  Please, please, disclose everything, 

and things might go a different way.  

  MR. CANNON:  Sir, my name's not Mr. Dunn.  I 

don't know if we have the right one.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm sorry.  Mr. Cannon.  

Mr. Cannon.  My apologies.  I'm juggling 189 files in 

front of me.  

  MR. CANNON:  Yeah, I know.  I've been on the 

phone for an hour and a half listening.  I feel for you 

guys.  I feel for you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you. 

  All right.  Number 133, James Douglas. 

  MR. CANNON:  I don't, I don't, I didn't get my 

decision. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Douglas, are you 

here? 

  MR. CANNON:  Is there a yes, or is there a no?  

I didn't get a decision.  I didn't hear it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Oh, the motion was to 

deny the appeal.  It was a vote of three to one.  You 

can reapply in a year.  My suggestion to you is when you 

reapply, please disclose everything.  
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  MR. CANNON:  But I just heard some guy 

previously disclose his, but you guys appealed him, you 

approved him through.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, I don't need to 

explain my decision.  But because you seem like a 

reasonable man, his was 40 years ago.  

  MR. CANNON:  Right.  And this was, what, 27.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  He served his country 25 

years in combat. 

  MR. CANNON:  27 years, sir. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I am done.  Thank 

you, sir.  You have a good day.  

  MR. CANNON:  Okay.  You, too, sir, have a great 

one.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Number 133, James 

Douglas?  

  MR. ROBERTSON:  Did you call the one for 

Robertson yet, or no?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Number 133, James 

Douglas, are you here?  

 Okay.  I'm going to trail that.   

 Number 134, Bernard Williams?  Mr. Bernard 

Williams?   

 I'm going to trail that.  

 Mr. Marc Williams, number 135.  Marc Williams?  
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  MR. WILLIAMS:  Yes, I'm here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Williams, 

thank you for attending.  Do you realize you're under 

oath?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I will turn  

this over to the investigator. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  I'm just 

waiting for it to load up, sir.  Okay.  1991, out of 

California, the applicant was charged with inflicting 

corporal injury on spouse/cohabitant.  This is at 

misdemeanor level.  Disposition showed 24 months 

probation and 30 days jail.  This was not disclosed.  We 

do not have court documents.  

 1992, out of California, inflict corporal 

injury on spouse/cohabitant.  This was at misdemeanor 

level.  36 months probation, 365 days suspended jail 

sentence.  This was disclosed.  And no court documents.  

 1995, California, forgery and burglary, 

misdemeanor level, three years probation, 20 days jail, 

no disclosure, no courts docs.  

 1997, California, battery, misdemeanor, 36 

months probation, no disclosure, no court docs.  

 1999, out of California, annoying phone call, 

obscene, threat, misdemeanor level, two years probation, 
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45 days jail, no disclosure, no court documents.  

 Also in 1999, out of California, possession of 

a narcotic controlled substance, misdemeanor level, 365 

days jail, no disclosure, no court documents.  

 In 2000, out of California, threaten crime with 

intent to terrorize, felony level, five years probation, 

365 days jail, no disclosure, no court docs.  This 

conviction was originally a felony that was later 

reduced to a misdemeanor under California 1203.4-17 PC.  

The applicant did not provide any court documents for 

this.  

 The applicant did not disclose his full arrest 

history and was made provisional on 2-10 of this year.  

All arrests were found on the fingerprint report.  He 

was denied on 3-10 of 2020.  At the time of his denial, 

he was not placed on a licensee's roster.  On 

August 7th, 2020, Mr. Williams walked into the Las Vegas 

PILB office and asked about the status of his card.  

Because he was working for Preventative Measures, 

license number 1633, Preventative Measures was then 

contacted and issued a notice of violation for 

continuing to employ Mr. Warren on a denied card and not 

properly adding him to their roster.  He has since been 

terminated.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  
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 Okay.  Sir, can you explain not only the 

arrests, but, more importantly, why you didn't disclose 

them?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  I forgot.  I was looking for the 

papers.  I just forgot.  I try to put a lot of bad 

things behind me and leave it alone and move on.  I just 

forgot it.  I'm sorry.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You forgot every one of 

those?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  No, I didn't.  I thought I put 

them down there.  I must have just -- my mistake.  I'm 

sorry, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  What are you 

doing for employment now?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Looking for work, trying to.  

Well, I can't get my card for taking care of people, 

which I was doing most of my life, live-in, taking care 

of people, caregiver.  And I can't get that.  I was 

hoping to get my guard card so I can get back to work.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Why can't you get your  

health card to take care of people?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Oh, I passed the test.  I got 

all the paperwork.  But I had a job, and they went back 

about 23 years, 25 years.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I guess, I'm missing.  
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What did you do before you became unemployed?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  I was looking for work and 

homeless.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  So you've never 

had a job?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Out here, no.  Well, I worked 

for -- I can't remember the company, a caregiver 

service, for about a month.  I've got -- I worked at 

Amazon as a driver.  I kept getting lost.  I wasn't 

familiar with the streets of Las Vegas, and my tokes 

turned over.  I got them all mixed up.  I was too slow.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And how long have 

you lived in Las Vegas?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  It's been a year and a half.  I 

got down here in 2019, about January or February, about 

January.  I came down here mostly to help my 

stepdaughter out with her kids.  When I get down here, 

she leaves.  I came down here.  That's how I got in 

contact with my stepdaughter, because my other, my  

firstborn daughter died, and I came down here for the 

funeral.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Sorry to hear 

that, sir.  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 
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questions from the Board?  

 Okay.  Hearing none, I'll seek a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Board Member 

Nixon.  I move that we uphold the denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion and 

second.  Any other discussion?  

 Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All those 

in favor of the motion, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carried.  

Mr. Williams, you can reapply in a year.  You have a 

good day, sir.  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  You, too.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Alvin Hooks, 

number 136?  

  MR. HOOKS:  I'm here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Hooks, do you 

realize you're under oath?  

  MR. HOOKS:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll let the 

investigator continue. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  In 1985, 
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out of California, the applicant was charged with CCW in 

a vehicle, carry a loaded firearm in a public place.  

This was at misdemeanor level.  Disposition showed a 

fine.  This was not disclosed.  We do not have court 

docs.  

  In 1991, out of California, possession of a 

narcotic controlled substance, misdemeanor level.  

Disposition showed that this was dismissed after the 

successful completion of a diversion program.  This one 

was disclosed, but we do not have court docs.   

 The applicant was denied for the weapons 

conviction.  He was initially made provisional on 6-3 of 

this year, as the arrest was not disclosed, but was not 

added to any roster.  The arrest was found on the 

fingerprint report.  And he was denied on 6-16 of this 

year.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Hooks, I 

understand the charges you didn't disclose was 35 years 

ago, but I want to know why you didn't disclose.  

  MR. HOOKS:  I actually thought I did put it on 

the application.  I may not have had the correct year, 

but I would have swore I put it on when I did the 

application.  It was 1985.  I might have put 1987, 

because it was so long ago, I wasn't sure.  But I'm 

pretty sure I put it on there.  If I didn't, that was -- 
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I'm sorry about that.  But I'm pretty sure I put it on 

there.  And I thought I also put on there that the case 

was dismissed.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  So, Mr. Maxwell, 

is there more than one entry for arrests on his 

application?   

  MR. MAXWELL:  I'm just checking his profile 

now, sir.  The only things that were listed on his 

arrest history is the possession of controlled 

substance.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Hooks, what are you 

doing now for employment?  

  MR. HOOKS:  I actually just moved to Las Vegas 

about six months ago.  I'm staying with my daughter 

right now.  I am retired.  But I also went out and found 

a part-time job.  I'm a produce clerk at the 99 Cent 

Store.  I had applied for the guard, I mean the guard 

card for the new football stadium for the Raiders and 

everything.  So I went through that whole process, the 

interview, orientation and everything, and then I found 

out later that I was denied.  So I was looking for the 

job at the Raiders stadium because it was a day job, 

just to supplement income.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And what did you 

retire from?  
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  MR. HOOKS:  I worked in television most of my 

life.  I was in broadcast distribution.  I worked for 

several companies.  My last company, my most recent 

company was Spectrum Payroll.  I worked for Warner 

Brothers.  I worked for several other companies.  But 

it's always been in broadcast distribution.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you. 

  Any questions from the Board?  

 Okay.  No questions.  I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.  Based on 

the fact of the time and distance, even though he didn't 

disclose it, I move that we approve the appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I've got a 

motion.  Do I have a second?  

 I'll call for a second.  

 Okay.  Motion failed.  I'll seek another 

motion.  Obviously, people are thinking something else.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  It's Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I make a motion for 

denial of the appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion 

for denial.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  
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I have a second.  Any further discussion?  

 All right.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  

All those in favor of the motion, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Nay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Motion 

carries three to one.  Mr. Hooks, you can reapply in a 

year.  Please remember to disclose the other charge.  

  MR. HOOKS:  Understood.  Thank you, guys.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Number 137, 

David Robles Beltran?  

  MR. BELTRAN:  Here. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do you 

understand, sir, you're under oath? 

  MR. BELTRAN:  Yes.  Good morning.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Good morning to you.  

I'll let the investigator proceed. 

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  The 

applicant applied on February 21st, 2020.  He was made 

provisional on 2-27 of 2020.  He did list a 2013 

domestic violence, which was at a felony level, that was 

dismissed, and the applicant did provide a letter from 

the City Attorney's Office showing that the charges were 

not filed and that the case was dismissed.   
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  Before receiving the fingerprints, the 

applicant was denied on 3-18 of '20 for a June 6th, '06, 

out of California, carry a concealed weapon in a 

vehicle, which was a misdemeanor, where the applicant 

received 24 months of probation.   

  When the applicant was contacted in regards to 

the weapons conviction, he stated that he had misread 

the application and was not trying to lie.  He thought 

providing the documents for the felony case from 2013 

was enough.  He had just, you know, forgotten about the 

misdemeanor charge from '06.  He was trying frantically 

to provide any kind of documents, court documents that 

he could provide for that arrest once he noted that he 

did miss it on the application.  Since 2013, there has 

been no other law enforcement encounters.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Beltran, do 

you want to explain why you didn't disclose?  

  MR. BELTRAN:  I forgot about it.  I've been 

working for G1 going for seven years until my wife and I 

tried to buy a house here in Vegas a year ago.  

Currently, I do not have a job right now.  And poor my 

wife, she works two jobs paying the mortgage until I get 

my PILB.  The PILB card, that will help my family.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Any other questions from the Board?  
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 Hearing none, I'll call for a motion.  

 Call for a motion a second time.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Board Member --  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Before I make a motion, 

I want to make a statement, if it's okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, of course.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  So everybody on 

the phone can hear, the problem with not disclosing, it 

creates double, if not triple work for everyone.  The 

investigators have to do the first start of it all.  

They issue cards.  And then, all of a sudden, things 

come back, and then they have to recall, redo everything 

all over again.  Then it has to come to an agenda, and 

it has to come to the Board.  The reason it's so 

important to disclose is because, number one, we have to 

know about it up front.  Number two, we can't waste 

everybody's time.  This time ends up costing a lot of 

money through the state and through the PILB.   

  That's my statement.  With that statement, I'd 

like to make a motion.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  The motion, because of 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

504 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

that statement, the motion is for denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  I have a motion.  And when you run for 

something, I'll vote for you.   

  I'm seeking a second.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion 

and a second.  Any further discussion?    

 Okay.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All 

those in favor of the motion, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carried.  

Mr. Beltran, you can reapply in a year.  Please remember 

to disclose everything.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'm not running for 

anything.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, well, I voted for 

you every time. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  Thanks.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm going to throw this 

out to the Board.   

  UNIDENTIFIED MAN:  Excuse me. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Do we need to take a 

lunch break?  

  UNIDENTIFIED MAN:  Excuse me.  Hello.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  This is Chairman Flynn.   

I'm speaking to the Board.  Please.  

 Do we need to take a lunch break?  I sense us 

getting slower.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I think, 30 minutes 

wouldn't kill us.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  No, that's 

what, that was our plan, and we were going to do it at 

12:00 anyway.  So.  All right.  What I'll do is we will 

go on a lunch break for 30 minutes, come back here at 

12:33. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Kevin, I'm going on 

mute.  Oh, no, I'm just going to call back in.  Or 

should I go on mute because we're limited to 50?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Why don't you stay on and just 

mute, so that you don't get locked out. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'm going to mute 

now. 

  MR. INGRAM:  That would be good for all the 

Board members.  Thank you. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I don't how 

backlogged we are.  I don't know if you want to make an 

announcement, have people call in at different times.  

I'm going to leave it up to you. 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

506 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

  MR. INGRAM:  Sounds good.  Thank you. 

  So for everyone that's on the call right now -- 

and, Shannon, you don't have to stay on for this.  It's 

just kind of a public announcement.  If you want to go 

ahead and stay on, that's fine, but not required.  

* * * * * 

  (A break was taken, 12:02 to 12:30 p.m.) 

* * * * * 

  MR. INGRAM:  Chairman Flynn, I show 12:30.  

Would you like me to proceed with the roll call?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes, please.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you, sir.  Obviously, you 

are present.  

 Board Member Brown?  Board Member Brown?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  It was supposed to be 

12:33. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Oh, was it 12:33?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Obviously, Board Member 

Gronauer is here.  Thank you.  

 Board Member Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Here and shaking her head.  

  MR. INGRAM:  We hear the rattle.  

  Shannon, I know you're there.   

  Board Counsel Detmer, are you on?  
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  MR. DETMER:  Here.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Excellent.  So as soon as 

Mr. Brown gets back on the call, we will be good to go, 

sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  I'm here.  Sorry.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Oh, no problem.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And no apologies.  You 

had till 12:33.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you, Mr. Brown. 

  Chairman Flynn, just as a reminder, we had a 

few items that were trailed a little bit earlier.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Actually, yeah, there's 

five items, and I'm going to call those first.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Perfect.  Okay. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Number 123, 

Larry Benford, are you here?  Mr. Benford?  

 All right.  I'll call for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Hey, Kevin, I don't 

remember that gentleman's name that had asked.  He said 

he was at work.  He was trying to go between his car and 

work to -- was that him?  

  MR. INGRAM:  No, that one was number 126. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Gotcha.  I just 

wanted to make sure that wasn't him and we discount him, 
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because he came back and said he was still trying to 

work with his boss.  So, okay. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I move 

that we uphold the denial for Mr. Benford.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Motion and 

second.  Any further discussion?  

 Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All those 

in favor of the motion, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  The appeal is 

denied.  

 Number 126, Tijuan Robertson?  

  MR. ROBERTSON:  Present.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Robertson, do 

you realize you're still under oath, sir?  

  MR. ROBERTSON:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'm going to turn 

this over to the investigator. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  2013, in 

the state of Nevada, the applicant was charged with 

attempted larceny from a person at felony level.  This 
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started as a felony.  He received 24 to 60 months in 

NDOC, which was suspended, and four years probation.  

This was later reduced to a gross misdemeanor after 

successful completion of probation.  It was disclosed, 

and we do have court documents.  

 2018, in Nevada, carrying a concealed weapon  

without a permit, misdemeanor level.  Disposition was 90 

days jail suspended, told to stay out of the trouble for 

one year, which was satisfied on 12-26 of '19.  

Counseling, satisfied 3-27-19.  39 hours community 

service, which was satisfied on 3-27 of '19.  And the 

property was forfeited on 12-27 of 2018.  This was also 

disclosed.  And we have court docs and the police 

report.  

 The applicant disclosed both arrests and 

provided court documents.  He was not made provisional.  

Both arrests were confirmed with SCOPE, court documents 

and the fingerprint report.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Mr. Robertson, why don't you explain your 

arrests, please.  

  MR. ROBERTSON:  I was going to say was thank 

you for your time, and thank you for coming back to me.  

I don't want to be like a trouble to you guys.  I 

appreciate you guys coming back to me.  I'm just at work 
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right now trying to work with the boss, let him know 

that I have an important phone call early this morning.  

 So.  But what I do say to that was that that 

incident happened for the to sell firearm, it was 

actually my arm, my weapon.  And it was me and my 

girlfriend, we had, I guess, we got into it.  We got 

into it on Christmas.  But it was something crazy.  Like 

I was going to my cousin's house, because, you know, it 

was the holidays.  Everybody liked to cook for the 

family.  And I'm one of the cooks.  So I was heading in 

there.  The long story short, heading there, she closed 

the door, locked the door on me.  And then, after that, 

like I tried to get through the door, to get through the 

door, and I had my firearm on me on the side of my 

waist.  And then the police.  And then she called the 

cops.  And then she called them, she said that "He has a 

firearm.  He has a firearm on him and everything.  Can 

you please help, help.  Can you please come.  Help, 

help."  And I wasn't going to do anything to her.  I was 

just trying to get in the house, and everything right 

there. 

 And the police draw their -- the police came 

around me, and they draw their weapons on me with 

shotguns and everything.  And they said, "Put the gun, 

take the gun out of your pocket," or something like 
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that.  But I had a holster the whole time.  It was just 

hanging out where you could see the gun.  And then he 

just saw me with a firearm, so.  You know, because you 

cannot, you know, basically, have a weapon without a 

holster.  It has to be showing.  Because I don't have a 

CCW, at the time.  Now I know for sure to get one now, 

because if it ever gets like that again.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And what about 

the other arrest, the attempt larceny?  

  MR. ROBERTSON:  The attempt larceny, that was 

when I was like, I'd say, about 20 something, I don't 

remember, like 20 years old at the most.  I was living 

with my dad that came, he came flying from Louisiana.  

And things was just going bad, as me being his kid, but 

we was listening to the wrong, some of the wrong things 

and the wrong crowd at the time.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  What did you 

steal?  What did you steal? 

  MR. ROBERTSON:  Say it again?  What did I 

steal?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah.  

  MR. ROBERTSON:  I don't know what I stole.  It 

was an actual case where they say it was -- the 

documents said that it was a robbery, but then they 

dropped it down to a gross misdemeanor, larceny from a 
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person.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You don't remember what 

you stole?  

  MR. ROBERTSON:  Well, it was, I was, okay, 

basically, that it was basically a robbery when I was 20 

years old.  I was going, I was just like, basically like 

homeless, and I didn't have nowhere to go, me and my 

dad.  And then I had to find a way to try to make some 

money even though I was trying to work at the time.  It 

was, basically, like the robbery.  Yeah, it was a 

robbery.  But they dropped it down to a gross 

misdemeanor.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Did you rob a business, 

or did you rob a person?  

  MR. ROBERTSON:  Well, they said it was, they 

said it was, they said, yeah -- not a person.  I don't, 

they don't have all the documents there?  I thought they 

might have all the documents there.  I'm sorry.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm asking you what you 

remember.  It was seven years ago.  

 MR. ROBERTSON:  I leave all this here stuff to 

the past, to be honest with you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  That's fair 

enough.  

  MR. ROBERTSON:  I'm looking to the future.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  What are you 

doing for work these days?  

  MR. ROBERTSON:  Right now, I'm in school for 

welding.  And right now, I work construction doing 

underground.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  Any other questions from the Board?  

  MR. ROBERTSON:  Um.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Robertson, I'm done 

with my questioning.  I want to see if the Board has got 

any other questions for you.  

  MR. ROBERTSON:  Oh, I thought it was me.  I'm 

sorry.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  That's okay.  It's okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Board Member 

Nixon.  Sir, you know, I applaud everything that you're 

doing and that you went through some hard times.  So, I 

think, I need to better understand the gravity of what 

was done here.  What is it that you took from, from 

whomever, a store or a person?  

  MR. ROBERTSON:  Oh, is it my turn to talk now?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Yes, sir.  

  MR. ROBERTSON:  Okay.  Okay.  I just wanted to 

make sure.  Well, basically, it was like money. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay. 
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  MR. ROBERTSON:  From the store.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  And then there was 

no weapon used?  

  MR. ROBERTSON:  No, no weapon was used.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  And you were saying 

that you were homeless at the time?  

  MR. ROBERTSON:  Yeah.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 

questions?  

  All right.  Hearing none, I'll entertain a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.  I move, 

based on time and distance, or lack thereof, that we 

uphold the denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion 

and a second.  Any further discussion?  

 Okay.  Hearing none --  

 BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Chair, I --  

 BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  -- I'll call for a vote.  

Yes, go ahead.  Sorry.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Yeah, Mr. Robertson, you 
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know, I really, I agree with the group, but I would 

really like to see you come back.  So please don't be 

discouraged by this.  You know, get a little bit of 

distance and because you sound like you're really 

trying.  So please don't be discouraged by this, and try 

again.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

I have a second.  There's no further discussion.  I'll 

call for a vote.  All those in favor of the motion, 

state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And, 

Mr. Robertson, you can apply in a year.  You heard from 

one of the Board members, and I will concur, let's get a 

little more time and distance.  You have a good day, 

sir.  

  MR. ROBERTSON:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Number 128, 

William Evans.  Number 128, William Evans?  

 Okay.  I'll call for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.  I move to 

uphold the denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any further 

discussion?  

 All right.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  

All those in favor, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carries.  

 Number 133, James Douglas.  Is Mr. Douglas 

here?  Is James Douglas here?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Mr. Chair, Investigator Maxwell.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes.  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Mr. Douglas was attempted to be 

contacted by telephone, email and, also, regular mail, 

and we received no response.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  I'll 

call for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I move that we uphold the 

denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any further 

discussion?  

 Okay.  Hearing none, call for a vote.  All 

those in favor of the motion, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   
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 BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carried. 

 Number 134, Bernard Williams.  Mr. Williams, 

are you here?  Mr. Williams, Bernard Williams?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Mr. Chair, Investigator Maxwell.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Again, attempts were made to 

contact the gentleman, but nothing was received back 

from him.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll ask for a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I move that we uphold 

Bernard Williams' denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I have a motion.  I have 

a second.  Any further discussion?  

 Okay.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All 

those in favor, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carries.  

 Commissioner Nixon, just FYI, I'm going to have 

to jump off at 1:00 o'clock for about 10 minutes.  I'm 

just going to give you a heads-up.  I'm going to need 

you to take over for about 10 minutes.  
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  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  No problem.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And then, when I come 

back, and after we do one or two, Kevin, I think, we 

need to make sure we hear 186 today.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes, sir.  We also have Mr. Donald 

Williams, 115, who was instructed to call back at 1:00.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

  MR. INGRAM:  So would you like us to trail that 

one until you are able to come back on the call?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  No, the Board knows 

where I stand.  I think, I was pretty clear.  But, yeah, 

you know what, let's see what happens.  I should be back 

by 1:15 or 1:20.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  So number, I 

believe, we're up to 138.  Number 138, Willie Darwin?  

  MR. DARWIN:  Yes, that's correct.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Mr. Darwin, 

do you realize you're under oath?  

  MR. DARWIN:  Yes, sir. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll let the 

investigator speak. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  1993, the 

applicant was charged with receiving stolen property, 

out of California, unknown level.  Disposition showed 
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one year four months in prison.  This was not disclosed, 

and no court docs were provided.  

 In 1997, also out of California, second-degree 

burglary at felony level.  Disposition showed 16-month 

prison.  Also, not disclosed, no court docs.  

 The arrests were not disclosed, and the 

applicant was initially made provisional on 12-9 of '19 

but was not placed on any roster.  The arrests were 

found on the fingerprint report.  And he was denied on 

1-8 of '20.  In his the appeal letter, the applicant 

mentioned an expungement, but the fingerprint report did 

not reflect this.  After conversing with the applicant, 

he said he was attempting to obtain copies of his 

expungement paperwork in time for the appeal hearing, 

but nothing was received by this office.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Darwin, 

what's the status of your expungement?  

  MR. DARWIN:  My status was I was trying to get 

the paperwork, the copy of my expungement.  But, 

unfortunately, I couldn't get it.  I tried calling 

several places.  I tried to go online and tried to find 

my documents.  But, unfortunately, I couldn't get that.   

  But for the case, you know, receiving stolen 

property, that, that was something that I should have 

never did, meaning that my cousin had stole something 
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from the store, and, I guess, I was a Guinea pig that 

took the ties back, which was the merchandise, and 

returned them for cash.  And loss prevention had, you 

know, held me and took me to jail.   

  And ever since then, I got out was jail, 

discharged my parole, and ever since then, I never got 

in trouble again after that.  And then, also, I had 

obtained a guard card for several years in California, 

renewed and everything.  

 So I moved to Nevada, you know, to try to start 

a new life, because I was tired of California.  And I 

applied for the guard card, thinking that I'm going to 

get it because, you know, I had a guard card in 

California.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  What are you 

doing for employment right now?  

  MR. DARWIN:  Actually, I work for Domino's 

Pizza as a delivery driver.  And right now, I was 

scheduled to be there at 1:00, but my employer 

understands the situation.  I explained it to her.  So 

they're just waiting for me to come in.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I appreciate it.  

The big issue is, is that as far as your record is, is 

you are not expunged.  It would either show an 

expungement or the record would disappear.  So that'll 
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leave it that you didn't disclose. 

  MR. DARWIN:  I can get that.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Let me see if the Board 

has any other questions.   

  Any questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Can I have a question 

for Mr. Ingram?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Or for Mr. Maxwell, 

either one.  On the application, it says arrest.  It 

doesn't say anything about, you know, you've been 

cleared or anything else.  It just says arrest.  Is that 

correct? 

  MR. MAXWELL:  That is correct, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Thank you.  I'm 

good.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 

questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Because there was a 

mention of 1993, there was a receiving stolen property, 

and then he never got in trouble again.  But there's 

another arrest and subsequent conviction, it seems like, 

for a felony burglary in the second degree.  Is that, is 

that the case, sir?  

  MR. DARWIN:  Yes, ma'am.  And, actually, that 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

522 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

didn't happen in '93.  That happened in '97.  

  MR. DETMER:  Right.  So you stated earlier that 

in '93, after receiving stolen property, you weren't in 

trouble again.  But after that, you were arrested and 

convicted of burglary in the second degree.  

  MR. DARWIN:  Well, I'm going back to '93.  That 

probably was, you know, riding in a stolen car, you 

know, that I didn't know it was stolen.  And that was 

the issue probably they was talking about, mentioning it 

as '93.   

  And then, '97, I got in trouble at a store that 

my cousin stole some merchandise.  And like I mentioned, 

I was the Guinea pig that, you know, take the ties, 

return the ties in for cash.  And that's when I got 

arrested. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Got it.  Okay.  Thank you. 

  MR. DARWIN:  And then, after '97, I didn't have 

no other deals with the police.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Got it.  Thank you so much 

for clarifying it.   

  MR. DARWIN:  I'll clarify that.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 

questions from the Board?  

 All right.  Hearing none, I'll call for a 
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motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Board Member 

Nixon.  I move that we uphold the denial of Willie 

Darwin's guard card application due to nondisclosure.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Motion and 

second.  Any further discussion?  

 Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All those 

in favor of the motion, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carried.  

Mr. Darwin, you can reapply in a year.  Good luck to 

you, sir.  

  MR. DARWIN:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Number 139, Mark 

Mcafee.  

  MR. MCAFEE:  Here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Mcafee, do 

you understood you're under oath?  

  MR. MCAFEE:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  For the 

investigator, please proceed.  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  In 1989, 
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out of Oregon, Mr. Mcafee was charged with controlled 

substance offense.  This was at felony level.  

Disposition was 90 days jail, five years probation and a 

fine.  This was not disclosed.  There's no court docs.  

The applicant stated in his appeal letter that he was 

given three years probation.  However, the fingerprint 

report shows five years on the disposition.   

  The applicant was made provisional on 12-16 of 

'19 and was hired by Marksman Security Corporation, 

license 1791.  He was denied on January 22nd of this 

year and terminated from Marksman on January 23rd of 

this year.  

 On his appeal letter, the applicant gave a 

statement for not disclosing the arrest.  He stated that 

he was the victim of an attempted breaking and entering 

and that he disclosed his 1989 felony to the attending 

police officer.  He stated that the officer then ran him 

and said that the felony didn't come up.  And on that 

reasoning, the applicant assumed it had been expunged.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And I had 

background on my end.  What was the arrest for 31 years 

ago?   

  MR. MAXWELL:  A controlled substance offense, 

sir, at felony level.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  
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 All right.  Mr. Mcafee, yeah, Mcafee, please 

tell us what happened and why you didn't disclose.  

  MR. MCAFEE:  First off, I'm an honorably 

discharged U.S. Air Force veteran.  And I've worked 25 

years with the Teamsters.   

  Second, I'd like to say that in '89, I was in 

possession of marijuana with intent to sell.  I met all 

my probation requirements.  And I have not had any 

run-ins with the law since.  

 I've always disclosed the charges.  And then, 

in 2018, the investigator has already told you what 

happened in 2018.  Someone had broke my window.  And the 

investigating officer told me that the charges didn't 

pull up when he ran my name.  And so, therefore, I 

thought the charges weren't on there anymore.  So, 

therefore, I didn't claim them.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  What did you do 

in the Air Force?  

  MR. MCAFEE:  I was a fireman, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And how long were you in 

the Air Force? 

  MR. MCAFEE:  Four years.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And what are you 

doing now for employment?  

  MR. MCAFEE:  I've worked conventions, driving 
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forklift.  I was at U.S. Right-of-Way for 18 years 

driving forklift in Portland.  But then I moved to Las 

Vegas, and I was working conventions, setting up and 

tearing down, for the Teamsters.  And then Covid hit us, 

and that work wasn't available anymore.  So I went to 

some temporary agencies.  And I've been working on some 

temp jobs that have come up.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm just curious.  You 

mentioned you were a firefighter in the Air Force?  

  MR. MCAFEE:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Did you ever apply for 

fire department jobs here or where you lived prior?  

  MR. MCAFEE:  No, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  Any 

other questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  So, I guess, you know, to 

Gronauer's point, it does state on there, have you ever 

been arrested.  And, I think, it even goes as far as to 

say ever, for anything, and it lists a couple of things.  

You know, again, because of your service and the time 

and distance on this, you know, I want to be positive.  

But it's very clear.  It asks, you know, in several 

different ways, have you ever been arrested?  Why 

didn't, why didn't that trigger, you know, the thought 

that maybe I should just admit it or disclose it?  
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  MR. MCAFEE:  Ma'am, I made a mistake in not 

disclosing that, based on the information that the 

officer had gave me in 2018.  And I regret that.  He 

told me that I didn't have to disclose that any longer.  

I felt it was off my records.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  MR. MCAFEE:  Thank you, ma'am.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Any other 

questions?  

 All right.  Hearing none, I'll seek a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.  I move, 

based on time and distance, that we grant the appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion 

to grant the appeal.  Do I have a second?   

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I second 

based on time and distance and service in the military.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

I have a second.  Any further discussion?  

 Okay.  I'll call for a vote.  All those in 

favor, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed, say "nay." 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Nay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  The motion 
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carries three to one.  Good luck to you, Mr. Mcafee.  

  MR. MCAFEE:  Thank you very much.  And I 

appreciate your guys's decision.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Number 140, Jesse  

Sierra, are you here?  Mr. Sierra, Jesse Sierra, are you 

here? 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Mr. Chairman, Investigator 

Maxwell.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  M-hm (affirmative).  

  MR. MAXWELL:  This gentleman was tried to be 

contacted by several, several means, and no response has 

gotten back to us.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  I'm 

going to trail this one, as we've done with the others.  

  Number 142, Anthony Dunn.  

  MR. DUNN:  I'm here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Dunn, do you 

understand you're under oath?  

  MR. DUNN:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'm going to turn 

it over to the investigator.  And I'm going to jump off 

the call for about 10, 15 minutes.  Commissioner Nixon 

will be Chair in the meantime.  

  And then, Kevin, I'm going to mute, so I can 

call back in, I mean so I can get right back in.  
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  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Anyone that's currently on the 

phone, if you will mute your phones until called upon, 

please.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Investigator, could you 

please hold.   

  Kevin, I do believe that we jumped over 141, 

Johnny Hall.   

  MR. INGRAM:  That is correct. 

  MR. HALL:  Yes. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  So, Mr. Hall, are 

you on?  

  MR. HALL:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  Investigator, can we review Mr. Hall, please?  

  MR. JONES:  Sure.  This is Investigator Jones.  

The applicant --   

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Sir, can you please mute 

your phone?  

  UNIDENTIFIED MAN:  Oh, yeah.  I'm sorry. 

  MR. JONES:  All of the arrests are out of 

California.   

  In June of 1997, the applicant was arrested for 
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a carry concealed weapon in a vehicle.  This was 

disclosed.  The fingerprint report does not show the 

disposition, but the applicant stated that he was 

guilty.  

 In April of 1995, we have the unlawful taking 

of a vehicle.  We do not know the severity or the 

disposition, but the applicant stated that he was 

convicted.  

 In 1996, we have taking a vehicle without the 

consent of the owner, at the misdemeanor level.  The 

applicant was sentenced to three years probation.  The 

applicant was also sentenced to one year in jail.  But 

both of these were suspended.  This was not disclosed.  

 In June of 1997, we have a felony taking a 

vehicle without the owner's consent.  The fingerprint 

report does not show the disposition.  And this was not 

disclosed.  

 Again in '97, we have vehicle theft.  The 

fingerprint report does not show the disposition or the 

severity.  

 In 2001, we have inflicting corporal injury on 

a spouse.  The fingerprint report does not show the 

severity or the disposition.  And this was not 

disclosed.  

 Finally, in August of 2019, there's inflicting 
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corporal injury on a spouse.  The fingerprint report 

does not show the disposition.  However, the applicant 

states that this was dismissed.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Sir, could you 

explain the situations here and why you did not 

disclose.  

  MR. HALL:  The reason I didn't disclose, I was 

in an accident in 2012.  I was in a severe accident 

involving a semi.  I wasn't in the vehicle.  I was on 

the highway, and the semi hit my body.  I was trying to 

tour.  I was on -- excuse me?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  We need everybody to mute 

their phones other than the applicant speaking, please.  

 Go ahead, sir.  

  MR. HALL:  Yeah, I was on my way home from 

Texas, and a semi flipped over in front of me and my 

friend.  I was on a motorcycle.  We pulled over to try 

to help the gentleman get out, and we were struck by 

another semi.  I was severely injured, and I had memory 

loss.  So that's the reason why I don't remember a lot 

of things from my past.   

  That's all I can say about that.  I don't 

remember.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  And the latest 

incident -- or are there any Board questions?  
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  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I'm probably going in the same area you are.   

  The most arrest, sir, in August of last year, 

what was the disposition of that?  

  MR. HALL:  What charge was that, again?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Inflict corporal injury 

upon a spouse, a domestic violence related charge.  

  MR. HALL:  I was actually, I was actually the 

victim on that.  I was the one who called the police.  I 

was involved with a female, and she actually assaulted 

my mother, which I take care of.  My mother is suffering 

from dementia.  She assaulted my mother.  I called the 

police.  And there was an altercation between the both 

of us, because I had to, you know, obviously, remove her 

from my mother.  So when the cops came, they took us 

both to jail.   

  So the case was -- I got a letter from the D.A. 

saying that they weren't going pursue the case.  I don't 

have the letter.  I lost it moving here to Vegas.   

  And that's the reason I moved to Vegas.  I 

moved here with my mother, away from that situation, so 

I can, you know, give me and my mother a start over.  

I've just barely been taking care of my mother for a 

little over a year, or about a year and a half now.  And 

my mother's never been in my life.  I was a foster kid 
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at age five.  And before taking care of my mom, I hadn't 

seen her in 20 years, so.  I got a call that she was on 

the streets.  And so I just wanted to take care of her.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay, sir.  Thank you.  Do 

you remember the vehicle theft in 1997?  

  MR. HALL:  Vaguely.  In '97, I didn't steal the 

car.  A friend of mine picked me up in a stolen car.  It 

was my birthday.  We went out to a club.  And after the 

club, he was too intoxicated to drive, so I started to 

drive.  And we got stopped, and it was a stolen car, and 

I went to jail for it.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Were there other 

charges, because Count II?  

  MR. HALL:  Well, I was on probation already.  I 

was on juvenile probation for a car theft when that 

incident happened.  So when that incident happened, 

that's when my probation and everything was revoked. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Any other questions?  

 Sir, what do you do now for work?  

  MR. HALL:  Before moving here to Vegas, I was 

supervisor of a warehouse.  Actually, before my 

accident, I'm a graduated surgical technologist.  But 

because of my memory loss, I wasn't able to go back to 

work and unless I went back to school.  And so I just 
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decided to pursue something else.  So like I said, 

previously, before coming here, I was a supervisor of a 

warehouse.  Upon coming here, I worked at Ellis Island 

doing security, right before the Covid hit.  And I 

haven't been doing anything since the Covid. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  Investigator, I don't know if I can ask a legal 

question, or Director.  Can we work on getting the 

paperwork and kind of do the withdrawal thing, and then, 

you know, come back with the paperwork saying he's 

cleared of the latest incident in 2019?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Kevin Ingram, for the record.  If 

he withdraws his denial and is able to provide that 

information, we could then potentially put him on the 

December Board meeting for a new hearing.  If you go 

forward, and he is denied today, then he would have to 

wait for a year to reapply.  

  MR. DETMER:  And this is Mike Detmer, for the 

record.  And I actually had to seek confirmation from 

Kevin.  Many boards will have a statute or regulation 

that speaks to withdrawal and then has to be approved by 

the board or commission.  I'm not personally aware if 

this Board has such a provision or it can just be done 

absent vote.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Traditionally, what we do, 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

535 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

Mr. Detmer, is he can request to withdraw, the Board 

would vote to allow the withdrawal, and then move 

forward that way.  Is that kind of what you're 

suggesting?  

  MR. DETMER:  Yeah, I'm, as we speak, looking 

for a statutory or regulatory provision that would spell 

out whether or not there needs to be a Board vote to 

allow for it.  If prior practice, though, has been to 

require a vote, then that's what I would recommend, if 

that is the way the Board wants to go.  And assuming 

that's the way he wants to go as well, of course.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Any further discussion 

from the Board, or questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I just want to ensure that Mr. Hall understands 

what we're talking about right now, before he makes a 

decision.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Yeah, I just didn't know 

if anybody had any thoughts on this really.  

  MR. HALL:  From what I'm understanding you, 

you're saying that if I request a removal, then I can 

come back at a later date?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Yes, sir.  So, I think, 

you know, for me, your story's compelling.  I can 

understand why, you know, because of your medical  
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condition, you did not remember and disclose.  You do 

have time and distance, except for this latest case.  

  MR. HALL:  Right.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  And so I would like some 

proof that this has been dropped --   

  MR. HALL:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  -- in order to make a 

decision on it.  

  MR. HALL:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  So if you could hold off.  

  Board members, are we kind of, are we in the 

same mind space, I guess, on this?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.  I'm on the 

same page with you.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  So, sir, I'm going 

to give you the opportunity here.   

  And, Kevin, because we haven't voted on this in 

the past, have we, on withdrawals?  

  MR. INGRAM:  On some occasions you have, and 

some occasions you haven't.  And it's probably in the 

best interest of the Board to start, you know, making a 

decision on the record.  If he requests a withdrawal, 

and then you were to entertain a motion and approve that 

motion, then it's a lot cleaner record moving forward.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  So I would need one 
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of the Board members to make a motion?  

  MR. INGRAM:  That would be after the request of 

him to withdraw.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Got it.  So, sir, here's 

your opportunity.  

  MR. HALL:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  If you request to 

withdraw, you can come back, with the paperwork or the 

documents requested, at the next Board meeting.  If not, 

then you would have to wait a year.  

  MR. HALL:  Okay.  Well, I will make that 

request to withdraw and come back later with the proof.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay. 

  MR. HALL:  And how am I to submit the proof?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  So let us, let's go 

through the process and vote on that.  And then someone 

from the PILB will get to you and explain that process 

to you.  Okay?  

  MR. HALL:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  So I'll take a motion now 

on Mr. Hall's request to withdraw his application at 

this time, or his appeal at this time.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.  I move 

that we grant Mr. Hall's withdrawal of his appeal so 

that he can come back at a later time. 
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  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Is there a second? 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'll second it.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Any other 

discussion?   

  Okay.  All in favor, please state "aye."  Aye. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Aye. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Aye. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Aye. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  So that's 

unanimous.  Sir, Mr. Hall?  

  MR. HALL:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Please get in contact with 

the Board, and they will explain to you how to get that 

information or how to get that information to them.  And 

the request is that you go back and provide that 

information so we can make a better decision.  Okay? 

  MR. HALL:  Okay.  Thank you very much. 

  MR. INGRAM:  And, for the record, Kevin Ingram.  

Mr. Hall, Investigator Jones will reach out to you in 

the next couple of days.  Okay?  

  MR. HALL:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you.  

  MR. HALL:  Okay.  You guys have a nice day.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you.  

 Okay.  And Anthony Dunn, number 142, are you 
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here?  

  MR. DUNN:  I'm here.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you, sir.  

And thank you for the understanding.   

  Okay.  Investigator, can we please hear about 

Mr. Dunn? 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  The 

applicant was arrested in 1992, out of the Georgia.  The 

charge was theft by receiving stolen property, at 

misdemeanor level.  Disposition showed 12 months 

probation, four days jail.  This was not disclosed.  

 1994, out of Georgia, DUI, misdemeanor, 12 

months probation and a fine, not disclosed.  

 1996, Georgia, DUI, misdemeanor, 12 months 

probation, two days jail and a fine, not disclosed.  

 Also in 1996, out of Georgia, the charge was 

battery, misdemeanor, 12 months probation and a fine, 

not disclosed.  

 Also in 1996, out of Georgia, another DUI, 

misdemeanor level, a fine of $2,500, not disclosed.  

 In December of '96, in Georgia, probation 

violation at felony level, probation terms are altered, 

not disclosed.  On the disposition, it gave a date of 

12-13-1996, and it said continue on a regional probation 

or parole order.  
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 In June of '97, in Georgia, the charge was 

habitual violator, federal, sorry, felony level.  

Disposition showed two years probation, 40 hours 

community service, and not disclosed.  The fingerprint 

report did not mention specifics.  However, the 

applicant had been convicted three times previously for 

DUI.  

 In 1997, in October, in Georgia, probation 

violation, misdemeanor level.  Probation terms were 

altered.  This was not disclosed.  The disposition did 

not give the altered probation terms.  

 In 2017, in Nevada, misdemeanor domestic 

battery.  This case was denied in the court.  It was 

disclosed, and court docs were made available.  

 The applicant was initially made provisional on 

9-16 of '19 but was not added to any company roster.  He 

disclosed item number 9 and provided court 

documentation, but the other arrests were found on the 

fingerprint report.  He was denied 10-8 of '19.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you.   

  Mr. Dunn, can I verify, do you understand that 

you're under oath?  

  MR. DUNN:  Yeah.  Yeah.  No, you didn't say 

that, but I understand.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.  And so, 
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please, you know, you've heard the concerns or the 

investigator's notes.  Would you please update us. 

  MR. DUNN:  All I'm telling you is I don't 

think, some of that stuff is not me.  Somebody must have 

been using my name.  Because I did lose my ID, right.  I 

did lose my ID.  There was 400 and something dollars 

stolen out of my wallet, right.  And I lost my ID.  

Somebody was out.  And I did go down to the police 

department.  I don't know what they called this in '94 

when your identity was being stolen, or whatever,  

whatever.  Like, but I know, back in '97 and '96, I did 

get two.  I got a DUI one year.  Then I got a DUI the 

second time.   

  I went back.  I went back because I wanted to 

get a -- watch ya call it?  What kind of card?  Not the 

guard card, but the federal fingerprint card, right, to 

work at the casino.  So I went back to Georgia in 2007, 

right, and went there and disclosed that I went to the 

court, right.  Instead of them, instead of them telling 

me, right, that I have to do time here, they said just 

don't get any DUIs and this is closed out.  I went, I 

flew down there just to get that done, to get the cards  

that I needed.  

 So I wouldn't have ever known that I had any, 

any felony, right, because I never thought I did.  They 
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said if I got a third DUI.  He mentioned four DUIs.  So 

I know for a fact that that ain't it, because I know I 

only got two.  Okay.  I've only had two, like in '96 and 

'97.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Please mute your phone if 

you're not speaking.  

  MR. DUNN:  You can't hear me?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No, I can hear you, sir.  

I hear a lot of background noise as well.  

  MR. DUNN:  Oh.  Yes, I don't know if I'm able 

to get this information.  That was when I went down 

there, right.  And not even the situation, right.  I was 

working for Amazon last year, right.  In April, I 

started working in April, right.  When this Covid 

stuff -- I'm 60.  I'll be 61 next month, right.  I was 

just trying to get a job in time so my kid can get in 

school.  I got a five-year-old.  It's my first kid ever, 

right.  I always worked.  So I don't know where to get 

this information.  But I've always been a good person, 

always got a job.  I always pass backgrounds in all the 

jobs I have had in Las Vegas.  I've been here 20 years, 

right.  And before I lived here, I lived in Georgia for 

nine years.  I sold cars and helped people out.   

  So the DUIs was coming from me driving a car.  

I got caught driving.  All this other stuff, based on 
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what, I don't have a clue.  I don't have a clue, because 

that wasn't me.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  So, sir, you were not 

arrested in 2017 for domestic battery?  

  MR. DUNN:  No, never.  Never.  I wasn't 

arrested, ma'am. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Madam Chair, Investigator 

Maxwell.  

  MR. DUNN:  Oh, yes, I did.  I did.  I went to 

jail, but it wasn't for that.  Like they said it was, 

and they let me go after two hours.  The only reason why 

I went to jail is because nobody can watch my son, 

right.  We had to both go in there, right.  And I didn't 

get charged for that.  I didn't get that charge.   

  So what they did, two years ago, they came back 

after two years, and I got a battery charge, right.  I 

did like 26 weeks, 26 weeks and paid $980, right.  

Because I wasn't the one, I wasn't the one should have 

even got the charge.  The person should have got the 

charge.  Well, but because we lived together, and we 

still live together and married, right, and we still 

live together and got married, I got that charge.  And 

they moved it down to a battery.  It was supposed to be 

a domestic, but they moved it down to a battery.  And I 

asked them, why did I have to pay all this money out 
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when I didn't do something, right.  And they knew it was 

the person that did it.  But I got the charge instead of 

she getting the charge, right.  Because I had never did 

anything to deserve that.  And so I actually did the 26 

weeks, paid the $980, right, anything.  That's that.  

 Other than that, I went, well, I was trying to  

get a job with you guys.  This popped up.  And I didn't 

understand why the security place didn't hire me, 

because I didn't know nothing about --   

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you, sir.  

  MR. DUNN:  -- the charges you're talking about.  

Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you, sir.  

 Investigator, did you have something to add?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Yes, ma'am.  Investigator 

Maxwell.  Just to clarify, all the charges were taken 

from the gentleman's fingerprint report.  But he is 

correct, the domestic battery from 2017, there were no 

charges for that one, it was actually denied in court.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Okay. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Madam Chair, this is 

Gronauer.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  May I make a statement?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Absolutely.  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Usually, and from back 

experience, past experience and now, domestic violence, 

if you go to jail for domestic violence, whether it's 

for one hour, two hours, whatever, you go to jail for 

it, that will not come off your record.  

  MR. DUNN:  I didn't get charged for domestic 

violence.   

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'm not talking to you. 

  MR. DUNN:  They said it was a battery.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'm not talking to you, 

sir.   

  MR. DUNN:  Oh, I'm sorry. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Wait your turn.  Wait 

your turn.  I'm just trying to clarify so the Chairman, 

the Chairwoman would understand.  Domestic violence will 

usually stay.  And if they reduce it down to any charge, 

it'll still stay on your record as domestic violence.  

Just so you know.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  So, Director Ingram, I 

just want to reiterate or ask again.  It does on the 

application say "Have you ever been arrested?" 

  MR. INGRAM:  That is correct.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  And then it lists a bunch 

of, you know, a bunch of items.  It's not "Have you ever 

been convicted, have you ever been?"  It's "Have you 
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ever been arrested?"  And at that point, that's when you 

should, you know, admit or, you know, state that you've 

been arrested, because you would have had to have been 

arrested for these things in order to get it on your 

record.  

  MR. DUNN:  Are you talk to me?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No.  To Director Ingram.  

  MR. INGRAM:  And you are correct, Chairwoman.  

The only thing that we have a little caveat on is don't 

list minor traffic violations.  But it says list "all" 

arrests.  There's no time frame.  It says "all."    

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Yes, sir.  I think, it 

even says "ever."  

  MR. INGRAM:  Correct.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  Any other Board questions or statements?  

 Okay.  I'll move for a motion.  Or, you know, 

I'll look for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I move that we uphold the denial.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you, sir.   

  I need a second.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'll second it.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  So, then, are there any 

other comments?  
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 Okay.  All in favor of us upholding the denial 

for Mr. Dunn, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  MR. DUNN:  You got something for somebody else.  

I'm confused, right.  I told them when I went down 

there, I don't need the job.  I never did it.  I don't 

like people putting stuff out there on me that I didn't 

even do.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Sir, thank you for your 

time.  Thank you for your time.  The decision's been 

made.  You can appeal in a year.  

  MR. DUNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you. 

  MR. DETMER:  And, Madam Chair, I apologize.  

This is Mike Detmer, for the record.  Was that unanimous 

when the motion passed?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I believe so.  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Yes.   

  MR. DETMER:  And I apologize for the 

interruption.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No worry. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Madam Chair, Kevin Ingram.   

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Yes, sir. 

  MR. INGRAM:  If we could go ahead and have 
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Board counsel go ahead and swear everybody in that's on 

the call at this time, we can keep moving fairly 

quickly.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Detmer, will you swear those 

individuals in.  

  MR. DETMER:  Always it's my pleasure. 

  For those who are about to testify, raise your 

right hand.  And do you hereby swear and affirm to tell 

the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?  

  (Applicants and witnesses present were 

sworn/affirmed.) 

  MR. DETMER:  Thank you very much.  And please 

be sure and mute your phone until your item is called.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you, sir. 

  Is Mr. -- or I'm sorry.  143, Amra Webster?  

  MR. WEBSTER:  Yes, ma'am, I'm here.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And, Tammy, I'm back. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you.  We're on 143. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  We're on 143.  Do you 

want to do it, or do you want me to jump back in?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Please jump back in.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  143, 

Amra Webster, are you here, sir?  
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  MR. WEBSTER:  Yes, sir, I am.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You're going to need to 

speak up, if that's Mr. Webster.  

  MR. WEBSTER:  Yes, sir, I am here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Good enough.  Do 

you understand you're under oath?  

  MR. WEBSTER:  Yes, sir, I do.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll turn it over 

to the investigator. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  In 2004, 

out of California, the applicant was arrested for 

burglary at the felony level.  This was disclosed.  One 

year four months prison, less credits of 217 days for 

time served, three years probation.  Probation was 

revoked in 2006.  And we pulled the court documents from 

the San Bernardino Superior Court website.  

 In February of 2006, in California, unlawful 

sexual intercourse with a minor under 18, at the felony 

level.  This was disclosed.  One year four months 

prison, less credit of 43 days for time served and 14 

days for good conduct.  Again, the court documents were 

pulled from the San Bernardino Superior Court website.  

 In 2008, California, petty theft with a prior, 

felony level.  This one was not disclosed.  One year 

four months prison, less credit of 69 days for time 
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served and 22 days good conduct credit.  Court documents 

were again pulled from the San Bernardino court website.   

 The applicant was not made provisional.  His 

disclosed arrests were checked on the San Bernardino 

Superior Court website, and they were shown as felonies, 

and he was denied on January the 2nd of this year.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  Mr. Webster, do you want to explain what 

happened and why you didn't disclose?  

  MR. WEBSTER:  Yes, sir.  The reason why I did 

not disclose that was, is because that was actually ran 

concurrent with something else that I was being charged 

for.   

  So I'll take you back to the sex with a minor 

under the age of 18.  I had a relationship with the 

woman who is now my wife, with three kids, Nicole Yates.  

She got pregnant with our son at the age of 17.  During 

a meeting with the doctor, she disclosed information 

about me, and which the doctor took that information and 

was allowed to violate me on my probation.  She, it was 

stated that she had to give information in regards to a 

crime due to the fact of the age difference between me 

and Nicole.  So that's why I was violated on probation, 

was because I had caught a new case in regards to the 

sex with a minor.  
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 Again, I have a relationship with Nicole Yates, 

who is now Nicole Webster.  We have three kids together, 

and we raise seven kids together.  

 In regards to the petty theft, sir, the reason 

why that wasn't disclosed is because, like I said, it 

was ran concurrent with something else.  I was arrested 

for a petty theft.  They found out that I was with 

Nicole.  I had used Nicole as a way to help in regards 

to having my back in regard to not being found guilty of 

the petty theft.  They still stated that I was guilty of 

the petty theft.  And because I was with Nicole, I have 

a crime that stated that I wasn't supposed to have 

contact with her.  And while I was fighting those 

conditions of parole, they had violated me for that.   

 So I was understand the impression that I 

wasn't being charged for a violation of parole and not 

for the petty theft, which is one of the reasons why I 

did not disclose the information.  And I apologize for 

that.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  So I'm clear, for 

the investigator, which one did he disclose?  

  MR. WEBSTER:  I disclosed the sex with a minor 

under the age of 18 and the commercial burglary.  

Because I was violated for broken conditions, I did not 

disclose the petty theft, which was a new charge.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  That is 

correct, sir.  The burglary was disclosed, and the 

unlawful sexual intercourse with a minor was disclosed.  

The petty theft was not.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And then, 

Mr. Webster, what are you doing for employment now?  

  MR. WEBSTER:  Well, currently, right now, sir, 

I am, I am guard-carded in the state of California.  I 

got guard-carded with a company called Global 

Protection.  I do private security bodyguard work.  It 

was -- so I worked my may up.  I am now a field 

operations manager.  I've only stopped working, 

obviously, because of things going on with Covid.   

  During events that I was working, I came across 

a company called DTA Security.  They liked my work 

ethics.  They were a security consulting company.  And 

during the job that I was managing one of their events, 

they offered me an opportunity to come to work for their 

company, which they are out of Nevada.  So, actually, 

DTA is the one who paid for my fees to get licensed in 

hopes that I could be able to do a trade show that was 

happening in January.  But the time frame and, 

obviously, because I had a felony, which required an 

automatic dismissal, that I wasn't able to that job with 
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them.  And they have been very patient and waiting to, 

hopefully, get a decision that would favor for me to be 

able to do some work with them.   

  Like I said, I still do security work, private 

work in California only, with Global, like home parties 

and things of that nature, whatever it is allowed to be 

done currently right now in California. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And you're 

currently residing in California?  

  MR. WEBSTER:  Yes.  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you.  

  MR. WEBSTER:  For the -- or no problem, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Any other 

questions from the Board?  

 All right.  Hearing none, I'll entertain a 

motion.  

 I'm call for a motion a second time.  

  MR. THOMAS:  Yes, Eddie Thomas.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  So I just want to make 

sure.  This is Nixon.  I just want to make sure.  He 

disclosed two of the three charges?   

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  That is 

correct, ma'am.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And I understand it that 

he disclosed the felonies and forgot about the petty 
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misdemeanor?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  The petty theft showed as a 

felony on the fingerprint report and, also, the 

San Bernardino court website, but that was the one that 

wasn't disclosed.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  And we did do, we did do 

one year four months in prison for that petty theft?  

  MR. WEBSTER:  Yes, ma'am.  And, again, I know 

how serious you guys are about disclosing information.  

And the only reason, like I said, that I did not 

disclose that because I was told that that was being ran 

with my violation of probation, excuse me, a violation 

of parole.  I was given two conditions of parole.  One 

was because, to not have contact with Nicole, because 

they looked at her as a victim instead of an individual 

who I had a relationship with.  We're a five-year 

difference.  We had a son.  So it look a long time in 

order to be able to fight those conditions, of which I 

was granted and was given the ability to have contact 

with her.  

 One of the other conditions was they had given 

me conditions that I couldn't have a relationship with 

any minor kids under the age of 18, even though I did 

not have to register and was not required to register as 
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a sex offender.  So that stopped me from being able to 

raise my kids with Nicole.   

 BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Oh, I see. 

 MR. WEBSTER:  So, again, when I -- we were with 

each other because we had to sneak around in order to be 

able to have a relationship, so that I could raise my 

son.  And so, again, when --  

 BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Did you two get married? 

 MR. WEBSTER:  We got, we actually, we've been 

together for 18 years, but we've only been married for a 

year.  We got married last year in April.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I see.  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, go ahead, Bobby.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  When you 

look at the record, okay, and you see it's one year four 

months for the first one, one year four months the 

second one, one year four months for the third one, what 

California did or what the courts did here, apparently, 

is they put all these right together.  You know, and so 

when he violated probation, the other one comes up, the 

other one came up.  I think, that's what he was trying 

to explain.  At least that's the way I understand it.  

And when you look at that, the way it's all written out, 

San Bernardino, it's one year four months, one year four 
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months, one year four months.  It's like, okay, you 

violated your probation, so now we'll add this on to you 

again.  That's, you know, almost like a stacking up.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  So, Bobby, just so I 

understand, so he only in total did one year four 

months, not one year four months three times?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  That's up to the 

applicant to answer that or else --   

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay. 

  MR. WEBSTER:  Yes.  Yes, ma'am, that is 

correct.  With the petty theft violation, again, they 

told me it was a broken condition.  So I was being 

charged for breaking conditions of parole.  They ran 

concurrent.  And that was the only thing that I was 

being aware of, because they were trying to get me more 

for the broken conditions, because they felt that it 

would hold more time.  But when they found out that it 

was breaking conditions in regards to Nicole, who we 

have kids with, my conditions in regards to my kids was 

dismissed while I was incarcerated.  And a month after I 

was released in December of 2008, January 1st my parole 

officer contacted me and told me that my conditions in 

regards to Nicole were dismissed.   

  So all this stuff, yes, sir, and yes, ma'am, 

was all ran concurrent, which is why I was only was 
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released 30 days and was already off of parole.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Excuse me.  But 

that's the way I'm looking at it, too, is that because 

of the way it's written on here, it looks like 

everything was concurrent, it was all put together.  And 

then he made a misstep, and so they said, "Okay.  We'll 

add this to it."  And somebody can violate his parole at 

this time, or probation, whatever.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Thank you.  I'm 

ready to make a motion.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Any other 

questions?  

 Okay.  Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is --  

  MR. WEBSTER:  I know it's Nixon.   

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I don't know my name.  

Nixon.  I move to approve the appeal of Mr. Amra 

Webster.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  Second.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  I will second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Gronauer 

seconds.  Any further discussion?  

 All right.  Just for the record, I understand 
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why there's confusion, but I also understand that 

Mr. Webster did disclose.  And maybe we missed a minor 

procedural thing, but he did disclose, if anything, the 

more serious charges.  And he explained himself well.  

 So with that, I will, unless there's any other 

discussion, I'll call for a vote.   

 Hearing none, all those in favor of the motion, 

state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed?   

  All right.  Mr. Webster, good luck to you.  

  MR. WEBSTER:  Thank you guys so very much.  I 

really appreciate this, sir, ma'am.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you.  

  MR. WEBSTER:  Thank you guys.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Ingram, do you want 

to do Mr. Williams, number 115?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes, sir.  We had asked him to 

call back in at 1:00 o'clock.   

  And Mr. Donald Williams, agenda number 115, are 

you currently on the call, sir?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Yes, sir, I am here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  

Mr. Williams, please understand that you're still under 
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oath.  Do you understand that?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'm going to let 

Mr. Ingram tell you what we found out.  And before you 

jump to any conclusions, I'm going to speak after 

Mr. Ingram, because I don't think you're going to make 

the right conclusion.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  So the 

information that we were able to uncover --   

  (There was an outside interruption.)   

  MR. INGRAM:  Excuse me.  Who's speaking right 

now?   

  (There was an outside interruption.) 

  MR. INGRAM:  Who's speaking right now?  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  I don't know, sir.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  I think, they got off the 

call.  

 Okay.  Mr. Williams, what we were able to find 

out was that the company you were employed by --  

 MR. WILLIAMS:  Yes, sir. 

 MR. INGRAM:  -- is not licensed in Nevada.  We 

did contact them, and they did provide us information 

that they are currently providing services in Nevada.  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Okay.  

  MR. INGRAM:  So we have opened an investigation 
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into that company, and we will be following through on a 

very thorough investigation of that company.  So at --  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Yeah, I got the -- oh.  I'm 

sorry.  

  MR. INGRAM:  So at this time, I'll turn it back 

over to Chairman Flynn.  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Okay. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And, Mr. Williams, 

whatever the company is doing, as far as I'm concerned, 

has no reflection on you.  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You did answer our 

questions before.  More importantly, you did disclose 

what occurred.  And so I don't have any further 

questions.  I will throw it out to the Board if they've 

got any.  

 All right.  Hearing no questions -- hearing no 

questions from the Board, I will entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  I'll 

make a motion to grant the appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  We have a motion.  
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We have a second.  And I'll call for a vote if there's 

no further discussion.  

 All those in favor, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carries.  

Mr. Williams, congratulations.  You have a good day.  

  MR. WILLIAMS:  Thank you.  I appreciate it.  

You have a good day.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  So if I'm correct, we're 

up to number 144, Mr. Ingram?  

  MR. INGRAM:  That is correct, 144.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Why don't we 

do, before we get to that, why don't we your 186.  Let's 

make sure we take care of that today.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  So item number 186.  I'm 

going to go ahead and ask legal counsel Detmer to go 

ahead and take over on this item agenda, so that we 

don't in any way affect the Board's ability to decide on 

a hearing in the future.   

  Mr. Detmer.  

  MR. DETMER:  And good afternoon.  Mike Detmer, 

for the record.  Out of consideration for the Board's  

time, the length of the agenda, as well as those in the 

queue, I'm going to make every effort to be brief and 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

562 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

try to just summarize and allow for questions as needed. 

  This summary investigation is being conducted 

into a set of matters, will determine if it would be 

prudent to get issued subpoena duces tecum for further 

substantiation and/or for burden of proof 

considerations.  While NRS 648.160, I believe it's 

sub 3, cannot be interpreted to vest the authority to 

issue subpoenas in the Executive Director, it was my 

belief that out of further prudence, it would be a good 

idea to have this delegation clearly provided by the 

Board. 

  So with that, I would submit.  So if it wasn't 

clear, the main request for this agenda item, the 

delegation of authority to the ED to issue subpoena 

duces tecum on the matters that are listed under this 

item.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  So do you have 

anything else, Mr. Detmer?  

  MR. DETMER:  I submit to any questions that the 

Board may have.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And just for my 

fellow Board members, the Executive Director discussed 

this with me during one of our regular discussions, 

meetings.  And I felt that not only can we delegate this 

to him, in terms of issuing subpoenas, but I did ask him 
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that, in the future, when he does use this delegation, 

that he needs to report to the Board on the type of 

subpoenas he's issuing and the type of cases.  

 And with that, I'll turn it over to any 

questions from the Board.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah, it gives him 

optimum power.  I have no problem with that at all, in a 

lot of ways, and I trust our Executive Director.  And, 

but there's always other executive directors maybe in 

the future.  And I just want to know, do we have any 

guidelines for something like this, rather --  

  MR. DETMER:  This is Mike Detmer, for the 

record.  I'm sorry.  Please proceed, Board Member 

Gronauer.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  I'm sorry.  The 

idea was the guidelines that was just stated just tell 

us about afterwards.  I'd like to know maybe if we have 

some guidelines to keep him within them guidelines.  

That's all I'm asking.  

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the record.  So 

as to this particular agenda item, it is specific to a 

certain investigation that's being conducted on an 

appeal citation.  It is my belief that it was going to 
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be a more generalized delegation for any and all 

investigations, that that should probably be done under 

a regulation.   

  In this instance, it would be specifically for, 

again, for this particular investigation and only for 

matters that would further the investigation, either for 

further substantiation reasons or for burden of proof 

considerations.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thank you. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  So, I guess, going to 

Commissioner Gronauer's, there's no guidelines right 

now, either under NAC or PILB policy, is there, for 

subpoenas?  

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the record.  No, 

nothing that is clearly spelled out, as far as the 

NRS 648 or NAC 648 goes.  There are, there is 

generalized language, but it's basically just for the 

purpose of investigation or for matters of importance to 

the Board.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  So, I think, we've got 

two matters at hand.  One is the subpoenas that the 

Executive Director wants to execute now for a particular 

investigation, and then what we do in the future.  And 

that's how I understand where the discussion should go.  

  MR. DETMER:  Chairman, if I may, I would advise 
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against the latter.  I believe, it's going to be for 

future delegations.  If it's like a broad one, like a 

generalized rule of general applicability, that needs to 

go by regulation.  This would just be specific to this 

one, this one matter.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Chair, if I may, Kevin Ingram.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Since our discussion, I reached 

out to LCB, under the direction of Board counsel, to 

clarify how we would move forward for future, if the 

Board intended to do so.  It was too late to get it on 

the proposed NACs that have already been provided.  And 

we can do that in the future.  But, again, as Mr. Detmer 

said, that would be under a separate agenda item on a 

future meeting, for us to be able to move forward and 

draft that.  At the time we briefly spoke, we did not 

have that understanding from LCB at that time.  So this 

is new information since we last spoke.  

 Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  So for 

today's purposes, it's only you're asking for subpoenas 

on these four cases.  Is that correct?  

  MR. INGRAM:  That is correct.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And then you guys 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

566 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

will work on putting something together, if we do this 

in the future, to address Commissioner Gronauer's 

concern, which I also agree with.  

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the record.  That 

can't be done, Chair, because --  

  (There was an outside interruption.)  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Those of you that are on 

the call that aren't part of this agenda item, you need 

to mute.  Thank you.  

 Bobby, are you okay with this?   

 Is anybody there?  It just went really silent. 

 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  No, I'm here now.  

Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  The way it's written in 

the agenda item is pretty, it is specific.  So it  

already gives you the guidelines for them four cases.  

So long as we're not going any further than that, I'm 

good with it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Kevin, can you 

divulge what type of cases these are?  

  MR. DETMER:  Chairman, if I may?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes.  

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the record.  I 

hesitate to go any too far into a factual, the factual 
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scenario, because I don't want to bias the Board if and 

when it sits as the trier of fact.  I will go to what 

extent that I can.  What I can say, if it's helpful in 

the immediate, is that it is an unlawful activity 

citation.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Good enough.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  That's good.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I good.  So we 

understand that this is strictly for these four cases 

that has to do with unlawful activity.  And I need a 

motion to delegate.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I have a 

motion.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

I have a second.  Any other discussion? 

  I'll call for a vote.  Oh, before I call for a 

vote, is there any public comment on this particular 

item?  

 All right.  Hearing none, call for a vote.  All 

those in favor, say "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carried.  

 All right.  Number 144, Philip Corrado.  
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Mr. Corrado, are you here?  

  MR. CORRADO:  I am present.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Thank you for your 

patience, sir.  Do you understand you're under oath?  

  MR. CORRADO:  Yes, sir. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll let the 

investigator jump in. 

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead. 

  MR. SALADINO:  The applicant was denied for a 

1987 defraud an innkeeper, out of Virginia, at a felony 

level, where he was convicted and received two years of 

probation.  The applicant did not disclose this arrest.  

The court documents show he received two years of 

probation.  

 In 1988, out of Virginia, there was a larceny 

credit card theft at a felony level.  The applicant was 

convicted and received five years of probation.  The 

applicant did not disclose this arrest.  This arrest and 

conviction caused the applicant's probation for 

defrauding an innkeeper to be revoked.  The applicant 

was then sentenced to five years of probation.  

 In 1997, out of California, there was an 

inflict corporal injury to a spouse at a felony level,  

where the applicant received four years of probation and 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

569 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

four months jail time.  They did disclose this and also 

provided the California Penal Code 1203.4 on his 

application.  The dismissal was confirmed with the 

applicant's fingerprint report.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Corrado, do 

you want to explain why you didn't disclose?  

  MR. CORRADO:  Absolutely.  Just an oversight, 

to be totally honest with you and to throw myself at the 

mercy of the Board here.  I hadn't disclosed that on any 

of my security clearance applications for probably the 

past 20 years.  And, honestly, I'm not denying it.  I 

did both of those.  It did happen back, back then, when 

I was younger.  And I wish I would have put that on my 

application, because I wouldn't be in the situation 

today and wasting everybody's time.  So I do apologize.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  It's short and 

sweet.  I like that.  

 All right.  Any other questions from the Board?  

 Okay.  Mr. Corrado, what are you doing for 

employment these days?  

  MR. CORRADO:  I am currently a federal canine 

contracted officer with the Defense Logistic Agency in 

Tracy, California, with the Department of Defense, where 

I have been with them for the past four and a half 

years.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And why do you want a 

guard card in Nevada?  

  MR. CORRADO:  I own and operate my own company 

here in California, which is Confidential Canine.  And I 

do get calls very often to come out and help with big 

major events that are out there.  And I also am heavily 

involved in the private aviation sector.  And I have 

several clients that go in and out of Nevada at least 

every month, sometimes twice a month.  And I would like 

to be able to come into Nevada to legally be at the 

airport and see a few planes and make sure these planes 

are getting screened before my clients get back on them.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  MR. CORRADO:  You're welcome, sir.  

 All right.  For the second time, any questions 

from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah, I have a 

question.  This is Gronauer.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead. 

  MR. CORRADO:  Yes, sir. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  When you come in 

and out of Nevada, who are you working for?  

  MR. CORRADO:  Generally, I work for JetSmarter 

or XO Jet.  And I also work for, I also do some 

security -- well, it's not really security.  We're 
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getting some suites for the executives at Twitter.  So, 

basically, when I do fly in, I fly into Nevada.  I'd 

stay at the airport.  I usually don't leave the airport.  

They come back.  I make sure the plane's fine, and they 

fly out.   

  But I have not been going to Nevada since I 

talked to the investigator.  And I haven't been to 

Nevada since probably last year.  But I have been going 

in and out of Nevada before I even knew I needed a work 

card.  I didn't think I needed one, because we would 

come in, and, like I said, I never even left the 

airport.  I'd usually stay in the plane.  But I do get 

called quite a bit by other companies to come in to work 

some events.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  Well, a 

work card is not a license.  Do you understand that?  

  MR. CORRADO:  Yes, sir, I do understand that.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  So if you have a work 

card, you should be working with a licensed person.  

  MR. CORRADO:  Correct.  Mr. Vinny explained 

that to me.  Like I told him, I do get other companies 

that want me to come out there.  But he did also tell me 

that I should probably mention to the Board that I do 

want to follow up and get our active license with the 

state, so we can be 100 percent within the limits of the 
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law here.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Mr. Ingram, did 

I explain that correctly?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes.  If they're working DOJ 

contracts specifically with the airlines, they may have 

some freedom to do that.  But working independent of 

DOJ, you are 100 percent correct.  And, I think, it was 

well-explained.  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Thank you. 

  Thank you, Mr. Corrado.  

  MR. CORRADO:  You're welcome, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any other questions?  

 Okay.  Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion.  

 I'll call for a motion a second time. 

 BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I move that we grant the appeal for Mr. Corrado.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

 Okay.  I have a motion, but I don't have a 

second.  I'll call it one more time.  

 Okay.  Motion failed.  I'll call for a new 

motion.  Anybody that has a new motion?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I make a motion we deny 
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the appeal, with a caveat that we usually stay with the 

noncompliance or not reporting it.  And, I think, he can 

reapply if do all the proper stuff.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion 

to deny.  But, all right, and we will explain that to 

the applicant.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion 

and a second.  Any further discussion?  

 Okay.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All 

those in favor, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Nay.  Brown.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  One opposed.  So 

the motion passes three to one. 

  So, Mr. Corrado, basically, what you heard is 

that when you reapply in a year, disclose everything.  

And, hopefully, things will go a lot better.  

  MR. CORRADO:  All right.  Thank you very much.  

I'm not going to let this hinder me working, to be 

totally honest with you, so.  I mean I did everything I 

was supposed to do.  I understand what you guys said.  I 

have had no problems with anything.  And I've heard you 

guys approve way worse since I've been on the line for 
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the past three hours.  But again, I will reapply.  But 

if I have to come into Nevada with a flight, I'm not 

going to let my client sit there and not have 

protection.  We both know the private industry has 

nobody checking those planes there.  And I'm not going 

to let my clients down.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, don't be 

threatening our procedures.  You have fun in California.  

  MR. CORRADO:  I'm not threatening your 

procedures.  You're threatening my livelihood.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You enjoy your business 

in California.  You have a good day, sir.  Well, look, 

I'll remember you next year when you come forward.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Chair.  Mr. Chair, if I may?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Any violations of our chapter are 

also, can be processed criminally, both for misdemeanor 

and gross misdemeanor.  I just want to put that on the 

record.  Thank you very much.  

  MR. CORRADO:  All right.  You're welcome.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm well aware of the 

criminal charges.  

  MR. CORRADO:  Okay.  Thank you very much.  Have 

a great day.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Number 145, 
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Stephanie Amaya, are you here?  145, Stephanie Amaya?  

  Okay.  We will trail that.  

 146, Charles Meeks, are you here?  

  MR. MEEKS:  Yes, sir. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Do you 

understand you're under oath, sir?  

  MR. MEEKS:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'm going to turn 

this over to the investigator. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  In 2000, 

out of Oklahoma, the applicant was charged with larceny 

of merchandise from a retailer.  This was at felony 

level.  Disposition showed he was given one year in 

jail, where 315 days of those were suspended, and an 

unknown probation term.  This was not disclosed, and we 

do not have court docs.   

  The applicant did not disclose the arrest on 

the application.  He was initially made provisional on 

12-5 of '19 and was not on any roster.  The arrest was 

found on the fingerprint report, and he was denied on 

1-8 of this year.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do you want to 

explain what happened, please?  

  MR. MEEKS:  Okay.  The bottom line is I was 

wrong place, wrong time.  I was young.  My brother was 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

576 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

shoplifting, him and his friends.  And they got away.  

His friends pointed the finger at me, since I was over 

the age.  And I got arrested for their crime.  And next 

thing I know, I'm doing the -- I'm doing jail time for 

their crime that they committed. 

  And I did not disclose it because it was almost 

20 years ago.  And the time I went to go put the 

application in, it was too late.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Why?  I misunderstood.  

Why was it too late to disclose?  

  MR. MEEKS:  I already submitted the 

application.  And I had a lot of stuff already going on 

in my life already, taking care of mom and dad.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

  MR. MEEKS:  But that's my fault.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  What are you 

doing for employment now?  

  MR. MEEKS:  I'm a mobile mechanic.  I do 

mechanic work for disabled vets.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Any other questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  Where do you 

live now, sir?  

  MR. MEEKS:  I live here in Las Vegas, right 

here in North Las Vegas, 89030, over by Kerry and 
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Commerce.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  Are you 

registered with the Sheriff's Department?  

  MR. MEEKS:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Do you know what I 

mean?  Are you registered as an ex-felon?  

  MR. MEEKS:  Oh.  No, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Do you know the 

law on that?  

  MR. MEEKS:  No, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  I advise 

you to look that up, okay, about registering as an 

ex-felon with the Sheriff in Clark County.  

  MR. MEEKS:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  And that's all I have.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 

questions?  

 All right.  Call for a vote.  I'm sorry.  I'll 

call for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I move 

that we uphold Mr. Charles Meeks' denial due to 

nondisclosure. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  Second.  
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  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Brown will. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Gronauer seconds.  Any 

further discussion?  

 All right.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  

All those in favor of the motion, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed?  

 All right.  Mr. Meeks, good luck to you.  You 

can reapply in a year.  

  MR. MEEKS:  All right.  Thank you, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Number 147, 

Tonja Newson?  

  MS. NEWSON:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do you understand 

you're under oath?  

  MS. NEWSON:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll let the 

investigator jump in. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  1986, out of California, the 

applicant was charged with taking a vehicle without 

owner's consent, at misdemeanor level.  Disposition 

showed 180 days jail.  This was not disclosed.  We do 

not have court docs.  

 In June of the same year, in California, grand 
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theft from a person.  This was charged at misdemeanor 

level.  36 months probation, 180 days jail, not 

disclosed, no court docs.  

 January '87, California, possess CS 

paraphernalia, misdemeanor, six months jail, not 

disclosed, no court docs.  

 In March of '87, possess narcotic controlled 

substance, out of California.  This was a wobbler.  

Disposition showed a 16-month prison, did not disclose, 

and no court docs.  The wobbler means that it could be 

charged as either a misdemeanor or a felony.  

 April of '88, out of California, possess 

narcotic controlled substance.  Again, it was a wobbler.  

36 months probation, not disclosed, no court docs.  

 February '89, California, obstruct/resist a 

public officer, misdemeanor, 60 days jail, not 

disclosed, no court docs.  

 July '91, California, false ID to specific 

peace officers, misdemeanor, two years probation, nine 

days jail, not disclosed, no court docs.  

 February 2000, California, possess narcotic 

controlled substance, felony, 16 months prison, not 

disclosed, no court docs.  

 The applicant was initially made provisional on 

February of this year and hired by Contemporary Services 
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Corporation, license 1621, on February 19th of this 

year.  All arrests and convictions were found on the 

fingerprint report.  She was denied on March 10th of 

this year and terminated from CSC the same day.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Do you want to explain why you didn't disclose?  

  MS. NEWSON:  Well, I'm just so, I'm ashamed.  

I'm just so ashamed I can't even talk.  I got my life 

together now.  But I don't, I'm not a -- I was doing 

good.  And I didn't think I had to go back so far.  10 

years?  But there's more than that.  But I so 

embarrassed.  Even if you don't give it to me, I'll 

understand.  I'm 56 years old.  I was on drugs.  I lived 

in the projects.  I lived in Vegas.  I got a job.  I 

work at Amazon.  I'm a new driver.  But I'm just, oh, so 

sorry.  I didn't even realize I did all that stuff.  I 

know I did something.  I was on drugs.  I'm just, I'm so 

sorry.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  What 

we'll do, since you forgot most of these, and I believe 

you, is that we will ensure that you get a listing, that 

we'll send to you, either email or mail, so you'll 

remember in the future for whether you're applying for 

this job or any other.  

  MS. NEWSON:  I won't apply no more, because I'm 
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just, I'm done.  I never thought that it would come back 

this far.  I'm 57.  That happened over 20, 30 years ago.  

But I understand it.  But I'm done.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, no, but, you know, 

we're still having a meeting.  I'm only speaking for 

myself.  There's other Board members here.  

  MS. NEWSON:  I mean I was working, I was 

working in Vegas at the Sphere.  I worked at 3:00 at 

night to 11:00 in the afternoon, and that was my shift.  

And they wanted me back.  But I didn't even know I did 

anything until they came and got me.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

  MS. NEWSON:  I was like, what did I do?  And 

they pulled me from my post.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Take a 

breath.  

  MR. NEWSON:  Oh, yeah. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Maxwell, what was 

the year of the last arrest?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Yes, sir.  Investigator Maxwell.  

That was February of 2000.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  20 years ago.  

And did he disclose any? 

  MR. MAXWELL:  No, sir, nothing was disclosed.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you. 
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  Any other questions from the Board?  

  MS. NEWSON:  You know, my life was doing good.  

I just need a chance.  I'm embarrassed, though.  Just 

give me a chance.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay, ma'am.  Just catch 

your breath.   

  No other questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'll ask a couple 

questions.  Ms. -- it's Ms. Tonja, right?  

  MS. NEWSON:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Ms. Newson?  

  MS. NEWSON:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Where did you live when 

you were having the drug problems?  

  MS. NEWSON:  In the projects, they call it the 

biggest thing going in L.A.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  In L.A.  Okay.  Where 

do you live now?  

  MS. NEWSON:  I live in Vegas.  I live up here 

by Subway.  I got a new car.  My credit score is good.  

I work with Amazon.  I Lyft drive.  But I haven't done 

no Lyft driving since this stuff broke out.  And when it 

broke out, I was working at CRC.  And I was there at the 

Sphere.  I worked 3:00 at night.  And I was there every 

day.  They wrote a letter.  They want me to come back.  
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And I didn't even know what I did.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  It's okay.  I'm just 

trying to get some clarity out of it.  That's all.  No 

problem.  

  MS. NEWSON:  I haven't done nothing.  I'm so 

sorry.  I'm just, I just started crying when I heard her 

read that stuff.  I'm just sorry.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  All right.  We're not 

trying to hurt you or anything else.  We just have to do 

our job. 

  MS. NEWSON:  Okay. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Calm down.  Thank you.  

  MS. NEWSON:  I appreciate this.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 

questions from the Board?  

 All right.  I'll seek a motion.   

 Okay.  I'm calling for a motion a second time.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'm going to make a 

motion.  This is Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Go ahead, please.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  And it's against 

what we usually do, I mean what I usually do.  The 

nondisclosure is very, very important to me.  

  MS. NEWSON:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  And if you look at it 
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as being messed up on drugs and stuff.  But we've denied 

other people.  And I don't do this on pity or anything 

else.  I do it as a hand up rather than a hand out.  And 

I'm just trying to figure out what's the best thing to 

do.  I don't know Ms. Tonja at all.  I don't think it's 

telling for you all the way.  But the disclosure really 

bothers me.  And I just, I could just make the motion.  

It's up to the Board to do the rest.  I'll make a motion 

to grant the appeal.  

  MS. NEWSON:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion 

to grant the appeal.  Is there a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I would like to second.  

But, you know, again, I'm with Gronauer that this is  

normally not our practice.  But when I look at the 

crimes, it does seem as though most of them are, you 

know, not done to a particular person, most of them, but 

based off of drug addict or drug problems.  And so I 

will second this motion based off of time and distance. 

  MS. NEWSON:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I've got a 

motion.  I've got a second.  Any further discussion from 

the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I have to make it clear 

to everybody else, prior and after, that it is very 
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serious, again, I'll be redundant, about disclosure.  

This happens to be well over 20 years ago, and that's 

the reason I gave it a little extra okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I got a motion.   

I've got a second.  Any other discussion?  

  MS. NEWSON:  Thank you. 

 BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Hearing 

none, I'll call for a vote.  All those in favor, state 

"aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  MS. NEWSON:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed?  

 All right.  Motion carries.  Congratulations to 

you.  Good luck.  

  MS. NEWSON:  Thank you.  Thank you.  Thank you.  

Do I just hang up?  What do I do?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Ingram.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yeah, just go ahead and hang up.  

An investigator will reach out to you in the next day or 

so.  

  MS. NEWSON:  Thank you.  Thank you so much.  

Thank you.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you.  Bye-bye.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Number 148, 

Marian Williams.  Is Marian Williams here?  Calling 
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Marian Williams one more time? 

  All right.  I will trail this one.  

 Number 149, Timothy Baden?  

  MR. BADEN:  I'm here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Did I pronounce your 

last name correctly? 

  MR. BADEN:  Yes, you did.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Are you aware 

you're under oath?  

  MR. BADEN:  Yes, sir, I am.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Will the 

investigator please give us your report.  

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  The 

applicant was denied for a 1984 robbery with the use of 

a firearm, out of California.  This was a felony, where 

the applicant received a minimum of 12 years prison 

sentence.  The applicant did not disclose this arrest 

and conviction.  The fingerprint report showed the 

conviction and prison sentence.  

 Also in 1984, there was a grand theft property 

and report of false crime, which was a misdemeanor, 

where the applicant received 36 months probation and 180 

days in jail.  The applicant did not disclose this 

arrest and conviction.  And just to make it clear, the 

misdemeanor conviction was in April of 1984.  Whereas 
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the robbery with use of a firearm was November 30th of 

1984.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Baden, do you 

want to explain why you didn't disclose?  

  MR. BADEN:  The reason I didn't disclose was 

because twice, once by an apartment manager that did a 

background check on me for an apartment in California, 

told me I no longer -- I didn't have a record showing.  

Well, I verified that with the Riverside County Sheriff, 

a deputy at the Riverside County Sheriff's Department 

that told me the same thing.  So it was my understanding 

that I no longer needed to disclose.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  So let me understand.  

An apartment manager told you you didn't need to  

disclose?  

  MR. BADEN:  Well, no, an apartment manager told 

me that I no longer -- well, she did say I didn't need 

to disclose.  But I went to the sheriff's department to 

verify, and they told me the same.  I was told the same 

thing there, I no longer had to disclose.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Did you get anything in 

writing?  

  MR. BADEN:  No, I didn't.  It was verbal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Do you remember who the 

deputy was?  
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  MR. BADEN:  No, sir, I don't.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  What are you 

doing currently for work?  

  MR. BADEN:  I'm on Social Security, and I'm an 

ordained pastor.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other arrests 

besides that robbery one in 1984?  

  MR. BADEN:  Not that I can remember.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And what was the 

circumstances of the robbery?  

  MR. BADEN:  I had just lost my mom.  And I 

allowed myself to be influenced. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Who did you rob?  

  MR. BADEN:  I robbed a store.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Was anybody 

injured?  

  MR. BADEN:  No.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And what are you 

doing for employment now?  

  MR. BADEN:  I'm on Social Security.  And, as I 

say, I am an ordained pastor now.  I don't get paid for 

it.  What I do is I do broadcast.  I've been doing 

broadcast over KKBV.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  Thank 

you.  
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 Any other questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Can I just -- I'm sorry.  

Can I just confirm the name is Timothy Baden?  

  MR. BADEN:  Yes.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  So, I guess, I go 

back to the original.  Even if someone told you that you 

didn't need to disclose anymore, the application states 

"Have you ever been arrested?"  I just have such a hard 

time with, you know, not disclosing these that are even 

arrested.  

  MR. BADEN:  I can understand that, from having 

sat here yesterday and listened, because I was told 

yesterday I needed to call.  And then for the few hours 

that I've been listening today, I can understand that.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any other questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah, I have a 

question.  How much time did you do, how much time did 

you build in prison?  

  MR. BADEN:  I did eight and a half years.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  So you were 

around 29 years old when this robbery occurred, correct?  

  MR. BADEN:  About 27, I think.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  Where did you do 

your time?  

  MR. BADEN:  I did it in -- the last place I was 
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at was in Norco, California.  But I was also, I started 

out in Tehachapi.  And I went to Donovan Correctional 

Facility.  And I paroled out of the facility in Norco.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  And you are off 

all paper now?  

  MR. BADEN:  Yes, I am.  I have been '96.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  No problem.  

Thank you. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any other questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Well, you know, let me 

make another statement.  Okay.  Because it always helps 

to, because since everybody else is on the line, if you 

don't mind, Mr. Chairman?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  No, not at all.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  You know, 

listening, you know, I understand people in California 

and Nevada, they run, property managers are supposed to 

run background checks.  That don't mean they do real 

good.  Some background checks for gun purchases don't 

always come back properly, because they're not always 

ran properly.  And to go to a police department to run, 

they could just run a local thing and say there's 

nothing.  Because you'd have to do -- I think, Ray would 

understand, I mean the Chairman would understand a 

Triple I or something like that to find out your 
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information.   

  So it is still is incumbent on the applicant, 

on every applicant, to "Were you ever arrested?"  Ever.  

And most of our applicants sound very, very intelligent.  

They sound intelligent enough to read the question and 

write the answer.   

  I want to make sure everybody understands that.  

I'm good.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 

questions?  

 All right.  Hearing none, I'll entertain a 

motion. 

 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  My motion -- 

this is Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  My motion is to deny 

the appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion 

to deny.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I 

reluctantly second.  I just wish they would just.  I 

second. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any further discussion?  

 Hearing none, I'll call a vote.  All those in 

favor of the motion, state "aye."  
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  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  The appeal is denied.  

Mr. Baden, good luck to you.  And, please, please, reply 

next year, and remember to disclose.  

  MR. BADEN:  I will.  And thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  George Harvey,  

number 150?  

  MR. HARVEY:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Harvey, do 

you understand you're under oath?  

  MR. HARVEY:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  For the 

investigator, can you please present?  

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  The 

applicant was denied for a December 22nd, 1989 

transport/sell narcotics, slash, controlled substance, 

out of California, at a felony level, where the 

applicant received three years of probation.  The 

applicant did not disclose the arrest and conviction.  

It was found on his fingerprint report.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Harvey, do 

you want to explain why you didn't disclose?  

  MR. HARVEY:  I didn't know.  I didn't know.  

Because I got out, and then around eighty -- but, I 

think, '95 I started my own business.  And ever since, 
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I've just been doing my own business.  And I moved to 

Las Vegas.  And I haven't been in trouble.  So it wasn't 

nothing that I was thinking of.  All I was thinking 

about was trying to better myself, and that's what I 

did.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You do remember you were 

arrested, correct?  

  MR. HARVEY:  I do and I don't.  It was so long.  

And I know that might sound crazy.  But I, like I said, 

I do and I don't.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  What are you 

doing for employment now?  

  MR. HARVEY:  I'm self-employed here in Vegas.  

I've been here 14 years and still run my same business 

for 14 years.  And I just opened up a nonprofit  

corporation for my daughters.  And that's what I'm 

doing, just my business, self-employed.  Still have the 

same location.   

  And to be honest with you, I actually just went 

to get the security job because I've never had a job, 

and it was actually a bid, and I actually got the job 

itself.  And it ended up, turned out being good. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Any other 

questions from the Board?  

 Hearing none, I'll call for a motion.  
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  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I move to 

deny the appeal due to nondisclosure.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

I have a second.  Any other discussion?   

  All right.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  

All those in favor, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carries.  

Mr. Harvey, please apply next year, and remember to 

disclose.  

  MR. HARVEY:  All right.  You guys have a 

wonderful day.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  You, too.  

 Number 151, Stephen Mitchell.  Mr. Mitchell, 

are you here?  Calling Stephen Mitchell, number 151?  

 All right.  We'll trail that.  

 Mr. Lawrence Moore? 

  MR. MITCHELL:  I'm here.  I'm here.  I'm here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Who's this?  

  MR. MITCHELL:  Stephen Mitchell.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Sir, do you 

understand you're under oath?  All right.  You've got a 
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lot of background.  So let's try it again.  

Mr. Mitchell, do you understand you're under oath?  

  MR. MITCHELL:  Yeah.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Investigator, 

please proceed. 

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  The 

applicant was denied for a 1999 petty theft with prior 

offenses, out of California.  This was a felony level.  

Convicted with three years probation, two years prison 

suspended, 180 days jail suspended.  The applicant did 

not disclose this arrest.  This was found on the 

fingerprint report.  In California, petty theft with 

prior convictions can be charged as a felony.  

 In 1998, out of the California, there was a 

petty theft with prior jail term.  This was charged as a 

misdemeanor, where the applicant was convicted, 36 

months probation, 13 days jail and a fine.  The 

applicant was also sentenced to a work program.  

 In 1996, out of California, there was a 

shoplifting charge, where it was reduced to a fight, 

slash, challenge in a public place.  The applicant did 

not disclose this.  It shows that the shoplifting charge 

was dismissed.  And the applicant was convicted of 

fighting or challenge to fight in a public place, 

receiving three days in jail. 
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 Again in 1996, out of California, petty theft 

of personal property, misdemeanor.  The fingerprint 

report says there was a conviction, with no other 

disposition given.  

 In 2018, out of California, driving with no 

license, a misdemeanor, where the applicant received a 

fine and a five-day jail time.  They did disclose this 

on the application.  The fingerprint report showed the 

applicant was arrested for driving without a license and 

driving on a suspended license five times:  2009, 2012 

twice, 2013, and again in 2016.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Anything else?  

  MR. SALADINO:  That's it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Mitchell, why 

didn't you disclose?  

  MR. MITCHELL:  Well, the '90s stuff, that was 

all ran concurrently, and it was dropped down to a 

misdemeanor.  I didn't know.  I was straight from county 

for like a year.  I didn't know how far they went back.  

Other than that, I would have reported that.  And I 

reported everything else about my driving.  That was it.  

And mostly I just have the driving tickets.  But, you 

know, in the '90s and stuff, I was staying in L.A.  I 

just had my first kid.  I was doing anything I can to 

get money.  That was it.  But other than that, I didn't 
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know how far they went back.  I thought it was, you 

know, like California, like 10 years or something like 

that.  But other than that.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay, sir.  Just for 

clarification, I mean I've seen the application several 

times, and it says "Have you ever been arrested?"  It 

doesn't put a timeline on it.  And I hear a lot, I hear 

a lot today, this, you know, talking about -- 

  MR. MITCHELL:  Well, when you're coming from, 

when you're coming from another state, you don't know 

the rules exactly right off the back to where you are -- 

you kind of, you kind of assume that if they don't go 

too far back, to where most of the states.  Most of the 

states go back no more than 10 years or 15 years, so.  

So, you know.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I'm not 

going to get in an argument with you.  What are you 

doing for employment right now? 

  MR. MITCHELL:  Right now, I work sanitation.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And how long have 

you been doing that, sir?  

  MR. MITCHELL:  All my life.  But since I've 

been out here, I've been doing that since I lost the 

security job.  So that's been a while now.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  Any 
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other questions from the Board?  

  MR. MITCHELL:  Yeah.  Well, not a question.  

I'm sorry.  A comment.  Like it's kind of like a little 

bias, because you -- I heard a lot of people cry, and 

all that, telling their 30-year story, and you guys just 

deny them like that.  And what I'm saying is you only 

denied them because of this, because they didn't tell 

about it.  Some of these people, they're 60 years old, 

don't even remember it.  But that's the way to go.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I appreciate your 

comment.  Thank you.  

 Any other questions from the Board?  

  MR. MITCHELL:  Hm-m (negative).  Just hurry up 

and deny it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Sir, it's 

not your time.  It's the Board's time.  

 Okay.  I'll entertain a motion, since there's 

no questions.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  I will honor Mr. Mitchell's request and move to 

deny the application.  Or the...  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  
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I have a second.  Any other discussion?  

 Okay.  All those in favor of the motion, state 

"aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any opposed?  

 The motion carried.  Mr. Mitchell, please 

reapply in a year.  And disclose everything, please.  

That's what we require in Nevada.  

  Okay.  Number 152, Lawrence Moore? 

  MR. MOORE:  Yes, sir. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Good afternoon, 

Mr. Moore.  Are you aware you're under oath?   

  MR. MOORE:  I'm sorry? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Are you aware you are 

under oath?  Did you take an oath before?  

  MR. MOORE:  Oh, yes, sir.  Yes, sir.  Yes, sir, 

I'm very aware, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  

Investigator, please proceed.  

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  The 

applicant was denied for a 1998 bank robbery, out of 

Texas, at a felony level, where the applicant was 

convicted, five years 11 months prison term.  This 

arrest and conviction was not disclosed.  The 

fingerprint report showed the applicant received five 
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years and 11 months prison.  On April 4th of the 2003, 

he was released on a supervised release program.   

  In December 4th of 2003, out of Texas, he 

received an aiding and abetting supervised release 

violation.  There was no, it wasn't categorized as a 

misdemeanor, gross misdemeanor or felony.  He did 

receive 12 more months.  This was not disclosed.  And 

the applicant did 12 months in a Federal Bureau of 

Prisons.  This was found on the fingerprint report.  

  Nothing further.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Moore, do you 

want to explain why you didn't disclose?  

  MR. MOORE:  Well, the charge, that happened so 

long ago, like I mean like maybe like, what, 20 years 

ago.  And like I relocated.  I relocated, once I got out 

of prison, and moved to a different state, because it's 

like, but they tell you like if you relocate from a 

different state and change your life.  Which I have 

done.  I moved to California, met my wife.  We moved out 

here.  I think, think 2005 we moved out here.  Got 

married 2011.  I got made head of security 2008, was 

decorated 2008, employee of the month, employee of the 

year 2007.  All my jobs have been security out here.  

 And let me add, let me add, let them go back to 

that 12 months.  The reason why they gave me the 12 
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months is because the probation officer gave me a 

choice.  He said, "If you go to a treatment center and 

give me 90 days sobriety, I'll keep you out on the 

streets."  Which I had done that successfully, graduated 

the program, and he still went and put the -- he still 

went and put the bench warrant out for my arrest.  

Which, which when they got me back to Texas, they were 

going to subpoena him.  But I told them, no, because he 

had gave me adequate enough time to get myself together, 

and he could have locked me up.  And that's why I was 

like being a man about it.  And I told the judge, I was 

like, "Sir, look, I did what I did, he did what he did."  

So the judge was like, "Okay.  I'll give you 12 months, 

cut you loose."  And once I did that, I moved out here 

on the west coast, ain't had a speeding ticket since 

'05.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Are you living in 

Las Vegas now?  

  MR. MOORE:  It was one speeding ticket, one 

speeding ticket, too.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Moore, are you 

living in Las Vegas now?  

  MR. MOORE:  Sir, I live across the street where 

the Raiders' practice facility is at.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And what are you 
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doing for employment?  

  MR. MOORE:  Well, currently, right now, I'm 

union right now.  So they got me on unemployment due to 

the Covid thing right now.  And I was working for CSC.  

So.  And I was working over at the Sphere.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right. 

  MR. MOORE:  And they pulled my from over there 

at the Sphere.  And I've been on unemployment ever 

since, with Caesar's Palace.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you. 

  Any other questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon for the 

investigator.  So he said he's been working security for 

the last, since he's been here in Vegas, which has been 

some time.  Is that for a casino, or has that been --   

  MR. MOORE:  A hotel resort, ma'am, on 

Convention Center Drive, ma'am.  I got plaques, I got 

plaques, I got plaques.  I've been on the honor roll out 

here.  I've been in the Cordon Bleu.  I graduated the 

Cordon Bleu, 2013 honor roll graduate.  I got all my 

certificates, everything.  I'm decorated out here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any other questions?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  So I'm assuming, then, he 

was working for a casino, directly for a casino, not 

subcontracted to a company.  Because I also heard CSC. 
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  MR. MOORE:  Just --  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Sir, this is for the 

investigator.   

  Because I also heard CSC.  And so I'm just a 

little confused. 

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  

  MR. MOORE:  Well, the security job that I 

held --  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Moore, please let 

the investigator speak.  Thank you.  

  MR. MOORE:  Oh, I'm sorry.  

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  

According to the applicant's application, he wrote down 

the Royal Resort Hotel out here in Las Vegas from 

October 23 of 2011 to November 15th of 2016, where he 

did security.  The reason for leaving, he put laid off.  

The applicant was originally made provisional on 

February 25th of 2020, because of the nondisclosure.  He 

was working for CSC until he was terminated on 

March 10th of 2020 when we received the fingerprint 

report.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  Got it.  Sorry.  

Thank you.  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 

questions?  
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  MR. MOORE:  Oh, sir, can I add?  That 2011 was 

the second time.  The first time I worked at the Royal 

Resort, like I said, was in 2006.  That was the first 

time.  Now, like I say, when they ran -- back then, that 

was the mob ran that hotel.  So it was like, like it was 

word of mouth.  They hired me.  And then like I held it 

down.  I held it down with no weapon for 10 years there 

by myself.  Which they made me head of security there at 

the hotel.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Moore, no one is 

questioning your work employment history.  Thank you.  

  MR. MOORE:  Oh, okay.  I'm sorry.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I believe 

your employment history, I personally do.  

 All right.  Any other questions from the Board?  

 All right.  Hearing none, I'll call for a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This Commissioner Nixon.  

I move that we uphold the denial, due to nondisclosure, 

of Mr. Lawrence Moore.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I have a 

motion.  I have a second.  Any further discussion?  
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 All right.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  

All those in favor of the motion, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  The motion 

passes.  Mr. Moore, please reapply in a year.  Thank 

you. 

  MR. MOORE:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Ingram.  Mr. Ingram, 

we've been going over two hours.  We're going to take a 

bio break, five minutes.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Sounds great.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  We're on 

break.  

* * * * * 

(A break was taken, 2:36 to 2:41 p.m.) 

* * * * * 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Hello.  It's Ray.  Can 

you hear me? 

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes, sir.  Thank you, Chairman. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do we need to do 

anymore oaths, or are we good?  

  MR. INGRAM:  I think, it's probably a pretty 

good idea to do oaths again, because the last group to 

call in was 2:30.  So we might as well get that taken 

care of before we move forward.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

  MR. INGRAM:  That will take us through agenda 

item 172.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll leave it up 

to you and Mr. Detmer.  I'm going to go on mute. 

  MR. DETMER:  Good afternoon.  For those of you 

who are about to testify, can you raise your right hand?  

Do you hereby swear or affirm to tell the truth, the 

whole truth, and nothing but the truth?  

  (Applicants and witnesses present were 

sworn/affirmed.) 

  MR. INGRAM:  And I'm sorry.  Shannon, are you 

back from break? 

  THE REPORTER:  Yes.  Yes, Kevin, I'm right 

here.  Thank you. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Wonderful.  So we'll go ahead and 

take roll call now that everybody's been sworn in, make 

sure everybody's back from our break.   

  So, Chair Flynn?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm here.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Board Member Brown?  Board Member 

Brown?  

 Board Member Gronauer?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'll say what the 

attorney says, I'm present.  



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

607 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

  MR. INGRAM:  You are a present.   

  Board Member Nixon?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I am here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Oh, that's good.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I am here. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Board Member Brown?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  I am present.  I was at 

the time, but I was locked out of my phone.  I'm trying 

to remember my passcode.  

  MR. INGRAM:  You were successful, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Try one, two, three, 

four.  

  MR. INGRAM:  So we do have all the Board 

members present, we do have a quorum, we do have legal 

counsel with us, and our court reporter is ready, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I believe, we're 

153.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Gary 

Territo, are you here, sir?  Gary Territo? 

  All right.  We will trail that one.  

 John Arzu?  

  MR. ARZU:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Did I 

pronounce that correct, sir?  
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  MR. ARZU:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do you understand 

you're under oath?  

  MR. ARZU:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I'll let the 

investigator speak.  

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  The 

applicant was denied for a 1981 brandishing a firearm or 

weapon, in California.  This was charged as a 

misdemeanor, where the applicant received 24 months 

probation, 30 days in jail.  The applicant did not 

disclose this weapon conviction.  This charge in 

California can be charged as a felony or a misdemeanor.  

Since the applicant received 24 months of probation, it 

was charged as a misdemeanor.  

 In 1986, out of California, there was a charge 

for alien smuggling.  There was no level attached to it.  

It was an arrest only.  No charges were filed.  

 In 1987, out of California, there was a willful 

cruelty to a child possibly causing death.  This also 

was charged as a misdemeanor, where the applicant was 

convicted with 24 months probation, 65 days jail time 

suspended.  

 In 1991, out of California, felony spouse 

beating, slash, inflict corporal injury to spouse.  This 
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was at a felony level.  The applicant received a 

prefiling deferral.  The fingerprint report shows the 

prosecution moved forward with the prefiling deferral, 

which is a diversion program, and did not report 

anything further.  

 In 1992, out of California, there was a felony 

level insufficient funds for a check, where he was 

convicted, two-year prison sentence.  This also was not 

disclosed. 

 In 1993, out of California, there was an 

assault with a deadly weapon not a firearm causing 

substantial bodily injury and battery as well.  This was 

dismissed due to a lack of -- to a delay.   

 In 2016, out of California, the applicant was 

charged with offering a false instrument for filing, 

slash, forgery.  There was no disposition for this 

charge.  

 The applicant was notified on June 5th, 2020 

about a warrant.  On July 28th, 2020, I spoke with the 

applicant about the warrant.  I was unsure if there was 

a language or a comprehension issue.  The applicant is 

78 years old and stated his attorney is working on the 

warrant and will get more information.  The applicant 

believes the warrant is a case of identity theft.  The 

applicant was made provisional but never worked for a 
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licensed company.  He was not on anybody's roster.  

 That's it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Vinny, you might 

need to either change your batteries or put on a new 

cover on your mic with your headset.  You've got a lot 

of background coming through when you speak.  

  MR. SALADINO:  All right.  Sorry about that.  I 

grabbed my headset now, my other one.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  

Mr. Arzu, what do you know about this warrant, or do you 

know anything about it?  

  MR. ARZU:  Yes.  I applied for Section 8 

housing, and they're the one that told me about this 

warrant.  And I told them people had been using my 

identity.  And I got the three credit agencies.  And I 

talked to my lawyer about it.  I'm a member of a shield 

at home.  My lawyer told me that being a veteran, that 

another veteran was using my identity.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  What branch of 

service did you serve our country?  

  MR. ARZU:  I served in the United States Army 

in Vietnam.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, thank you for your 

service, sir.  I appreciate that personally.  

  MR. ARZU:  Thank you.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Why did you not disclose 

these arrests?  

  MR. ARZU:  Well, because I was a younger man.  

And just had got out of the Vietnam service.  And I was 

attending counseling to get my mind back together.  And 

I was -- I had a lot of nervous and the scaredness in 

me.  And I was seeing a psychiatrist.  And I went to 

bank teller school, graduated, and started working at 

the bank as a bank teller.  And I had issues working at 

the bank.  I was hearing voices.  And I worked for Bank 

of America, main branch, in Van Nuys.  And they let me 

go because of my Vietnam experience, my problem after 

the service.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And then I just want to 

digress.  Vinny, it's obviously not your headset.  I 

believe, it's Mr. Arzu's phone.  My apologies.  

  MR. SALADINO:  No problem.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  What are you 

doing now for employment, sir?  

  MR. ARZU:  I'm a Salvation Army soldier and a 

born again Christian for 25 years.  I don't drink.  I 

don't smoke.  And my drinking was my problem back there.  

And I'm eventually here to work locally.  And I 

volunteer with the Salvation Army.  And I went to 

correction officer school.  And I'm doing community 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

612 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

corrections.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  MR. ARZU:  You're welcome. 

 BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any other questions from 

the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Sir, did you remember the 

incidences that happened, you know, back in the early 

'90s?  

  MR. ARZU:  Yes, ma'am, I remember.  But I have, 

I have problems in the United States Army back there.  

And I attend my, I was going to hospital, VA hospital 

for treatment.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I understand that and, you 

know, appreciate your service as well.  But you did 

remember these incidences at the time of the 

application?  

  MR. ARZU:  No, ma'am, I don't remember.  I had 

issues back there, because my wife left me for another 

man.  And I had, I was working doing security and armed 

security.  And I used my service weapon and shoot up in 

the air.  I ain't shot at nobody.  I shot up in the air.  

Because I was upset because she left me for another man.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  So that was the 

first one.  Okay.  Got it. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 
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questions?  

 Hearing none, I'll seek a motion.  

 I'll seek a motion a second time.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I move 

that we uphold the denial based off of nondisclosure and 

the amount of issues.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Understood.  All right.  

I have a motion.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

I have a second.  Any discussion?  

 All right.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  

All those in favor of the motion, say "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed, say "nay." 

 Okay.  The motion carries.  Mr. Arzu, good luck 

to you.  Please remember to disclose everything if you 

decide to reapply in a year.  You have a good day, sir.  

  MR. ARZU:  Yes, sir.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you for 

your time and your service.  

  MR. ARZU:  All right.  Thank you.  Bye-bye.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Number 155, 

Alex Robinson.  

  MR. ROBINSON:  Yes.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Robinson, is that 

you?  

  MR. ROBINSON:  Yes, I'm here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do you understood 

you're under oath?  

  MR. ROBINSON:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  I'll 

let the investigator proceed. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  In 1986, 

out of California, the applicant was charged with 

possession of a narcotic controlled substance at the 

felony level.  Disposition showed was three years 

probation.  It was not disclosed.  SCOPE showed the 

applicant to be a convicted felon.  He was made 

provisional in error, but that was then rectified.  The 

felony conviction was not disclosed.  The fingerprints 

showed applicant was convicted of a felony and did three 

years probation.  This information was confirmed with 

the applicant on the telephone.  And he did not have 

court documents from this 34-year-old arrest.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Robinson, why 

didn't you disclose?  

  MR. ROBINSON:  I didn't think you all went back 

that far.  But if I would have asked, I would have found 

out you all went farther back.  So at that time, I 
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thought it was probably 7 to 10 years.  I'm sorry for 

that.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  What are you 

doing for employment now?  

  MR. ROBINSON:  Oh, right now, I'm on Social 

Security.  I'm not working at the time.  But I'm 

pursuing work now.  So I want to get my guard card now.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  How long have you 

lived in Nevada?  

  MR. ROBINSON:  Since 2013.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Any other questions from the Board?  

 All right.  Hearing none, I'll accept a motion.  

 Call for a motion a second time.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  I'll make a 

motion.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'll make a motion to 

deny the appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  I 

have a motion.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

I have a second.  Any further discussion?  

 Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All those 
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in favor of the motion, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any opposed, state 

"nay." 

 Okay.  Motion carries.  Mr. Robinson, good luck 

to you.  And please disclose if you choose to reapply in 

a year.  

  MR. ROBINSON:  All right.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Number 156, Michael 

Strawberry?   

  MR. STRAWBERRY:  Michael Strawberry here, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do you understand 

you're under oath?  

  MR. STRAWBERRY:  Yes, sir, I do.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Thank you.  

 All right.  Investigator, please proceed. 

 MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  In 2001, 

out of California, the applicant was charged with the 

offense of false checks, records, certificate, 

et cetera, at a felony level.  The disposition showed 

that he received 56 days jail, which was suspended, 

three years probation.  He did disclose.  The charge was 

later reduced to a misdemeanor, then dismissed under 

1203.4 PC.  And this was disclosed on the application.  

 2006, out of California, he was charged with 
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carrying a concealed weapon in a vehicle.  This was at 

misdemeanor level.  The disposition was a three-year 

probation and a fine.  And this was not disclosed.  

 The applicant was initially made provisional on 

6-17 of 2020 and was hired by Dragon Master Security, 

license number 1652, on 7-14 of this year.  The arrests 

were confirmed and found on the fingerprint report.  He 

was denied on 7-17-2020 and was terminated by Dragon 

Master Security the same day.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  Mr. Strawberry, do you want to tell us why you 

didn't disclose that arrest?  

  MR. STRAWBERRY:  Well, I was -- actually, I 

guess, it was removed off my record, from what I was 

told back when I had gotten arrested.  So it was totally 

removed, you know, off my record.  And I had no 

knowledge of it.  When I came here to Vegas, I've been 

working Sunrise Hospital, MGM, working with everyone.  I 

mean I've been doing securities, you know, practically 

all my life.  I was an LAPD officer prior to the arrest 

when I had the concealed weapon, when I had the weapon 

actually, and I had my badge with me and everything.  So 

I was technically working.  I mean it was like, I mean I 

was, been -- well, I had any badge and my gun, but it 

wasn't, wasn't on me, but it was in my carry-on bag, so.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Who told you that you 

didn't have to disclose?  Now, I understand you did 

disclose the felony.  And it's more recent.  And I do 

appreciate that.  I will take that into consideration.  

I'm just curious, I mean not more recent, why you didn't 

disclose the most recent arrest, which was for the CCW.  

I'm confused.  

  MR. STRAWBERRY:  Well, the CCW was a law.  I 

was under the impression that it was taken away as well.  

It was, you know, it was, as far as I new.  Put it that 

way.  I didn't know that that was still on my record.  

It was supposedly, it had gotten taken care of.  So.  

And that's the only thing that I can imagine why.  I 

don't know why it came up, because it was pretty much 

taken care of.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  What do you mean by 

pretty much taken care of?  I don't understand.  

  MR. STRAWBERRY:  Well, I mean what I'm saying 

is I, when I got arrested, supposedly the case was a no, 

it was taken away.  So the weapon was with the case that 

I was on, which I had gotten arrested for.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  So for the investigator, 

on that case, was it dismissed?  

  MR. STRAWBERRY:  It was dismissed.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Oh, no, I'm asking the 
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investigator. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  The 

documentation I've got does not show a dismissal, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And does it show 

a fine, a forfeiture, time served?   

  MR. MAXWELL:  All it shows, sir, is a 

three-year probation and a fine.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  Got 

it.  All right.  Mr. Strawberry, what are you doing for 

employment right now, sir?  

  MR. STRAWBERRY:  Well, sir, I had a stroke in 

2018.  So I had been working until, until I got notified 

that I wasn't able to work here.  So it's been two years 

now since I've worked, so.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'm sorry about 

your stroke.  

  MR. STRAWBERRY:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I hope you're 

recovering.  

  MR. STRAWBERRY:  I had two strokes.  I had 

another stroke in 2019.  So, you know, I'm getting back, 

trying to get back to work and do what I have to do, 

sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  What did you do 

prior to the stroke?  
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  MR. STRAWBERRY:  I was working at Sunrise 

Hospital, security, a public safety officer.  And I was 

working at MGM as well.  So I was working at both 

places.  So that's where I had the stroke, when I was at 

MGM, when I was rescuing some people from a car, a 

burning car, and things like that.  So I had the stroke  

that night.  And the following day, I went to Sunrise, 

where I worked, Sunrise Hospital, where I worked.  And I 

was in the hospital for, you know, about a week and a 

half.  And then I had another stroke in 2019, in April.  

So I was in the hospital for about a week and a half 

there as well. 

  So I'm just, you know, fully recovering now 

with meds and went to the doctor and everything.  And I 

was here at Planet 13 when I got the notice that I 

wasn't able to work there, so.  No other place had done 

that, Sunrise or MGM had, or even the other, prior 

security job I had, had anything as far as that's 

concerned, as far as what happened here at Planet 13. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  Any other questions from the Board?  

  Yeah, go ahead.   

  All right.  I guess, no questions.  I will 

entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.  I'll make 
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a motion.  I move to deny the appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I have a 

motion.  I have a second.  Any further discussion?  

 All right.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  

All those in favor, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any opposed, say 

"nay." 

 Okay.  Motion carries.  Mr. Strawberry, good 

luck to you.  Please reapply in a year, and include 

everything.  

  MR. STRAWBERRY:  All right.  Thank you, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Thank you.  

 All right.  Number 157, Eddie Thomas.  

Mr. Thomas, are you here?  

  MR. THOMAS:  That's me, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do you understand 

you're under oath?  

  MR. THOMAS:  Yes, sir. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  The investigator, 

please proceed.  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  The 
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applicant was arrested in 1993, out of California, for 

carrying a concealed weapon on his person.  This was at 

misdemeanor level.  Disposition showed one year 

probation and a fine.  This was not disclosed, and we do 

not have court docs.  

 In 2006, out of Washington, possession with 

intent to distribute marijuana, felony level, 14 months 

custody, three years supervised release.  This one was 

disclosed.  

 January 2009, out of Washington, probation 

violation, unknown level.  The applicant entered a 

guilty plea on 2-10 of '09 and was sentenced to 60 days, 

with credit for time served, and 30 months supervised 

release.  This was not disclosed.   

 The applicant disclosed the felony conviction 

on his application and was not made provisional.  

Arrests were found and confirmed with the fingerprint 

report.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Unless you're one 

of the applicants being heard right now, I need you to 

put your phones on mute.  Thank you.  

 Mr. Thomas.  

  MR. THOMAS:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Why didn't you disclose?  

  MR. THOMAS:  You know what, sir, I just totally 
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forgot about it.  Like I've been listening to the other, 

the guys and the ladies on the phone.  I just, it was so 

long ago, I just, just didn't put it on there.  But with 

the marijuana, I did disclose everything there.  I'm 

sorry about that.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, how long have you 

lived in Las Vegas?  

  MR. THOMAS:  Well, sir, I was going to tell you 

a little bit about how I made my journey here.  I'm an 

ex-CFL and NFL football player.  First of all, I made 

poor choices back then and bad decisions.  And moving 

from there, after being, my marijuana conviction, I was 

in the Seattle area coaching kids football and a chef 

until present.  Me and my wife decided to move here to 

Las Vegas before the pandemic in February.  I was hired 

by Safe working at the Allegiant field with the Raiders 

and doing security with the Raiders, UNLV and concerts.   

  And that's what brought me here.  We were going 

to buy property.  Well, we still are.  But the pandemic 

kind of slowing the income down.  But I am hired through 

Safe.  But they need, I needed a PILB card, so they told 

me to apply for it.   

  And, once again, that's how I made my journey 

here with my wife.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And then, for the 
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investigator, let me make sure I understand this.  He 

did disclose the felony, but he neglected to disclose 

the misdemeanor?   

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  That is 

correct, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  And then, just for my own edification, 

Mr. Thomas, how long did you play for the NFL?  

  MR. THOMAS:  Oh, I played from 1990.  I got 

drafted in 1990 to Cleveland.  And then from Cleveland, 

I went up to Edmonton, won a couple Grey Cup rings, went 

to the Superbowl in '93 with the Chargers.  We lost to 

the Niners.  Stan Humphreys was our quarterback.  I'm a 

gunner, meaning I run up and down the field, special 

teams, defensive back.  I went up to D.C. Lions in '94, 

'5, Grey Cup.  Played with Detroit Arena League, Detroit 

Lions.  And Winnipeg through '98 to 2000.   

  And then I retired.  And that's when I got in a 

little bit of trouble with the marijuana situation.  And 

like my mother said, I made a poor decision, I mean a 

bad decision and poor choice.  And I'm just trying to 

move on, and me and my wife, and work mostly, you know, 

you guys.  Ray, I don't know what's going to happen, but 

work for the Raiders, who my good friend got me in to 

work with those guys security.  And here I am.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you.  

  MR. THOMAS:  You're welcome.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any other questions from 

the Board?  

 Hearing no questions from the Board, I'll 

entertain a motion.  

 Call for a motion a second time.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Commissioner 

Nixon, or Board Member Nixon.  I make a motion to 

decline the appeal for Mr. Thomas.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

I have a second.  Any other discussion?   

  All right.  All in favor of the motion, state 

"aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carried.  

Mr. Thomas, you can probably tell by the inflection of 

the voices, this was not a popular decision.  I just 

wish you would have disclosed everything.  Please 

reapply in a year.  And good luck to you.  I'd like to 

see you reapply.  And if you disclose everything, I will 

probably lean towards it.  You have a good day, sir.  
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  MR. THOMAS:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  

Number 158, Schlinda Maxwell?  

  MS. MAXWELL:  Present.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Ms. Maxwell, 

do you understand you're under oath?  

  MS. MAXWELL:  Yes, I do.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll let the 

investigator speak.  

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  The 

applicant was denied for a 1998 burglary and impersonate 

to make other liable, out of the California, where they 

were convicted, three years probation and 90 days 

suspended jail sentence.  The applicant did not disclose 

this arrest and conviction.  This was found on the 

fingerprint report.  Both of the charges are considered 

wobblers in California, so they can be charged as 

felonies or misdemeanors.  

 The applicant was contacted on April 13th via 

email with the details of her case, to include phone 

numbers and case number.  The applicant did not provide 

any court documents to show if the charges were a felony 

level or misdemeanors.  And then she was denied.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Ms. Maxwell, do 

you want to explain why you didn't disclose your 
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arrests?  

  MS. MAXWELL:  I had, I believed I had typed it 

in on the website.  But when I received -- I did receive 

their email today.  I was going through my old emails.  

My phone wasn't working at that time.  So that's the 

only reason why I didn't disclose it to you.   

  It was a misdemeanor charge.  I did 10 days in 

jail.  I had used a credit card.  I was dealing with the 

wrong type of people, and they talked me into using a 

credit card for money.  And when I went into the store 

to use it, when the gentleman went to use the card, I 

ran out of the store.  And he ran after me and got my 

license plate.  And a few months later, I got arrested 

for that.  And I did the 10 days.  So, I believe, I was 

in jail for 10 days.   

  And then, after that, I started working 

nonstop.  I currently am working for CSC.  I've been 

working for CSC since 2012, I believe, or 2013.  I just 

recently got my guard card, though, last year.  But I've 

been doing security with them for the past eight years.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And where were you doing 

the work, was it in California?  

  MS. MAXWELL:  Yes, I've been doing it in 

California.  And they had asked if I wanted to work for 

EDC.  And so I went and I had got my fingerprinting done 
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and whatnot.  And like I said, I believed I had put it 

on the application.  I know I typed it in.  But I don't 

believe it saved it.  So I apologize for that.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Are you currently 

living in California, or are you living in Nevada?  

  MS. MAXWELL:  I'm currently living in 

California.  But I'm looking to seek employment in 

Nevada with CoreCivic.  I wanted to see if I could 

become a correctional officer.  But I need to have my 

guard card and, not only that, go through the process 

and whatnot, which I'm doing right now in California.  

  So that's the reason why I would like to get my 

guard card.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 All right.  Any other questions from the Board?  

 All right.  Hearing none, I'll call for a 

motion.  

 Call for a motion a second time. 

 BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  This is Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I make a motion for 

denial.  You've got to fill out the application. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I have a 

motion.  Do I -- I need a second.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I second.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I have a 

motion and second.  Any further discussion?  

 Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All those 

in favor, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carried.  

All right.  Ms. Maxwell, good luck to you.  Please 

reapply in a year.  

  MS. MAXWELL:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  

Number 159, Jim Sullivan?  

  MR. SULLIVAN:  Hello, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Jim Sullivan, is 

that you?   

  MR. SULLIVAN:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do you understand 

you're under oath?  

  MR. SULLIVAN:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Investigator, 

please proceed.  

  MR. JONES:  Thank you.  Investigator Jones.  

The applicant was denied for a felony attempt to commit 

assault with a deadly weapon here in Nevada in November 

of 2005.  This was not disclosed, but we do have court 

documents.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Sullivan, why 

didn't you disclose this arrest, this felony arrest?  

  MR. SULLIVAN:  I didn't know what I'm doing 

that time, boss.  And I went to the school for the 

domestic violence.  And I have a probation for two 

years, and I have done that.  Then, I've been starting 

work here and keep busy of my life, you know, doing -- 

yeah.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  What are you 

doing?  You said you're working.  What are you doing for 

employment, sir?  

  MR. SULLIVAN:  Sir, I was working right now at 

the sushi restaurant right here in Spring Mountain.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

  MR. SULLIVAN:  I was a sushi chef.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Any other 

questions from the Board?  

  MR. SULLIVAN:  But I was applying for a 

security card, but I was denied for it.  I don't know 

why. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You were denied because 

you forgot to disclose that arrest.  

  MR. SULLIVAN:  Oh. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah.  

  MR. SULLIVAN:  I'm so sorry, sir.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  That's okay.  I mean 

when they ask you if you've ever been arrested, you have 

to disclose.  It doesn't mean we're going to deny you 

because you were arrested.  We're more concerned about 

honesty, which is an important part of the being a 

security officer.  

  MR. SULLIVAN:  Okay.  Sorry.  I'm really sorry, 

sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.   

  MR. SULLIVAN:  I did not know. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any other questions from 

the Board? 

  MR. SULLIVAN:  No, sir. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  No, Mr. Sullivan, I'm 

speaking to the Board.  Thank you. 

  Any other questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  So I just want to make 

sure I understand.  This is Nixon.  The applicant did 

have a guard card previously, and maybe the incident 

happened while he had his guard card, and so when he 

knew that his guard card expired, he reapplied, and 

that's when it was denied?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Maxwell?  

  MR. JONES:  Investigator Jones.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Sorry. 
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  MR. JONES:  You're fine.  The applicant, that 

is correct, the applicant did have a previous work card.  

But it goes back further than our database shows.  So 

I'm not sure when it expired.  But probably as Member 

Nixon has stated.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  I see.  Okay.  All 

right.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any other questions?  

 Okay.  Now I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I move 

that the --  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will move to deny.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any further 

discussion?  

 All right.  Call for a vote.  All those in 

favor of the motion, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carried.  

Mr. Sullivan, good luck to you.  Remember to disclose 

when you apply in a year.  

  MR. SULLIVAN:  All right, sir.  Thank you very 

much, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You're welcome.  

 All right.  Number 160, Aaron Harris?  
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Mr. Harris, are you here?  Call Mr. Harris one more 

time?   

 Okay.  I'll trail that.  

 Number 161, Deborah Newman?  Deborah Newman, 

are you here?   

 Okay.  I'll trail that.  

 162, Nicolas Catchings?  

  MR. CATCHINGS:  Yes, here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Catchings, do 

you understand you're under oath?  

  MR. CATCHINGS:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll leave it up 

to the investigator. 

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead. 

  MR. SALADINO:  The applicant was denied for an 

April 28th, 2012 inflict corporal injury to spouse or 

cohabitant, out of California.  This charge is a wobbler 

in California, meaning it can be charged either as a 

felony or as a misdemeanor.  The applicant was 

convicted, received three years probation, eight days in 

jail.  This was not disclosed.  And no court documents 

were provided to show if it was charged as a misdemeanor 

or a felony.  

 That's it.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Catchings, why 

didn't you disclose?  

  MR. CATCHINGS:  I apologize for not putting 

that on the application.  But I think --  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm sorry.  There was 

background.  I couldn't hear you.  

  MR. CATCHINGS:  I said I apologize about not 

putting that on the application.  But I do have all the 

paperwork that says I completed it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  No, I understand you 

completed it.  But I want to know, and I accept your 

apology, I just want to know why you didn't disclose.  

  MR. CATCHINGS:  I didn't think that -- when I 

went to court before I moved out here from California, 

they said that everything was expunged, basically, that 

nothing showed on my record.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Do you have paperwork 

showing that it was expunged?  

  MR. CATCHINGS:  I probably do.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, if you've got 

paperwork showing it expunged, I would submit that.  

Well, let's see what happens.   

  Any other questions from the Board?  

 All right.  No questions from the Board.  Then, 

I will entertain a motion.  
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  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.  I move to 

deny the appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

I have a second.  Any further discussion?  

 Okay.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All 

those in favor of the motion, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carried.  

Okay.  Mr. Catchings, you can reapply in a year.  Find 

that paperwork that shows it was expunged.  When you 

find that paperwork, submit that with your application 

along with your disclosure next year. 

  MR. CATCHINGS:  Okay.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You have a good day, 

sir.  Thank you for your time.  

 Number 163, Darion Fennoy?  

  MR. FENNOY:  Here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Did I pronounce your 

name correctly, sir? 

  MR. FENNOY:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll let the 

investigator take over.  



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

636 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead.  

  MR. SALADINO:  The applicant was denied for a 

2011 carry concealed weapon on person, out of 

California.  This was a misdemeanor, where the applicant 

was convicted and received three years probation, 90 

days suspended and a fine.  This was not disclosed.  It 

was found on the fingerprint report.  

 In 2012, out of California, the applicant was 

charged with theft, where it was later reduced to fight, 

slash, loud noise or offensive words.  This was a 

misdemeanor charge, where they were found guilty and 

received a fine.  

 2013, out of California, possession of 

narcotics, slash, controlled substance.  This was a 

misdemeanor.  The applicant was able to complete a drug 

program in lieu of being charged.  So, then, being that 

he completed the drug program, there was no criminal 

charges filed.  

 The applicant, since he didn't disclose his 

arrest history, he was made provisional on 

September 27th of '19.  The applicant worked for Reliant 

Security, license number 1902, from October 10th of '19 

to 10-28 of '19.  The applicant was denied on 11-5 of 

'19 when the fingerprint report was received.  
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 Nothing further.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Fennoy, why 

don't you let us know why you didn't disclose these 

three arrests.  

  MR. FENNOY:  For the weapon, I thought it was 

already expunged, because the court paper said that.  

Well, I got court papers, or I can go get court papers 

saying that is was expunged.  Because I have an active 

guard card in California right now.  And so I wasn't 

told that it was expunged.  Now, as far as for the other 

ones, I thought, just because I finished my classes and 

things like that, it was expunged, to me.  That's what I 

was told.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Please 

understand, just because it's okay in California doesn't 

mean it's okay in Nevada.  We have different states, 

different laws, different constitutions.  

  MR. FENNOY:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Are you still living in 

California, sir?  

  MR. FENNOY:  No, not right now.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  So you're in 

Las Vegas?  

  MR. FENNOY:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  What are you doing for 
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employment?  

  MR. FENNOY:  Well, I'm doing the temp agency 

right now.  And I just recently got my OSHA card for 

construction.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  Any other questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Mr. Chairman, can I make a 

redundant statement?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, please.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Board Member 

Brown.  And I've actually pulled up the application, 

because I've heard this so many times now.  But it says 

"If you have ever been arrested, any criminal citation, 

indictments or orders to appear"; and under it, it gives 

a list of things.  And, one, it says "List all charges 

regardless if they were expunged, dismissed or denied."  

We're hearing so many people believing that they were 

expunged.  But our application actually says so.   

  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, thank you for 

making the statement, and thank you for putting it in 

the record.  I am aware of that.  And, actually, we 

added that two years ago because of people claiming they 

didn't know.  Thank you.  

 All right.  Any other statements or questions 
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from the Board?   

 Hearing none, I'll call for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.  I'll move 

to deny the appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?   

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Nixon.  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion and a 

second.  Any further discussion?  

 Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All those 

in favor of the motion, please state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carried.  

Mr. Fennoy, can you reapply in a year.  Please disclose 

everything.  

  MR. FENNOY:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  164, Brandi  

Johnson, are you here?  Brandi Johnson, number 164, are 

you here?    

 Okay.  Number 165, Tony Burden?  Tony Burden, 

are you here?  

  MS. JOHNSON:  I'm here.  Did you hear me?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Who's this?  

  MS. JOHNSON:  This is Brandi Johnson.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Good afternoon, 
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ma'am.  

  MS. JOHNSON:  Good afternoon.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Are you aware 

you're under oath?  

  MS. JOHNSON:  Yes, I am.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Investigator, 

please take over.  

  MR. JONES:  Investigator Jones.  The applicant 

was denied for an arrest in June of 2018.  This resulted 

in three charges, the first being discharging of a gun 

in or on a public thoroughfare or in a public place.  

This was at the misdemeanor level and was not disclosed.  

The second was a false report of a crime, also a 

misdemeanor.  They did disclose this, but no disposition 

was found on the fingerprint report or SCOPE.  The final 

charge for this arrest was a false statement to 

obstructing a public official.  This was a misdemeanor, 

which was also disclosed, but no disposition was found 

on the fingerprint report or SCOPE.  

 In July of 2016, the applicant was arrested for 

battery.  This was at the misdemeanor level, but was 

dismissed after diversion and all requirements were met.  

And this was disclosed.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  So if I understand 

correctly, the one that was wasn't disclosed was the 
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discharge of firearm in 2018?  

  MR. JONES:  Correct.  And the final charge was 

in 2012 for petty larceny, at the misdemeanor level.  No 

disposition was found on the fingerprint report or 

SCOPE.   

  The applicant was made provisional.  However, 

this was corrected when the fingerprint report came 

back, as she was on the two rosters, and was terminated 

appropriately.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Ms. Johnson, why 

didn't you disclose the most recent charge in 2018, 

discharging a firearm?  

  MS. JOHNSON:  I thought I did put it on there 

as well as the others.  So I'm not too sure.  And I did 

my paper, as in I wrote it and brought it back in.  So I 

know that.  I probably, I probably didn't write it on 

there out as detailed.  But I know I put it on there.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Did you do a paper  

application, or did you do a computer application?  

  MS. JOHNSON:  I did a paper application and 

brought it back in.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll give you the 

benefit of the doubt.   

  For the investigator, is her application there?  

Could you take a look.  
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  MR. JONES:  If you give me just one moment, I 

will pull it up.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, I certainly will.  

  MR. SALADINO:  Chairman, this is Investigator 

Saladino.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, go ahead.  

  MR. SALADINO:  I'm currently looking over the 

written application that's been scanned into her 

profile.  And everything -- we have a petty larceny.  

Let's see.  Have you ever been arrested?  She circled 

yes.  Petty larceny, trespassing, wrong police, wrong 

info to police, paid a fine.  That was all she 

disclosed.  

  MS. JOHNSON:  Well, exactly what I was saying, 

I put it all on there as in detailed as possible, 

because the lady told me, as I was sitting there, do not 

make it go past, like don't make it look like that.  

Like, you know, she's like, make it detailed, but not as  

detailed, because you don't want it to go past the paper 

line.  There was only so much paper line to write in.  

So I was detailing, as it said on there, that writing, 

or disclosing wrong information to the police.  Which 

that was one of my charges for the 2018.  Which they 

said that's what it was, because they dismissed all the 

other charges.  What I was going for was disclosing the 
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wrong information to the police officer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  So for the investigator 

or one of the investigators, so I'm confused.  Was the 

discharge a firearm and the other charges all connected 

to the same arrest?  

  MR. JONES:  Investigator Jones.  That is 

correct.  The discharging of the gun, the false report 

and the false statement were all part of the same 

arrest.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And not having an 

application in front of me, did she use all the space 

provided?   

  MR. SALADINO:  Mr. Chair, Investigator 

Saladino.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes.  

  MR. SALADINO:  No, there was more lines below, 

where she would have wrote in more. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay. 

  MR. SALADINO:  And, you know, we do tell them 

to, you know, disclose everything they can, and, you 

know, if it's something that we know is going to be a 

denial, an investigator will come out and talk to them 

and tell them how to proceed from there, if it's 

disclosed right when they turn in their application.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  I 
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just wanted to get that on the record.  I'm aware.  And 

I also know that there's been times where we've used an 

addendum sheet.  So. 

  All right.  Any other questions from the Board?  

 Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I move 

that we uphold the denial of Ms. Brandi Johnson.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

I have a second.  Any other discussion?  

 Okay.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All 

those in favor, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Ms. Johnson, 

please reapply in a year.  Use all the space.  Disclose 

everything.  

  MS. JOHNSON:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Thank you for your time, 

ma'am.  You have a good day.  

  MS. JOHNSON:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Number 165, Tony 

Burden.  Mr. Burden, are you here?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Chairman Flynn? 
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  If you're not 

Mr. Burden, you need to place your phone on mute, 

please.  Thank you.  

  Call one more time, Mr. Tony Burden, number 

165?  

  Okay.  Kevin, I show one, two, three, four, 

five, I show six that we're trailing on this sheet.  I'd 

like to call them now if you show the same.  

  MR. INGRAM:  That would be great to proceed 

with the trailed items.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Number 145, 

Stephanie Amaya, are you here?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Chairman Flynn? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes. 

  MR. INGRAM:  We do have item 140 from the 

previous page trailed as well.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Oh, okay.  Let me.  All 

right.  Number 140.  So we got seven.  All right.  Let's  

catch up on these.   

  Is Jesse Sierra here?  Jessie Sierra, number 

140?  

 Okay.  I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I move 

that we uphold the denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  
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Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown seconds.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any further 

discussion?  

 If not, I'll call for a vote.  All those in 

favor of the motion, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carried.  

 Number 145, Stephanie Amaya?  Stephanie Amaya, 

are you here?  

 Call for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Chairman, it sounds like 

someone's trying to.  Can we call her again maybe?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Stephanie 

Amaya, are you here?  

 Okay.  I'm not hearing anything.  I'll call for 

a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  Motion to 

deny. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Second.  This is Nixon.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Nixon seconds.  

Any further discussion?  
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 Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All those 

in favor, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carries. 

  Marian Williams, are you here?  

  (There was an outside interruption.) 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I cannot hear a word 

that person is saying, if somebody can help me.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  They're talking in the 

background, Mr. Chairman, commenting on our decisions.  

It's somebody with an open line.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I think, they 

left.  

 All right.  Marian Williams, are you here?  

 Okay.  I'll call for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.  I move to 

deny.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Gronauer seconds.  Any 

further discussion?   

  Hearing none, call for a vote.  All those in 

favor, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carries. 

  Gary Territo, are you here?  Mr. Territo, 

number 153?   

  All right.  I'll call for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I move 

that we uphold the appeal, or the denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Any further 

discussion?  

 Okay.  Hearing none, call for a vote.  All in 

favor, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carries.  

  Aaron Harris, are you here, number 160, Aaron 

Harris?  Mr. Harris?  

  Okay.  I'll call for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I move that we uphold the 

denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I need a second.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion 

and second.  Any further discussion?  

 Hearing none, call for a vote.  All those in 
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favor, state "aye."   

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Motion carries. 

  Deborah Newman, are you here?  Deborah Newman, 

161?  

 Okay.  I'll call for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  Motion for 

denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I second.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown seconds.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Nixon seconds.  

Any further discussion?   

  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All those 

in favor, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carries.  

 Number 165, Tony Burden.  Tony Burden, are you 

here?  Mr. Burden?  

 Okay.  I'll call for a motion. 

 BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I move that we uphold the 

denial.  This is Nixon.  

 BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do I have a 

second?  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Gronauer seconds.  

Any further discussion?   

  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All those 

in favor, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carries.  

 I believe, we already heard number 166.  Is 

that correct, Mr. Ingram?  

  MR. INGRAM:  That is correct.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Number 167, 

Kenyoda ("Ken-yoh-deh") King, if I'm pronouncing that 

correctly.  

  MS. KING:  It's "Ken-yah-deh."  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  "Ken-yah-deh."  Good 

afternoon, ma'am.  How are you?  

  MS. KING:  I'm doing pretty good.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Investigator, 

please take over.  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  Sorry.  

Investigator Maxwell.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead.  

  MR. MAXWELL:  The applicant was arrested in 

2013, out of Iowa.  The charge was theft, at the felony 
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level.  There was no disposition available.  This was 

disclosed on the application, but it did not show up on 

the fingerprint report.  

 2006, out of the Iowa, use of a deadly weapon, 

a misdemeanor, two days jail.  This was not disclosed.  

 2010, out of Iowa, assault, intent to inflict 

serious injury, misdemeanor.  Substance abuse evaluation 

and restitution, two years suspended prison sentence, 

suspended fine, two years probation.  Probation shows it 

being revoked on 9-17 of 2012.  Time served 999 days per 

the fingerprint report.  This was not disclosed. 

 4-24-2018, out of Iowa, disorderly conduct, 

misdemeanor.  There was a fine.  And this was not 

disclosed.    

 The applicant was not made provisional due to 

the disclosure of the felony conviction.  This did not 

show up on the fingerprint report.  The other arrests 

were on the fingerprint report but were not disclosed by 

the applicant.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Ma'am, do you want to explain as to why you 

didn't disclose?  

  MS. KING:  Absolutely.  Well, when I came 

there, that was the first time that I filled out an 

application.  And as far as knowing the dates, I didn't, 
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this was my first time filling it out, so as far as the 

knowing the dates for those charges, I didn't know them 

off the head.  So.  I did the application in the office.  

I did all the fingerprints and everything that --  

  (There was an outside interruption.) 

  MS. KING:  I'm sorry?  I didn't hear you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I didn't say anything.  

That wasn't me.  

  MS. KING:  Oh.  Okay.  So far as like the dates 

or anything, I didn't know them, but off the back of my 

head, and I didn't want to lie, so I just, I didn't 

actually write them.  And the lady at the front desk 

already told me that, yeah, she let me know in the 

beginning that I was going to get denied and come up 

before the Board.  And she said I'd be able to explain 

it then.  So. 

  But, yeah, totally transparent with all of my 

charges.  It's just the date.  I didn't have all my 

paperwork in front of me.  But I do now.  So whatever 

you guys want to know, I'm open.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And just so you 

know, I've been doing this for a few years.  I've 

accepted people for admitting what they've done and not 

including the date, because I understand people forget 

dates.  But they do remember being in jail, they 
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remember being arrested, they remember going before the 

court.  

  MS. KING:  Oh, yes. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Are you in Las Vegas now 

or California?  

  MS. KING:  I am in Las Vegas now.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And what do you 

do for employment, ma'am?  

  MS. KING:  I work in -- I work at Voltaire. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay. 

  MS. KENYODA:  I'm on PCA right now because of 

the clients that I had got Covid.  So I have small 

children, so I had to step back from that.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  No, I understand that.   

  Okay.  Any other questions from the Board?  

  MS. KING:  As I stated before, whatever you 

guys want to know, I'm open.  I have all my paperwork in 

front of me.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any other questions from 

the Board? 

  All right.  I'll entertain a motion.  

  (There was an outside interruption.) 

  BOARD MEMBER FLYNN:  You need to put your phone 

on mute.  Either that or we need to call the meeting.  

So you need to put your phone on mute. 
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  (There was an outside interruption.) 

  MR. INGRAM:  Whoever is on their phone right 

now, you need to mute so that we can continue the 

hearing.  If you continue to speak, we will close the 

hearing and no one will be heard.  Please mute your 

phones at this time.  

  (There was an outside interruption.) 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  And who are you, sir?  

  MS. KING:  Are we continuing?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I don't know, Ms. King.  

We're trying to hear your case, but there's a whole 

bunch of people that are chirping in on your behalf.  

  MS. KING:  Jesus.  Well, I don't know them, so. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, I haven't had 

anybody else come in with fans today.  

  MR. INGRAM:  I think, they hung up, Chairman.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Like I said, it was kind 

of interesting.  She's got a lot of fans.  We haven't 

had any others today.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Chairman, did you ask for 

a motion?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  No, not yet.  Not yet.  

I was asking if there was any question from the Board.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Before the fans chirped 
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in.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Mr. Chairman?  

  (There was an outside interruption.) 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gosh.  Mr. Chairman? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes.  Who's this?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Bobby G., Gronauer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  That gentleman 

who was making all that, he's been saying that for about 

five people now.  So I don't think it's on Ms. King, 

just so you understand.  I heard it several times with 

several people.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I believe you.  One of 

my weaknesses is my hearing.  So I heard it that time.  

All right.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I just wanted to listen 

to her.  So if we have to take her singly, and that's 

it.  But I don't believe he had anything to do with her.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  

Ms. King, we had a lot of interruptions.  I tell you 

what, I will give you a moment if there's anything you 

want to add for us before we continue, because of the 

interruptions and I lost my train of thought.  

  MS. KING:  I'm just, I'm open to transparency, 

whatever you guys want to ask me.  As I stated before, I 
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don't know anything about the disruption.  So, yeah.  

That's what I have to say.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And then, again, 

I mean you disclosed one of the arrests, which was the 

felony.  Why didn't you disclose the other ones?  That's 

the issue that's here is the nondisclosure.  

  MS. KING:  Like I said, I didn't want to lie on 

the paperwork as far as putting everything.  I wanted to 

put exactly what it was.  Because it's not like I 

haven't talked about it before.  I've been in prison.  

So I talked about my past, stuff like that, my juvenile 

detentions, and talked about it.  It's not like I'm 

trying to hide it.  I'm public with it.  Like even on 

social media, I'm public with my charges and everything 

that I have done and, you know, and my transformation in 

life.  I have a letter from the Governor of Iowa 

restoring my citizen rights.  I have countless like 

certificates from everything I've done over the years.  

I mean it's not like I'm trying to hide it.  Like I 

said, I'm open and transparent to anything.  It doesn't 

matter what it is.  What you guys have to ask me, I'm 

open to it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And what was your 

last arrest, what do you recall your last arrest being?  

  MS. KING:  I'm now thinking, because I wrote it 
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down, it said 2018.  And, I think, it was in March.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  It was disorderly conduct, 

2018.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

  MS. KING:  Okay.  I just wanted to make sure 

that was the right one.  Okay.  2018, disorderly 

conduct.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And what were the 

circumstances of that arrest, ma'am?  

  MS. KING:  The circumstances, I was eight and a 

half months pregnant, high-risk pregnancy during that 

time.  And my -- I have -- my two teenagers were in high 

school.  They were being trolled by a group who calls 

themself PPE.  And they were messing with my kids for 

the last five, six months, and whatever.  We have police 

reports, and whatever.  And on the last day of school 

for summer out, they decided they were going to jump 

them.  There were three boys and seven girls involved.  

I picked my kids up from the bus area where they're 

dropped off.  I'm sitting in my truck.  And as my kids 

stepped off the public transportation, these three boys 

and seven girls attacked them.   

  Imagine being a mother, and I'm eight and a 

half months pregnant, watching your two daughters 

getting beat up by a group of kids.  Huh-uh.  My 
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disorderly conduct was jumping out of my vehicle trying 

to save my kids.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Were you arrested 

or cited?  

  MS. KING:  I was arrested.  They actually maced  

all of us.  I was arrested.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And what police 

department was this? 

  MS. KING:  This was in Davenport, Iowa.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right. 

  MS. KING:  And I was eight and a half months 

pregnant, and I needed to save my teenagers from this 

group, who are known as, they called theirself the PPE.  

It was weird.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And what happened when 

you went to court on that?  

  MS. KING:  I'm sorry.  Did you say something 

else?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, I wanted to know 

what happened when you went to court on that case.  

  MS. KING:  I didn't really go to court.  My 

lawyer, he gave me this -- I was eight and a half months 

pregnant when this happened.  So everybody was trying to 

close it.  It was not seen as, oh, my God, she's the 

lupus of society.  I was seen as I was protecting my 
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babies.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  Any other questions from the Board, now that 

we've not some quiet going on?  

 All right.  Hearing no questions, I'll 

entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  I'll make a 

motion.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'm sorry for all the 

stuff that was going on in Ms. King's stuff.  But the 

nondisclosure, I have to make a motion to deny the 

appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.  I'll 

second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

I have a second.  Any further discussion?  

 Okay.  Call for a vote.  All those in favor, 

state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carried.  

Ms. King, I'm sorry.  You can reapply in a year.  Please 

disclose everything.  If you don't remember the date,  
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just write the charge.  

 Okay.  Number 168, Devauntae Scroggins?  And I 

apologize if I butchered that name.  Number 168, 

Scroggins?   

 Okay.  I will trail that.  

 169, Bradley Laverne?  

  MR. LAVERNE:  Here.  I'm present, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do you understand 

you're under oath, Mr. Laverne?  

  MR. LAVERNE:  Yes.  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Investigator, 

please proceed.  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  The 

applicant was arrested in 2002 in Kentucky.  The charge 

was theft by deception, at felony level.  Disposition 

shows two years prison, less 160 days for credit for 

time served.  This was not disclosed.  

 2012, out of California, child cruelty with 

possible injury or death, at felony level, 365 days 

jail, four years probation.  This was disclosed, but we 

do not have court docs.  This was actually partially 

disclosed on the probation/parole section of the 

application.  

 2009, California, DUI at misdemeanor level, 48 

hours jail, three years probation.  This was disclosed.  
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 The DUI and child cruelty were partially 

disclosed, but not their level of severity.  And so the 

applicant was initially made provisional.  The arrests 

were found and confirmed with the fingerprint report.  

Applicant was made provisional on 12-11 of '19.  He was 

listed on ESI Security, license number 700, roster as 

employed from 12-18-19 to 1-23-19, at which time we 

notified the licensee that the card was denied, and he 

was terminated.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Laverne, why don't 

you explain the child cruelty, so I can understand it 

better.  

  MR. LAVERNE:  What had happened, sir, is that, 

what had happened, sir, is that, unfortunately, a buddy 

of mine that I went to basic training and we continued 

in the military -- I was in, I'm a United States Army 

combat veteran, Operation Iraq Freedom, if you will, 

sir.  And my good friend was killed in combat at that 

time in Afghanistan.  I did not know how to deal with 

death very well at that time.  He was a very close 

friend of mine.  Like I said, we went to the military 

together.   

  I was heavily drinking.  My stepson came 

outside, was smarting off to me.  And I said, "Please 

get away from me," at which time my ex-father-in-law 
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proceeded to call the sheriff and make false 

allegations.  When the sheriff pulled up, natural 

instinct of any combat soldier, if you folks will, he 

jumped at me, made a threat towards me.  And I ended up 

back-handing him in front of the sheriff's department.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN NADEAU:  Okay.  Why didn't you 

disclose some these arrests?  

  MR. LAVERNE:  I was told by ESI at the time, 

sir, which is the security company I was working for, 

that because they were so old, that they should not be a 

problem and I did not need to disclose them.  And I was 

told that by the owners of ESI. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, I just want to 

make sure I get this correctly.  ESI Security told you 

not to disclose these?  

  MR. LAVERNE:  Right.  Because I explained to 

them how old they were.  And they said, "Well, it 

shouldn't be a problem.  You should be okay to get your  

PILB.  You don't need to disclose them."  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  We 

will definitely follow up on that.  

  MR. LAVERNE:  Had I known to do that, I would 

have done it, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

  MR. LAVERNE:  I was just going by the direction 
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was employer at the time.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right. 

  MR. LAVERNE:  And I do show remorse for my 

actions.  That was a long time ago.  I realize I made a 

mistake, folks.  But I have been trying to prepare very 

much for this hearing, because I really want to be a 

security officer.  And I was a security officer in 

Stockton, California for a great many years.   

  And I've been working in a nightclub part-time 

as a bouncer.  It's not really security, but it is, kind 

of deal.  They don't require a PILB, but.  And I have a 

very good rapport with my current employer, up until 

COVID-19 hit and the bars got shut down.  That's why I'm 

currently not working.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 Any other questions from the Board?  

 Hearing none, I'll call for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I move 

that we uphold the denial.  I go back to the form.  It 

can't be any clearer.  And thank you for your service, 

sir.  I appreciate your efforts.  But you have to 

disclose.  So that's my motion.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I have a motion.  Do I   

have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  
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  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  Okay. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Brown 

seconds.  Any further discussion?  

 Okay.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All 

those in favor of the motion, state "aye."   

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion passes.  

Okay.  Sir, you can reapply in a year.  We will 

definitely follow up on your statement about ESI and 

make sure that they -- we'll get to the bottom of that 

one.   

  Is that correct, Mr. Ingram?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

  MR. LAVERNE:  Okay.  Well, with that being said 

and it not being my fault, folks, I know you already 

made a motion and all that, but that being said, you 

know, that was not my fault.  That was the fault of the 

employer.  So I don't understand why you guys are still 

denying me when I'm not the one who is at fault here.  

It's the employer.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'll be blunt.  

  MR. LAVERNE:  Yeah.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  We're going to follow 

up.  And we'll find out what their version of this story 
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is.  Do you know what the name of the employee that told 

you that?  

  MR. LAVERNE:  I don't. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay. 

  MR. LAVERNE:  They no longer work there.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, how do you know 

that?  

  MR. LAVERNE:  Oh, I see ESI all time.  They're 

all over Reno, so.  They do all the events in Reno.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  We will follow up 

on your statement, sir.  

  MR. LAVERNE:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Thank you.  

  MR. LAVERNE:  So when do I get to apply again?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Number 170, Christopher 

Moore.  Mr. Moore, are you here?  Christopher Moore, 

number 170?  

  Okay.  We'll trail that.  

 Number 171, Kenneth Bryant, are you here?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Mr. Chair, Investigator Maxwell.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Mr. Bryant actually withdrew his 

appeal.  He's actually returned back to California, and 

he is no longer seeking a work card in Nevada.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll let the 
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record show that he's withdrawn.  

 Number 172, Lavelle Pearson?  Mr. Pearson, 

Lavelle Pearson? 

 Okay.  Trail that.   

 Kevin Theophile?  And if I mispronounced that, 

my apologies.  Kevin Theophile?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Chairman, Kevin Ingram.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah.  

  MR. INGRAM:  I think, we probably ought to go 

ahead and swear item numbers 173 through 184 real 

quickly before we proceed.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  And with 

that, we've been going 90 minutes.  I'm going to get the 

Board take a bio break.  Because we don't get breaks.  

We got to listen to the phone. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Thank you. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  We're on a 

five-minute bio break.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Shannon, are you still good to 

proceed with the swearing in? 

  MR. DETMER:  Sorry, Director.  Was that 

directed to me?  You kind of broke up a little bit. 

  MR. INGRAM:  I said, Shannon Taylor, are you 

okay to move forward with the swearing in? 
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  (There was an outside interruption.) 

  MR. INGRAM:  Anybody that's on the agenda, 

please put your phone on mute right now.  Thank you. 

  What I was asking, Shannon, is we'll go ahead 

and do the swearing in right now, on the record, with 

you, while the Board's on break, if you're okay with 

that. 

  THE REPORTER:  Oh, I see what you're saying.  

Absolutely.  Yes. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  Mr. Detmer, will you go 

ahead and swear those that are on the phone call right 

now for calling in at the 3:30 mark.  Will you go ahead 

and swear them in, please, sir.  

  MR. DETMER:  It would be my pleasure. 

  For those of you who are about to testify, 

please raise your right hand.  Do you hereby swear or 

affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth, and nothing 

but the truth?  

  (Applicants and witnesses present were 

sworn/affirmed.) 

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  Thank you very much.  We'll 

be on a bio break for the next four minutes.  Hang 

tight, and the Board will be back in session here 

shortly.  

* * * * * 
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(A break was taken 3:59 to 4:01 p.m.) 

* * * * * 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  It's Ray Flynn.  I'm 

back. 

  MR. INGRAM:  Thanks, Ray. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I'm back. 

  (There was an outside interruption.) 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  If you can hear me, this 

is Brown, and I'm back. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  MR. INGRAM:  You're on the call right now.  And 

if you'll place your phone on mute, please. 

  UNIDENTIFIED:  I what? 

  MR. INGRAM:  Please place your phone on mute 

and until called upon.  Thank you. 

  (There was an outside interruption.) 

  MR. INGRAM:  Okay.  If you continue to make 

those kind of comments, the Board will cease the 

meeting, and everyone else on the agenda will be at a 

loss, because of your inappropriate interactions.  

Please keep your phone on mute, so we can finish the 

Board meeting.   

  Mr. Detmer, are you back on the call?  

  MR. DETMER:  Yes.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you. 
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  Shannon, are you ready to go?  

  THE REPORTER:  Yes, I am.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Chairman, we have a quorum, and we 

may proceed.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I'm going to 

call those four that we were trailing.  And then we'll 

finish up the day.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Thank you, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  With the remainder.   

  All right.  Devauntae Scroggins, are you here?  

Devauntae Scroggins? 

 Okay.  I'll call for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.   

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  I move to uphold the 

denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  Do I have a second, please? 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Yes, I second.  Sorry. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Nixon seconds.   

  Any other discussion? 

  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All those 

in favor of the motion, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Christopher 
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Moore.  Mr. Moore, are you here?  Mr. Moore?  

 All right.  I'll call for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I move we uphold the 

denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do I have a 

second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown.  Second.    

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Thank you. 

  Any further discussion?  

 Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All those 

in favor of the motion, state "aye."  

 (Board members said "aye.") 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carries.  

 Number 172, Lavelle Pearson.  Mr. Pearson, are 

you here?  Lavelle Pearson?  

 Okay.  Hearing, not hearing, I'll call for a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I move we uphold --  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead, Nixon.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Sorry.  I move we uphold 

the denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do I have a 

second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown seconds.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any further 

discussion?  

 Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All those 

in favor of the motion, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carries.  

 Kevin Theophile, are you here?  Number 173, 

Kevin Theophile?  

 Okay.  I'll call for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I move that we uphold the 

denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do I have a 

second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown seconds.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And any further 

discussion?  

 Okay.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote on 

the motion.  All those in favor, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  

 I believe, Mr. Ingram, we're up to 174?  

  MR. INGRAM:  That is correct.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And everybody's 

been sworn in that's here?  

  MR. INGRAM:  That is correct.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Number 174, 

Gentlebreeze Ung-Watson?  Ung-Watson, are you here? 

  Okay.  We'll trail that one.  

 Artura Demoss?  Artura Demoss?  

 Okay.  We'll trail that.  

 Reve Wilson?  

  MS. WILSON:  Here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Did I pronounce your 

name, Reve ("Reev")? 

  MS. WILSON:  It's "Reh-vay."  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  My apologies, 

Ms. Wilson.   

  MS. WILSON:  That's all right. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do you understand 

you're under oath? 

  MS. WILSON:  Yes. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Can I have -- I'll let 

the investigator give their report.  

  MS. WILSON:  Okay. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  The 

applicant was arrested in 2007, out of California, for 

appropriation of lost property.  This was a misdemeanor.  

Disposition showed 10 days jail, one year probation.  

This was not disclosed.  We do not have court docs.  

 2011, out of Louisiana, attempted felony left, 
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felony level, six months suspended sentence, one year 

probation.  This was not disclosed.   

 The applicant did not disclose the arrests.  

These were found on the fingerprint report.  She was 

initially made provisional on 10-14 of 2019 but was not 

added to any roster.  She was denied 10-16 of 2019.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  Ms. Wilson, do you want to explain to us why 

you didn't disclose?  

  MS. WILSON:  I knew I was arrested.  To be 

truthful, I didn't even remember like when and what 

years or anything.  I just knew it was in Louisiana.  

And I didn't even remember the one in California.  That 

one's new to me now.   

  And then tomorrow will make a year that I've 

been out here in Vegas.  So I just really didn't think, 

because I haven't been in trouble in so long.   

  And I did get my provisionary when I moved out 

here, and I had started working at the Mandalay Bay 

doing security.  But then, when I got hired at a second 

job, that's when I was told that my guard card wasn't 

going to come and something showed on my background.  

But I never knew what it was until now.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Are you employed 

now, or?  



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

674 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

  MS. WILSON:  Yes, I'm employed.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And what do you do, 

ma'am?  

  MS. WILSON:  I do janitorial.  I work at the 

Grandview time share.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  Any 

other questions from the Board?  

  MS. WILSON:  No, I just didn't know what I had 

and what years.  I just know it's been a while.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  Let 

me see if any of the Board members have questions for 

you, ma'am.  

  MS. WILSON:  Okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any other questions from 

the Board?  

 Okay.  Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Board Member 

Nixon.  I move that we uphold the denial.  One, time and 

distance.  And, two, nondisclosure.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.   

  I have a motion.  Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown.  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any further 

discussion?  

 Okay.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All 
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those in favor of the motion, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Motion carries.  All 

right.  Ms. Wilson, you can reapply in a year.  Please 

disclose those two arrests next time you come.  

  MS. WILSON:  It was 2007 and two thousand and 

whatever?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  11.  

  MS. WILSON:  Okay.  All right.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  You have a 

good day, ma'am.  Thank you.  

 All right.  Mr. Heard, Sederick Heard, number 

177?  Mr. Heard?   

 Okay.  I'm going to trail that.  

 Jerome Raines?  

  MR. RAINES:  Yes, I'm here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Raines, are 

you aware you're under oath?  

  MR. RAINES:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll let the 

investigator chime in.  

  MR. JONES:  Thank you.  This is Investigator 

Jones.  The applicant was denied for a felony burglary 

charge in California in 2007.  The disposition and 

severity do not show on the fingerprint report, but the 
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applicant states that he was incarcerated.  

 In 2009, the applicant was arrested for 

burglary again.  The fingerprint report does not show 

severity or disposition.  And the applicant did not 

disclose.  

 In 2010, the applicant was arrested in 

California for violation of felony parole.  The 

fingerprint report does not show the severity or 

disposition.  And the applicant did not disclose.  

 The applicant was denied previously from a 2019 

application.  So he is back to the Board to try again.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Raines, we 

denied you once before for not disclosing.  Why didn't 

you disclose this time, again?  

  MR. RAINES:  Last time, I was denied for the 

first felony in 2007.  I don't know, I don't know of the 

one in 2009.  I don't know of any other one.  That was 

the only one I had.  So I don't know if that's my 

brother or not.  I was on probation for that.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  What about the other 

charges?  There's a total.  It shows you've been, unless 

I'm incorrect, it shows you've been arrested four times.  

  MR. RAINES:  Yeah, I didn't hear the other two.  

I heard the one in 2007 and 2009.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll give you the 
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benefit of the doubt.   

  Investigator, could you remind him what the 

other two charges are.  

  MR. JONES:  Sure.  We have the burglary in 

2007, the burglary in 2009.  There is a felony burglary 

that was two months later.  The fingerprint does not 

show if that was the same charge.  And then, again, in 

2010, violation of felony parole.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  So, Mr. Raines, 

what you're saying is, if I understand you correctly, to 

your belief, you only have one charge?  

  MR. RAINES:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And then the parole 

violation had to do with that one charge?  

  MR. RAINES:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Are you still on 

parole?  

  MR. RAINES:  No.  I've been off for a while.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Are you required 

to register as an ex-felon?  

  MR. RAINES:  I don't believe so.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Are you currently 

living in Nevada?  

  MR. RAINES:  Yes, I'm in Nevada now.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And what do you 
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do for employment, sir?  

  MR. RAINES:  I work at ESI as event services.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 

questions from the Board?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Chairman, this is Brown.  

I want to make sure that I understand.  There's one 

charge of burglary, and the other three that we see are 

violations of parole of the same offense, it just 

doesn't appear that way, except for the fourth?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm leaning towards the 

other charges.  I'm not, and I'm not sure.  I don't have 

the paperwork in front of me.  But maybe the 

investigator can chime in.  I think, they're all related 

to the one charge.  

  MR. JONES:  Yes, Investigator Jones.  The 2007 

burglary shows a different reason.  The 2009 arrest, 

which shows two years incarcerated in prison.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  You haven't been 

in trouble since two thousand and -- when was your last 

parole violation, what year?  

  MR. RAINES:  I believe, it was 2010.  Oh, no, 

2009, and I went into 2010.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  You haven't been 

in any trouble for 10 years?  

  MR. RAINES:  No, I haven't been in any trouble, 
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but traffic tickets.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  Any 

other questions from the Board?  

 Okay.  I'll entertain a motion. 

 BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.  I move to 

uphold the denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Nixon.  I second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

I have a second.  Any discussion?  

 Okay.  Hearing none, call for a vote.  All 

those in favor, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Raines, I'll 

just speak for myself.  I think, we need a little more 

distance with your felony.  If you apply again in a 

year, and you list everything as required, I'm only 

speaking for myself, I'll probably see this differently.  

Good luck to you, sir, and you have a good day.  

  Number 179, Elbert Taylor?   

  MR. TAYLOR:  I'm here. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Elbert Taylor, are you 

here, sir?  

  MR. TAYLOR:  I'm here.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  We're going to trail 

that one. 

  Number 180, Michael Garcia, are you here?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Chairman, I do have a lot 

of noise, but, I think, he said he's here.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Chairman? 

  MR. GARCIA:  Garcia, 180, is here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm going to -- this is 

Ray Flynn, everybody.  All right.  Number 179, Elbert 

Taylor, are you here?  

  MR. TAYLOR:  I'm here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you, 

sir.  Do you understand you're under oath?  

  MR. TAYLOR:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Thank you.  All right.  

And the investigator, please proceed.  

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah.  

  MR. SALADINO:  The applicant was denied for a 

1998 first-degree burglary, out of California, where the 

applicant was sentenced to 17 years in prison.  This was 

not disclosed on the application.   

  1993, out of the Tennessee, there was another 

first-degree burglary, at a felony level.  He was 

convicted, four years in prison.  The applicant did not 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

681 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

disclose this arrest.  After reviewing the fingerprint 

report, the applicant served a term in Tennessee from 

'93 to '97 and then was convicted again in California 

for the above charge.  

 1992, in Tennessee, forgery.  This was an 

arrest only.  No charges were filed.  

 1990, in Tennessee, aggravated robbery, two 

counts.  Again, this was just an arrest where no charges 

were filed.  

 1990, out of Tennessee, unlawful possession of 

a weapon.  Again, this was an arrest with no charges 

filed.   

 1987, attempt to commit a felony, out of 

Tennessee, where the applicant received two years of 

confinement.  This was a felony and not disclosed.  

 In 1984, out of the Tennessee, there was a 

burglary at a misdemeanor level, where they were 

sentenced to nine months of jail.  

 The applicant did not disclose any of his 

arrest history.  He was made provisional on 2-27 of '20.  

He did not work for any licensed company during his 

provisional status.  All the arrests and convictions 

were found on the applicant's fingerprint report, and 

then he was denied.  

 Nothing further.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Taylor, why didn't 

you disclose anything?  

  MR. TAYLOR:  I disclosed the last time I was in 

prison.  But I thought it was in '92.  He said it was 

'98.  I thought it was 1992 all the way up to 2012.  I 

did my time.  I put that on there.  Well, I applied to 

One Stop, because they were going to help me pay for it, 

and I thought that she did put it on there.  I told her 

about it, but I don't know if she put it on there or 

not.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  So you're saying 

somebody else filled out your application, you didn't?  

  MR. TAYLOR:  No, I didn't, I didn't do the -- I 

went to One Stop, and they were going to help me pay for 

it.  And we did the paperwork together.  She asked me 

the questions, and she just wrote in down.  That's what 

I thought she did.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Did you sign the 

application?  

  MR. TAYLOR:  Yes, I signed the application.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Did you read all the 

entries when you signed it?  

  MR. TAYLOR:  Well, I, to be honest with you, I 

didn't, because I felt that she did everything 

correctly.  And she gave me the check and the 
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application.  I took it down to the place and I turned 

it in.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  This is a painful 

lesson when you have somebody else fill out your 

application for you.  

  MR. TAYLOR:  I understand that, both helping 

me.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  Are 

you living in Nevada now?  

  MR. TAYLOR:  Yes, I am.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  What do you do for 

employment, sir?  

  MR. TAYLOR:  Well, I'm working two jobs.  I 

work for a warehouse.  And starting Monday, I start 

working for Bennett as a maintenance crew.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Thank you.  Any other 

questions from the Board?  

  MR. TAYLOR:  No, sir.  I've been off of parole 

since, I've been off parole for seven years, and I 

haven't been in any trouble.  I worked in California as 

a security guard for five years.  And I didn't even know 

anything about, I forgot all about all the arrests that 

was in Tennessee.  Really I did.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I, like I said --  

well, I already said what I said.  All right.  Let me  
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see if any of the other Board members have questions, 

sir.  

  MR. TAYLOR:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any other questions from 

the Board?  

 All right.  Hearing none, I'll call for a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  This is Board Member 

Nixon.  I move that we uphold the denial of -- well, 

that we uphold the denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Seeking a second.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Any further 

discussion?  

 Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All those 

in favor of the motion, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carries.  

Mr. Taylor, good luck to you.  You can reapply in a 

year.  Please fill out the application yourself.  Don't 

depend on other people to fill out important paperwork.  

  MR. TAYLOR:  Yes, I understand that.  Thank 

you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Good luck.  Good 
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luck to you, sir.  

  MR. TAYLOR:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Number 180, Michael 

Garcia, are you here?  

  MR. GARCIA:  Yes, sir.  Present, 180, Michael 

Garcia.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Are you aware 

you're under oath?  

  MR. GARCIA:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Investigator, 

please proceed.  

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  In 2008, 

out of California, there was a charge for possession of 

marijuana for sale.  This was at a felony level, where 

the applicant received 16 months prison sentence.  This 

was not disclosed.   

  In 1996, out of California, CCW in a vehicle.  

This was a misdemeanor, found guilty where the applicant 

received three years of probation.  This also was not 

disclosed.  

 2006, out of California, possession of 

marijuana for sale.  This was reduced to a misdemeanor, 

received three years of probation.  

 October 7th of '18, out of Nevada, there was a 

possession Schedule I, II, III or IV controlled 
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substance.  This was reduced to a misdemeanor.  Court 

documents show that he was convicted of possession of a 

dangerous drug.  And the case was closed on 1-22 of 

2020.  

 2012, out of Nevada, coercion by force.  This 

was started off as a felony, was found guilty of 

misdemeanor coercion no force.  Court documents show 

that the charge was reduced to a misdemeanor, where he 

was sentenced to 25 hours of community service.  This 

case was closed on 4-18 of '13.  

 The applicant did not disclose his arrest 

history.  The out-of-state convictions were found on the 

fingerprint report.  Local arrest history for the 

misdemeanors were reviewed, and the applicant was made 

provisional.  Once the fingerprint report was received, 

the applicant's provisional was revoked and denied.  And 

he's here for his appeal.  

 Nothing further.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Garcia, why 

didn't you disclose anything?  

  MR. GARCIA:  Well, to be honest with you, sir, 

all that was supposed to be put behind me, down to a 

misdemeanor.  And on the application, it said there that 

I had a felony, which I was going to put down, but it 

got dropped to a misdemeanor.  Right now, the felony 
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that I have, it's going under review for Proposition 64.  

I got the deputy in charge in West Covina, California 

taking care of whatever they need to take care of so I 

could go back to work.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I know the 

application says "any arrests." 

  MR. GARCIA:  Right.  And as you're seeing --  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Why didn't you -- I'm 

just curious.  Why didn't you disclose any of your 

arrests of your history?  

  MR. GARCIA:  Because I, for sure, I thought, I 

already thought about a month ago that my expungement 

was supposed to be done for my 2006 arrest, which I 

violated in 2008.  I didn't call in to my probation 

officer one day.  And ever since then, my attorney that 

I had hired had passed away.  And all this time, I've 

had numerous jobs.  I worked at Disneyland.  I worked 

for the City of L.A.  And they do a thorough background 

there, and everything cam back clean.  And I was even 

going to purchase a firearm one time, but I didn't do 

that, I didn't have enough money. 

  And right now, the Raiders stadium is holding 

my position as the lead to run the whole stadium over 

there as soon as this is cleared up.  And I've already 

gone through all the paperwork and stuff, which includes 
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CR-106 info, CR-106, all the forms that are provided to 

me for to get expungement for my record, for a clear 

request.  And it's in motion right now.  It's everything 

is going to go actually next month today.  On my 

birthday, October 2nd, everything should be taken care 

ever.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  But you 

understand that today, at the hearing, when we have to 

make a decision, there's no expungement, all this stuff 

is on your record?  

  MR. GARCIA:  Right.  I understand. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  And can I state, can I 

make a statement real quick?  Again, this is so 

frustrating, because even on the application it says, 

even if it was expunged, if you've been arrested, to 

note it.  So it's just.  This is Nixon making a 

statement.  Sorry.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  No, that's okay. 

  All right.  Any other questions from the Board?  

  All right.  Hearing none, I'll call for a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  I move we uphold the 

denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  
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  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown.  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any further 

discussion? 

  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote on the 

motion.  All those in favor, state "aye." 

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  And, Mr. Garcia, when 

you apply in a year, you understand, even though it's 

expunged, as our application says, you need to disclose.  

  MR. GARCIA:  Yes, sir.  I understand that, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Good luck to you, sir. 

Thank you.  

  Number 181. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Chairman? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Chairman, this is Nixon.  

I, unfortunately, have another meeting that I cannot 

miss.  So I will have to drop off for the last few.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I appreciate your 

service the last two days.  This has been an aggressive 

agenda.  I don't know if Kevin's going to be on my 

Christmas card list this year.  But thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Nor mine.  But it's, as 

always, a pleasure.  Thank you guys.  Have a good 

evening.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Be safe. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Tammy? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I just want 

to confirm, before we go forward, we have a quorum?  

There are three of us here.  Mr. Detmer, is that 

correct?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Tammy? 

  MR. DETMER:  That would be my count, Chairman, 

yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you.  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  It sounds like Bobby's 

trying to ask me a question before I hang up.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes.  All I was going 

to say, can I go with you?  

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  No, you need the quorum.  

Take care.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Oh, okay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Good one. 

  BOARD MEMBER NIXON:  Bye. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Number 181, 

Linda Lopez, are you here?  

  UNIDENTIFIED MAN:  I might as well go, too. 

  MS. LOPEZ:  I am.  I'm here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Please do. 

  All right.  Ms. Lopez, do you realize you're 
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under oath?  

  MS. LOPEZ:  Yes, I do.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll let the 

investigator take over.  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  The 

applicant was arrested in 1992, out in California.  The 

charge was vandalism.  It was a misdemeanor.  

Disposition was 24 months probation.  This was not 

disclosed.   

  The next two items are linked.  On April 4th, 

1997, out of California, one charge was false ID to 

specific peace officers, misdemeanor level.  Disposition 

showed probation, jail.  This was not disclosed.  The 

second charge was accessory.  This was at the felony 

level.  The disposition showed 450 days jail, which was 

suspended, and five years probation.  This was not 

disclosed.  But the applicant did provide court 

documentation when asked.  The conviction was later 

reduced to a misdemeanor and dismissed under 1203.4 PC.  

And as I said, the application did provide the court 

documentation showing that.  

 In 1999, in California, a fraud to obtain aid,  

felony level, 20 days jail, 72 months probation.  This 

was not disclosed.   

 2011, January 2011, California, DUI, alcohol, 
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drugs, misdemeanor, 19 days jail, three years probation, 

not disclosed.  

 July 2011, California, driver's license 

suspended, et cetera, DUI, special violation, 

misdemeanor, 30 days jail, 48 months probation, not 

disclosed.  The disposition did show that on 12-2 of 

2016 the conviction was set aside and dismissed under 

1203.4.  

 The arrests were not disclosed.  SCOPE showed 

the applicant is a convicted person, which was confirmed  

with the fingerprint report.  And the applicant was not 

made provisional.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Ms. Lopez, do you 

want to tell me why you didn't disclose anything? 

  MS. LOPEZ:  Why I did not disclose anything is 

because I had -- all those cases have been expunged and 

dismissed.  I had an FBI report.  With my cases, they 

were held up since 2005.  I didn't know that --  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  You heard 

the statements before.  And on the application it says 

list all arrests, including those that have been 

expunged.  

  MS. LOPEZ:  Right.  So I didn't.  I didn't.  

Well, it's probably my fault altogether.  I take 

responsibility for that.  I don't recall exposing any of 
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them. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay. 

  MS. LOPEZ:  Because I was under this effect 

that they were all expunged and dismissed.  Since I'm 55 

this year, I didn't figure that I needed to, if it was 

expunged and dismissed.  You know, I never had --  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Well, you're 

required to.  Let me see if --  

  MS. LOPEZ:  Yes. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  What are you doing now, 

currently, for a job?  

  MS. LOPEZ:  I have an LLC to do Lyft here in 

Las Vegas.  And I now work for the Golden Entertainment 

two years as an EVS utility porter at Stratosphere.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay. 

  MS. LOPEZ:  And my record is clean, so.  I 

just, when they had it, an opportunity came up to become 

a security guard over at the stadium, I applied.  First 

thing, they gave me a telephone interview.  And then all 

the things that they required, I did that.  So then, 

when the club card came back, it came back with that 

work fair card, which was a felony.  Which they say if 

you ever plead guilty to a felony and have it reduced to 

a misdemeanor and expunged, you are still not entitled 

to receive like, I guess, the gun charge, or whatever 
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like that.  You have to go for something different, I 

guess, now.  So I have to go back to the FBI, Department 

of Justice, and it's where I started, to get that 

cleared.  So. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  In the state of 

Nevada -- in the State of Nevada, you are required, even 

if you believe they're expunged, and -- but we don't 

have any record of expungement.  But even if you believe 

they're expunged, you need to report them.  

  MS. LOPEZ:  Yeah, I do have, I have my whole 

FBI printout, which I could have provided at that time.  

I still have it today.  But if I don't get a chance to 

work at the stadium, I'll just wait and then try it 

again next year.  I mean I've been listening to all 

these cases.  And had I known, I don't have a problem 

expunging, I mean disclosing it, because it has been 

expunged.  And I can prove that.  And if that was the 

case, I would not have, you know, I would have just 

provided the paperwork, wrote it on the paper, and put 

it down there,  because that's only the right thing to 

do.  And everything was expunged.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay. 

  MS. LOPEZ:  I even drove a cab here.  I drove a 

cab here in Vegas when I first came.  But that's the 

reason how I found out that those 2000 cases, or 2005 
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cases weren't expunged, because the taxi authority, the 

lady who gave me a paper, told me to challenge my 

record.  That's where I am now, that's how I got to 

where I am today.  Thanks.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Thank you.  Let me see 

if there's any questions from my fellow Board members. 

  Any other questions from the Board?  

  All right.  Hearing none, I'll call for a 

motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.  I move 

that we uphold the denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I have a 

motion.  I have a second.  Any further discussion? 

  All right.  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  

All those in favor, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carries.  

All right.  Ms. Lopez, you know what to do in a year.  

Thank you for your time, ma'am.  You have a good day. 

  MS. LOPEZ  Thank you.  You guys have a great 

day.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Thank you.  
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 All right.  Kelvin Butler, number 182?  

  MR. BUTLER:  How are you doing?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Butler, I'm doing --   

tired.  Thank you for being here.  And thank you for 

your patience.  Do you understand you're under oath?  

  MR. BUTLER:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'm going to turn 

it over to the investigator. 

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead. 

  MR. SALADINO:  The applicant was denied for a 

2015 possession of a controlled substance with intent to 

sell, out of Nevada.  This was a felony.  The applicant 

received four years probation, four years 19 months 

prison suspended.  This was disclosed.  And we have 

court documents.  

 In 2009, possession of drug not introduced into 

commerce, was a misdemeanor, pled guilty, took classes, 

received a fine, 50 hours community service.  Court 

documents also confirm this.   

 2010, out of Nevada, possession of drug not 

introduced into commerce and domestic battery.  The 

applicant pled to reduced charges.  The applicant was 

sentenced to DV classes, drug counseling and community 

service.  The court documents verify that as well. 
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 2011, out of Nevada, robbery and conspiracy to 

commit robbery.  This was dismissed.  And court 

documents show that it was dismissed.  

 2012, out of Nevada, possession of a drug not 

commerce and not introduced into commerce.  It was a 

misdemeanor, found guilty, sentenced, suspended jail 

sentence, counseling, community service.  The court 

documents also verify that.  

 7-7 of '12, out of Nevada, another misdemeanor 

drug conviction.  The applicant just received credit for 

time served in that case.  

 2014, out of Nevada, felony robbery.  This 

charge was reduced to petty larceny misdemeanor.  The 

applicant was sentenced to pay restitution, complete  

impulse control counseling and stay out of trouble.  

Court documents show he had a financial hardship and 

picked up a new possession of marijuana charge and 

served 60 days.  

 2015, out of Nevada, another possession of 

drugs.  It was a misdemeanor.  Found guilty.  And, 

again, credit for time served.  

 2017, possession of Schedule I, II and obtain 

or use ID of another to avoid, slash, delay.  This was a 

felony level charge, but the D.A. did not file charges.  

The court documents verify that as well.  
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 4-17 of '20, out of Nevada, false statement to 

obstruct a public officer.  This was a misdemeanor.  

This case was also dismissed, and the court documents  

show that.  

 The applicant did not disclose that he was 

arrested.  Oh, I'm sorry.  The applicant did disclose 

that he was arrested and violated his probation.  He did 

not disclose the arrest.  It was a felony.  And he was 

convicted.   

 In total, applicant had 29 local arrests and 10 

citations.  At the time of this report, we did not have 

the fingerprint report.  However, we do have the 

fingerprint report, and we only have the local arrests 

that are listed on the form.  

 Nothing further.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Butler, 

anything you want to say?   

  MR. BUTLER:  A lot of those charges was me 

being young, you know, going through a situation.  Well, 

there's really no excuses.  You know, you go through 

phases in life.  You know, and it made me understand 

then.  And then I'm 32 years now and being in jail up 

here.  You know, so, honestly, I tell you them was all 

mistakes.  I should never have been using drugs or 

hanging out with the wrong crowd, you know.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I understand that.  And, 

but I also know that you've had recent police activity.  

Can you explain those?  

  MR. BUTLER:  Recent police activity can just 

only be me getting pulled over, driving with no license.  

But 2016, 2015, since I was 16, was actually what as far 

as I got.  That was a felony.  And I got caught with 

drugs.  And it was supposed to be a gross misdemeanor.  

I did my time out at Desert.  I got out of there.  And 

since then -- I got out in like 2019, April 20th.  And 

since then, I was working at Cornerstone.  And right 

now, I'm employed at Vons off of Maryland Parkway and 

Twain in Las Vegas, Nevada.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Why do you want 

to be a security officer?  

  MR. BUTLER:  Honestly, I like security.  You 

know, a lot of my buddies security.  And, you know, I'm 

kind of a big dog myself, you know.  And already I like 

it.  I'm really a protector.  Like my family, I got a 

lot in them in my family as protectors, that they look 

up to me, oh, Kelvin, he's going to save the day, you 

know.   

  So really it's a job that I've really been 

wanting for years.  But I would do a failure and made a 

mistake early.  And I didn't have a roll model or bug in 



PRIVATE INVESTIGATORS LICENSING BOARD MEETING, 9-2-2020 

 

SHANNON L. TAYLOR, CCR, CSR, RMR 

(775) 887-0472 

700 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

my ear, like, oh, Kelvin, don't do this, don't do that.  

You have to bump your heard in order, you know, to learn 

as your old man, that, the mistake that you went 

through.  If you don't learn from them, you're never 

going to learn. 

  You know, so, honestly, I like security.  It's 

better than Vons.  Like I work at the Vons grocery 

store.  You know, like I said, I'm pretty -- six foot 

four, you know, guard and security.  I got a lot of 

friends that work out there in L.A., bouncers.  They're, 

"You can get a security and make good money."  But the 

problem, I have to get the guard's card to better my 

life, you know.   

  So if you guys give me the opportunity today, I 

promise you, there will never be no more failures or a 

mishappening or a misunderstanding with the police or 

anything.  I learned, in order for me to be around my 

kids or my family, I can't do BS, I can't be -- you 

know, there ain't no excuses, basically.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you.  

Let me see if the rest of the Board has any questions of 

you, sir.  

  Any other questions from the Board? 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah, the most recent 

one was, that I can see, was April of 2020.  That was 
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just a couple months ago, with the false statement to 

obstruct a public officer.  What's that about?  

  MR. BUTLER:  That right there is the officer.  

I didn't give him a false statement.  I told him my 

name.  And on the 2020, of this year, 4-20?  It was 

like, well, I was downtown on Fremont.  And me and my 

girl was talking, or we was having a disagreement.  And 

the police just come in and out of the blue just stops 

me for no apparent reason.  If I'm not, you know, 

wrongness, I'm not doing nothing, harming anybody, 

personal property or harming anybody, period, you 

shouldn't have no reason to stop me or jazz me about the 

problem with my sweetheart.  If I want to go grow braids 

in my hair, if I wanted, you know, to look the way I 

want to look, don't judge me.  You just have a 

conversation with me before you just judge me.  Don't 

just think that you have a badge, you can just --   

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Hold on.  Hold on.  

Hold on. 

  MR. BUTLER:  -- do this to me. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Hold on.  I asked you 

one thing, what was it about.  That's all.  You know, I 

feel --  

  MR. BUTLER:  That's what it was about, sir. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  You said you and your 
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girlfriend were having a disagreement.  So, apparently, 

the police came out of nowhere.  All right.  So 

something happened after that.  So I'm fine with it.  

Don't worry about it.  Thank you.  

  MR. BUTLER:  All righty.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any other 

questions from the Board?   

  Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown will make a motion.  

I move to uphold the denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Second.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any further discussion? 

  Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All those 

in favor, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Mr. Butler, you 

can reapply in a year.  Try not to have any police 

contact in the next year.  

  MR. BUTLER:  Okay.  Thank you. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Good luck to you, sir.  

Appreciate you being here today and your patience.  

  MR. BUTLER:  All right.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Number 183, Ryan 
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Prentiss, are you here?  Mr. Prentiss, are you here?  

  MR. PRENTISS:  Prentiss.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, is this Ryan 

Prentiss? 

  MR. PRENTISS:  Yes, it is, this is Ryan 

Prentice.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do you understand 

you're under oath?  

  MR. PRENTISS:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll let the 

investigator take over.  I think, I remember this case.  

Go on.  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  The 

applicant previously appeared before the Board in March 

of 2017.  Mr. Chair, would you like me to read the old 

work card denial report?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  No.  It had to do with a 

DUI.  I just want to know what's happened since then and 

if he did disclose it on the new application. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Okay, sir.  8-31 of 2017, state 

of Nevada, the charge was a DUI, misdemeanor, 30-day 

jail sentence, which was suspended, and 69 hours 

community service.  This was not disclosed, but we do 

have court documentation for this.  

 Like I said, the denial was upheld in March of 
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2017 for his previous denial, and he was told that he 

could reapply in March of 2018.  His previous denial 

report is attached, and he hasn't had a DUI since his 

last appearance.  He was not made provisional.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I'm just a 

little confused.  Did he disclose the DUI this time?   

  MR. MAXWELL:  Negative, sir.  

  MR. PRENTISS:  Sir, I went to the police 

station.  I got my paperwork from the police station, 

all my charges, and I put them all on there.  All my 

charges I got from back when I was younger till now, I 

put all my charges on that paperwork, sir.  It was, I 

know it was a lot, but I made sure I went down to the 

police station and got the paperwork that, you know, 

stated all my charges.  And I sat down and I wrote them 

all on my paperwork.  I remember that, because I've 

still got the paperwork in my car.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  And then you 

handed this paperwork in with -- and you handed this 

paperwork in with the application?  

  MR. PRENTISS:  No.  No, sir.  I wrote down  

everything that was on the paperwork that I got from the 

county jail.  The county jail gave me, you know -- I 

forgot the word.  How do you say the word?  All my, my 

whole record.  I went and got my whole record from 
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there.  I had to pay them money.  And everything I had 

on that paperwork, sir, I put on there.  All my charges, 

I put on there.  And I don't know. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You're saying you put 

down the DUI on your application?  

  MR. PRENTISS:  I'm sure I did.  Because 

everything, all the paperwork, all my charges, I wrote 

down on that paper.  Because, like I said, I went down 

to the county jail and I paid to get all my record.  I 

paid to get my record.  They're on there.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Prentiss, relax.  I 

want to ask the investigator something.   

  Mr. Maxwell, do we have a list that he wrote 

out everything that he did, or a printout from the 

county that he submitted with his application? 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Investigator Maxwell.  Yes, sir, 

we have the arrest history form that the gentleman 

filled out.  And I'm just going over it now to make sure 

I didn't miss anything.  So if you could just bear with 

me a second, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, I recall we denied 

him because he didn't list his arrest, including his 

DUI, and we asked him to come back in a year because it 

was a misdemeanor.  So he's waited two years.  And, 

obviously, he's disclosed some things, right, because 
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you got a list there?   

  MR. MAXWELL:  Yes, sir, he disclosed everything 

that was on his previous arrest.  I'm not seeing the 

2017 DUI, but I'm just going to double make sure in case 

I missed it.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Mr. Chair, Kevin Ingram, for the 

record.  I'm looking at the application that he 

completed.  He did not list the 2017 DUI.  He listed a 

DUI for 4-4-2007.  And that's the only DUI he listed.  

He did list -- 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  He listed all the other 

crimes he committed, right?  He had a bunch as a kid.  

  MR. INGRAM:  Correct.  He listed the 2009, the 

two in 2009, the DUI in 2007, DMV charge, yeah, 6-25-07, 

and a possession in 1994.  No DUI for 2017 was listed.  

  MR. PRENTISS:  Okay.  Sir, was it for the 

county jail or for north town?  You know what I mean, 

because I don't remember.  You know, I don't know if it 

was the north town or Metro.  Because, like I said, I 

went down and got the Metro paperwork.  And I filled out 

all I could do.  I think, I even had extra papers, to 

fill them out, from the lady.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Prentiss?  

Mr. Prentiss? 

  MR. PRENTISS:  Yes, sir. 
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  We'll sort this out.  I 

recall your case.  I even remember about the DUI.  So.  

I got other Board members here.  But, I believe, you 

tried to do the right thing.  

  MR. PRENTISS:  Yes, I have.  You know, I've 

been changed.  You all told me to stay out of trouble 

for a year and come back.  I stayed out of trouble for 

almost two and a half years.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I know.  You haven't 

been in trouble since 2017.  And I appreciate you coming 

back.  All right? 

  MR. PRENTISS:  Yes, sir.   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  So hold on a second.  

Let me.  You just need to be quiet for a little bit 

while we sort this out.  

  MR. PRENTISS:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Anything you 

want to add? 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Chairman, I have a 

question for Investigator Maxwell, when he's ready.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah.  Mr. Maxwell? 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  As I understand this, he 

has listed all of his offenses on his previous 

application.  But in the meantime, while he was told to 
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wait and not do anything wrong for a year, he got 

another DUI.  And that is what he has failed to 

disclose.  Do I understand that correctly?   

  MR. MAXWELL:  That is correct, sir. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Okay.  Thank you.  I just 

wanted to make sure I understood that.  So he disclosed 

everything on his previous application.  But this new 

one, that happened in his waiting period to apply again, 

he has not disclosed.  Thank you. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  Yes, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Do you understand that, 

Mr. Prentiss, you did not disclose this last arrest?  

  MR. PRENTISS:  I don't, I don't understand.  

Because I haven't, I haven't pulled a DUI.  Okay.  In 

2017.  No, no, no, no.  I haven't been in no trouble.  I 

was working.  I worked at Savers for three, almost three 

years straight.  And I ain't been in trouble.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  What date do 

you show for the DUI, Mr. Maxwell? 

  MR. MAXWELL:  The date on the fingerprint 

report is August 31st of 2017, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And that is the 

arrest, not a continuation of the case?   

  MR. MAXWELL:  That is the arrest date as shown 

on the fingerprint report, sir.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Does it show 

what agency arrested him or where he was booked?  

  MR. MAXWELL:  Las Vegas Metro.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  Do 

you understand that, Mr. Prentiss?  

  MR. PRENTISS:  Yeah, I understand, but I don't 

remember that.  Like I say, I've been working for almost 

three years.  And I ain't been in no trouble.  I've been 

working. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Is there a disposition 

on the DUI?   

  MR. MAXWELL:  The disposition just states that 

it was guilty at trial and he was found guilty.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  No sentence on it?   

  MR. MAXWELL:  Nothing on the fingerprint 

report, sir.  But let me just refer to the court 

documents.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Mr. Chairman, this is 

Brown.  On his work card denial report it shows a 

disposition of 30 days in jail, suspended, 69 hours of 

community service.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you. 

  MR. MAXWELL:  That is correct, sir. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Is that on the 
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spreadsheet, or are you looking on the something else, 

Mr. Brown?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  I'm looking at the actual 

work card denial report by Investigator Maxwell.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Gotcha.  Okay.  Thank 

you. 

  All right.  Any other questions from the Board?  

  All right.  I call for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown, and I move 

to uphold the denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I have a motion.  

Do I have a second?   

  Mr. Gronauer, are you here?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yes, I'm here.  I 

can't, I can't second it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Neither can I.  

Motion dies.  I'll call for another motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'll make a motion.  

This is Gronauer.  I make a motion to grant the denial.  

Grant the appeal.  I'm sorry.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do you want to 

put a reason on there, for the record?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah.  For the reason 

is, you know, I know it just says to disclose this one.  
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But he went through all the lengths of getting all the 

other reports and putting them all on there.  I think, 

you can tell just how he is, a little bit hyper, at 

least it seems to me over the phone.  I think, he just 

blew it off by accident.  I don't really think it 

intentional, or else he would have put all the other 

things on there are, trying to stay out of trouble.  I 

think, he should have remembered about it.  But I'm good 

with it right now since he went through all the extra 

trouble.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  I 

have a motion.  Do I have a second?   

  All right.  For the purposes of moving this 

forward, I will second.  Which is unusual, but there's 

only three of us.  Any further discussion?  

 Hearing none, I'll call for a vote.  All those 

in favor of the motion to uphold the appeal, "aye."  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  If wasn't for the 

uphold of the appeal.  It was to grant the appeal.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  That's what I meant.  

I'm tired.  Thank you.  No, you're correct. 

  All those in favor of granting the appeal, say 

"aye."  Aye. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Aye.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Those opposed?  
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  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Nay.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Passes two to 

one.  Good luck, Mr. Prentiss.  Stay out of trouble.  

Don't let us down.  

  MR. PRENTISS:  Oh, I got it?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  You got it, sir.  

  MR. PRENTISS:  Oh, thank God.  Thank you, sir.  

Thank you. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Stay out of 

trouble.  

  Number 184, Monica McDaniels, are you here? 

  MS. MCDANIELS:  Here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do you understand 

you're under oath?  

  MS. MCDANIELS:  Yes.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  I'll leave it to 

the investigator. 

  MR. SALADINO:  Investigator Saladino.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead.  

  MR. SALADINO:  The applicant did disclose the 

arrests that follow.   

  2005, out of California, possession of 

concentrated cannabis, at the time was a felony, where 

they were convicted, received three years of probation.  

 2008, out of the California, possession of 
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cocaine for sale.  This was a felony.  And they were 

convicted, receiving five years of probation.  

 2005, out of California, exhibiting deadly 

weapon not a firearm, misdemeanor.  This was a probation 

violation.  The charge for exhibiting deadly weapon was 

not filed.  The applicant's probation was revoked.  And 

there was no further disposition on the fingerprint 

report. 

 2006, out of California, battery of a 

spouse/ex-spouse.  Again, this was just an arrest, and 

no charges were filed.  

 2008, battery of a spouse/ex-spouse, out of 

California, misdemeanor.  They, again, looked at this as 

a probation violation, and they just revoked the 

probation.  

 2010, trespass, occupied property without 

consent, loiter, another probation violation, an arrest 

only.  No charges were filed. 

 2011, out of California, grand theft from a 

person.  This was a felony level.  Convicted, five more 

years of probation.  

 2011, out of California, possession of narcotic 

controlled substance.  There was no level given to this 

one.  This was an arrest only and found on the 

fingerprint report.  
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 2014, out of California, possession of a 

controlled substance without prescription.  This was a 

misdemeanor.  And it was found on the fingerprint 

report.  

 The applicant did disclose her arrests, her 

arrest history, and disclosed that she had felonies.  

During this whole process, the applicant was very rude 

during her application process, cursing at staff and 

being extremely vulgar.  We explained, tried to explain 

the appeal process and have her have her chance in front 

of the Board.  And, again, as in the report, says very 

rude to staff.  

 That's it.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Ms. McDaniels, 

I'll give you a chance to speak.  

  MS. MCDANIELS:  I don't know about the rude to 

staff part.  The guy told me I was going to get denied 

as soon as he seen me.  He didn't even know me.  He 

didn't even run my background.  He just looked at the 

paper and said I was going to get denied.   

  Everything else, I put every arrest I ever had.  

And I never got arrested ever since 2014.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And do you 

understand you can be denied for arrests?  We are not 

California.  
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  MS. MCDANIELS:  Okay.  But I disclosed.  I 

didn't know that, see, I didn't know.  I just knew that 

I was supposed to disclose everything.  And I put 

everything that I knew I ever got arrested for on the 

paper.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And then can you 

explain why you cursed out our staff?  

  MS. MCDANIELS:  I don't remember cursing them 

out.  But I do remember telling him that it's not fair 

what he's saying to me, because they don't, they never 

even ran my background yet. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay. 

  MS. MCDANIELS:  An Asian guy.  It was an Asian 

guy. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Well, and you're 

here.  So why don't you explain to me why we should give 

you a chance, with your lengthy arrest history, 

including arrests within the last 10 years?  

  MS. MCDANIELS:  I've been trying to stay out of 

trouble.  I don't live in California no more.  I moved 

to Nevada.  And I never got in trouble in Nevada for 

nothing else ever.  I've never been to jail.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  How long 

have you lived in Nevada?  

  MS. MCDANIELS:  For eight years, since 2012.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And what do you 

do for employment, ma'am, where do you work?  

  MS. MCDANIELS:  I work at ABM Janitorial for 

the Raiders stadium, but we can't do anything right now  

because they can't have anything.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Gotcha.  Okay.   

  Any other questions from the Board, besides me?  

I'm done.  

 Okay.  Hearing none, I'll entertain a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  I'll make a 

motion. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Go ahead. 

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  I'll make a motion to 

deny the appeal.  I'll just put to it, the last arrest, 

again, was in 2014.  If was in California but still is 

for narcotics, and there's been a previous history of 

narcotics.  So at this time, it's a little bit too 

early.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Got you.   

  All right.  I have a motion.  Do I have a 

second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown seconds.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Any further 

discussion?  

 All in favor of the motion, say "aye."  
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 (Board members said "aye.") 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carries.  

Ms. McDaniels, thank you for your time.  You can reapply 

in a year.  Let's see what happens as we get more time  

and distance since your narcotics charges.  You have a 

good day, ma'am.  

 Okay.  Number 185, Maria -- did we do this one, 

Kevin, or?  

  MR. INGRAM:  Yes, sir.  We're at the point 

where we have three items trailed, 174, 175 and 177.  

And then we go right into Board comment, future agenda 

items and public comments, sir.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  But we 

already did Maria Torres Arellano?  

  MR. INGRAM:  That is correct.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  I've 

got 174, 175, 177.  All right.   

  Gentlebreeze Ung-Watson, are you here?  

Mr. Watson?  

 Okay.  I'll seek a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  I make a 

motion for denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do I have a 

second?  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown seconds.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Any discussion?   

  Hearing none, call for a vote.  All those in 

favor of the motion, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Demoss, are you 

here?  Artura Demoss, number 175?   

  Okay.  Call for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.  I move 

that we uphold the denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Do I have a 

second?  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Yeah.  Gronauer.  I'm 

sorry.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  And any further 

discussion?   

  Hearing none, call for a vote.  All in favor of 

the motion, state "aye."  

  (Board members said "aye.")   

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Motion carried. 

  And, I believe, what, 177, Kevin? 

  MR. INGRAM:  That's correct.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Sederick 

Heard, are you here?  Mr. Heard?   

  Not hearing, I'll call for a motion.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Gronauer.  I'll make a 
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motion for denial.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Brown seconds.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Any further 

discussion? 

  Hearing none, call for a vote.  All those in 

favor of the motion?  Aye. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Aye. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm sure he said "aye."  

All right.  Motion carries.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Mr. Chairman, before 

you go any further, can I just ask a question?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yeah, please.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Numbers 172 and 173, I 

had them marked that we trailed them.  Did I make a 

mistake?  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Well, we did trail them,  

and then we ended up voting to deny them.  

  BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:  Okay.  I didn't cross 

them off.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Kevin, please 

tell me under 187 you don't have a lot.  

  MR. INGRAM:  I don't have a lot.   

  I did want to mention that, again, with the 

finalization of the regulation changes that went over to 
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LCB, we will be calling for a special meeting.  I'll 

send out a request for dates available for that to be 

able to notice of intent to act to adopt those.  

 The other thing, I wanted to take just a 

minute.  I know it's been a long day.  I wanted to thank 

Board staff for doing such a great job.  Putting all 

this stuff together was very difficult.  It was 

basically combining two different Board meetings along 

with three Board meetings worth of appeals.  It was very 

difficult.  It was very labor-intensive.  I want to 

thank the Board for your indulgence and having the time 

to get through all of this to prevent additional 

backlog.  This was very difficult on everybody and quite 

agonizing, to be blunt.   

 And I just want to thank everybody involved.  I 

think, everyone did a great job.  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you.   

  And I can only add kudos to staff as well as 

the Board.  

 I do have a question.  Are we caught up, or do 

we, if we were to start another one, do we got more 

appeals?  

  MR. INGRAM:  We are all caught up on appeals as 

of right now.  The only appeals that will be heard in 

December will be the ones post this Board meeting.  
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  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you.   

  All right.  If there isn't anything else, I'll 

call for public comment.  

  MS. JONES:  This is Theresa Jones.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Mr. Detmer, do we need 

to want to read that paragraph or just call for public 

comment?  

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the record.  You 

can call for public comment.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I just 

wanted to make sure you're with us.  I was testing you.  

  MR. DETMER:  Thanks, Chairman.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Yeah.  He's 

playing with his Lego set.  Okay.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Mr. Chair, it sounded like 

somebody was trying to say something as you were trying 

to get counsel.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I will --  

well, I've got the counsel.  All is I have to do is call 

for public comment.  We're at the end of the day.  

Understand we cannot take any action in public comment, 

but we will listen to you.   

  Is there any public comment?  

  MS. JONES:  Yes.  This is Theresa Jones.  I 

just want to piggyback on Kevin Ingram.  This was 
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brutal.  And I applaud everyone, the Board, Executive 

Director and the investigators, on a well-done job 

getting through all of the appeals.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Theresa, being one of 

our fans that's at every one of our meetings, and you 

sit through these, I appreciate you being here.  I 

appreciate what you do for your association.  And thank 

you for your comments.  

  MS. JONES:  Thank you.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  I'll call 

for a motion for adjournment.  

  MS. DUNN:  Wait a minute.  Did you hear me, 

sir? 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  No, I didn't.  

  MR. DUNN:  My name is Christopher Dunn.  I was 

number 131. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Yes, Mr. Dunn, I'll let 

you speak.  

  MR. DUNN:  Okay.  Thank you.  First of all, I 

would like to thank the Board and the Board staff for a 

job well done.  It's been a long day for you guys.  I 

recognize that.   

  One thing, though, I would like to suggest.  

And I don't know whether to present it to you as a 

problem and then not present a solution, because I don't 
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know the solution.  I mean that's not really the right 

thing to do.  But, I guess, what I'll do is present it 

as a consideration for you guys.  And you probably have 

already thought about it.  In conducting these boards in 

the manner in which you have just done, you allow too 

many riffraff to have interruption ability in a formal 

proceeding.  It also drags on for quite some time and 

runs late.   

 I do not know the solution.  And I know you 

guys are aware of this.  You guys put in the long day 

and the hard times doing this.  And I'm not taking 

anything away from you.  You guys did a great job.  And 

I've listened the entire time. 

 Somehow, maybe Nevada has a budget to provide 

an information technology guru who can somehow fix this 

for you and prevent the backlog of people sitting and 

listening to the other cases.  Immediately behind mine, 

somebody complained about the Board's determination for 

my particular situation, and he was very different than 

I am.   

 I don't know.  I guess, it's also been long, a 

long day for me in listening to you guys.  I hope I have 

provided something of value to you in my rambling here.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  Thank you, sir, 

for your comments.  And you understand, we cannot take 
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action.  But your comments are in the record.  

 All right.  Is there any other public comment?  

 Okay.  Hearing none, I will call for a motion 

to adjourn.  

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  This is Brown.  I move to 

adjourn the meeting.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Do I have a second?  

Bobby?   

  Well, I'll second.  We may have lost him due to 

a battery issue.   

  Well, Mr. Detmer, you're going to have to work 

some more.  

  MR. DETMER:  Mike Detmer, for the record.  

Chairman, as far as adjournment goes, I often see those 

as board action.  But oftentimes, other boards, I don't 

even see them on the agenda.  So that, and if it's not 

on the agenda, the Board doesn't have to continue in 

perpetuity.  To develop it for an action item, I mean 

with those that are present, I'm sure you could take a 

vote and, with the existing members, have that 

constitute as an effective motion and action.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  Okay.  All right.  All 

those in favor of adjourning, say "aye."  Aye. 

  BOARD MEMBER BROWN:  Aye.  

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  All right.  Thank you 
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for being here.  Motion carries.   

  Thank you, Shannon.  You did a great job.   

  THE REPORTER:  Thank you very much.  Everybody 

be safe out there. 

  BOARD CHAIRMAN FLYNN:  I'm signing off. 

* * * * * 

(The teleconference meeting adjourned/concluded at  

5:06 p.m.) 

-oOo- 
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REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE 

 

 I, SHANNON L. TAYLOR, a Nevada Certified Court 

Reporter, Nevada CCR #322, do hereby certify: 

 

 That I was present via teleconference on 

Wednesday, September 2, 2020, at 9:00 a.m. and took 

stenotype notes of the second day of a two-day 

Teleconference Meeting of the State of Nevada Private 

Investigators Licensing Board; 

 

 That I thereafter transcribed the aforementioned 

stenotype notes into typewriting as herein appears, and 

that the within transcript, consisting of pages 362  

through 726, is a full, true, and correct transcription 

of said stenotype notes of said second day of a two-day 

meeting; 

 

 I further certify that I am not an attorney or 

counsel for any of the parties, not a relative or 

employee of any attorney or counsel connected with the 

actions, nor financially interested in the actions. 

 

 DATED:  At Carson City, Nevada, this 3rd day of 

November, 2020. 

 

 

 

     ____________________________ 

     SHANNON L. TAYLOR 

     Nevada CCR #322, RMR 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


